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A, He admitted that he had.a verbal argument
with the victim Beverly McFarlane that escalated into a
physical altercation.

Q; This verbal altercation, did he ever tell
you what this verbal altercation was about?

A. Yeah. He seemed to believe that she was
cheating on him or was naving some type of other

relationship with another man.

Q. And did this verbal altercation aver become
physical?

A, Yes, it did.

Q. Did he state how it became physical?

A, Yes, he admitted that he shoved her and --—

do yvou want me to g0 over everylhing that he admitted?

Q. Yes. If you'll continue on what other
things happened during this physical altercation.

A, Yes. Basically he admitted that during the
course of the argument he admitted to shoving her
forcefully with both hands, he admitted to slapping her
in the face with the heel of the palm of his cpen hand,
he admitted punching her repeatedly in the side with a
closed fist and he also admitted to swinging a vacuum
cleaner that struck her,

Q. Did he say where it struck her?

A, I believe he said that it struck her in the
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

114

hand was his contention.
Q. Aind did he also describe how it was that

she was blocking herself in his own statements?

A, Yes, he did.
Q. How was that?
A. He said that she basically tock, raised her

hand up in a defensive motion and that's where the
vacuum cleaner struck her,

Q. Did he ever make any statements to you
about whether or not the vacuum cleaner ever hit her
head?

A. He denied that it hit her head.

Q. Did he make any statements as to how the
altercation concluded?

A, He did. He, his, what he had told us is
that after the altercation ended that he went to a
different part of the house and I think he said he did
various things. I think he said he cooked a meal for
himself and offered some to Beverly. He said that later
on that evening he‘claimed that he had intercourse with
her and then scon after or perhaps it was the next
morning he said he left the residence.

Q. Did he make any statements as te who
started the physical altercation?

A, I don't remember exactly the sequence of
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events, I could refer to the transcript tc refresh my
memory. But T believe he said it was, the argument
started with his accusation of her being in another
relationship with some type of, some type of thing with
another guy and that, you know, he shoved her or slapped
her and it was kind of mutual at first, but he did admit
that a physical altercation started because of his
anger.

Q. Did he ever make statements to yvou about
whalt the wvictim was doing during this altercation? Like
did she ever fight back, did she ever swing at him, was
there a mutual fight on their end?

A, I believe he said that she pushed him back
and slapped him.

Q. And do yvou know, if you recall, whether or
not he stated that she attempted to slap him first
before he started any physical altercation against her?

A. I don't remember exactly. I'd have to

refer to my transcript of that interview,

Q. Would that refresh your recollection?
A, It would.
Q. I'd ask you tc be able to refer to your

transcribed statement. Do you have it with you?

A, I have a copy. I'm not sure what line it

will be at.
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Q. I'"11 direct your attention.
I'1l direct your attention to lines 98 and
99, that general area.

Maybe starting even a couple lines before

that.
A, Okay.
Q. Does that refresh your recollection?
A, It does.
Q. Okay. <Can you tell me about that, about

who started the fight or how it commenced?

A. Basically it was a verbal argument., He
said he was trying to leave or walk down the sﬁairs and
that she pushed him and that he pushed her back and that
it continued to escalate from there,

Q. Were there any other statements about him
attempting to leave that residence, anything else
besides that?

‘Let me ask you a better guestion than that.
That's a vague question.

At some point did he actually leave the
residence?

A He did.

oR And did he ever make any statements te yvou
about how he left the residence?

A, He said that he had left or that he was
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1 | going, he was telling Beverly that he was golng to leave
2 | and made some type of reference about going to LA.

3 Q. And did he -—- I want to draw your attenticn
4 | back to this vacuum for a moment. Regarding the wvacuum,
5 | did he ever change his -- initizlly T believe you've

6 | testified that he swung the vacuum and Beverly attempted
7 [ to bleck it with her arms.

8 A, Yes.

9 Q. Did.he ever make any other different

10 | statements about what he did with the vacuum?

11 A, At first he made references to something

12 | about swinging the vacuum and not hitting her with it

13 | and that the vacuum hit a bed post or some part of the
i4 | bed and that it shattered or I think he even used a

15 | similar word saying that it blew up or whatever. But he
j 16 | basically at first denied that, that when he swung the
17 | vacuum that it hit her.

18 Q; And then eventually he admitted that she

19 | attempted to block it and she was actually struck in the
20 | arms with it?

21 A, Yes. Well, the way he described it is it
22 | hit her hand.

23 Q. Hit her hand. Okay.

24 Did he make any statements as to whether or

25 | not Beverly's face hit the ground as far as you recall?
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A, He did. He said that when he slapped her
that she fell on the ground and that she basically, and
again he had to, he at first didn't admit it, he said
that she fell backwards and hit her back, but then he
later admitted that her head hit the ground as well.

Q. Did vou discuss with him any treatment that
he provided to Beverly?

A, Yes. He had made comments akout how he did
not want her to go to work with a black eye and that he
tried to basically provide some rudimentary first aid to
her by giving her eye, trying to clean her up basically
to make her appearance so it didn't like she was beat up
before she went back tTo work,

Q. Did he ever discuss with you whether or not
Miss McFarlane wanted to seek medical treatment?

A, I can't remember exactly if he said -- he
never, basically he never offered to call an ambulance
or anything like that. -All the treatment that he gave

was what he said he provided for her.

Q. So whatever she was requesting he provided
to her?

A. As far as T can recall, vysas.

Q. And would it refresh your recollection to

refer to the transcribed statement?

A, It would.
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c. I'1l direct your attention to the area
around line 809.

Does that refresh your recollecticn?

A, It does.

Q. Can you tell me what he told you regarding
whether or nct he took her to the hospital?

A He says he asked her if she wanted to go to
the hospital and that she refused and just asked for
some Tylenol or said she was going to take some Tylienol,

Q. And towards the end of the interview did he
make any last statements regarding whether or not he
ever struck her with the vacuum again?

A. I can't remember exactly what he said but
he just basically kept repeating it only hit her in the
hand.

Q. When you read him his Miranda rights, did
you read it from memory or did you read it from a card?

A, Actually I was present and I remember
distinctly my partner who has 23 years of police
experience advised him from memory and he indicated that
he understood his rights and hé still wanted to talk to
us, he waived his rights.

Q. Anc did he appear to be under the influence
of anything?

A, Not at all.
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Q. Did you guys, did you yell or scream at
him?

A. No, all the entire interview was
conversational tones.

Q. And this was recorded on —-

A, Digital audio recorder and later sent out
for transcription.

Q. Do you recall about how leng this interview
lasted?

A, I don't know exactly. I'm sure it was 45
minutes to an hour.

Q. And during that time did he ever reguest
any restroom breaks or any food or water or anything as
far as you can recall?

A. No, he never indicated he was in need of
that. We would have absoclutely provided fhat to him 1if
he did.

MR. STEPHENS: Are there any questicns from
the grand jurcrs?

THE FOREPERSCN: Nc questions from the
grand jurors.

By law, these proceedings are secret and
you are prohibited from disclosing to anyone anything
that has transpired before us, including evidence and

statements presented to the Grand Jury, any event
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occurring or statement made in the presence of the Grand
Jury, and information obtained by the Grand Jury.

Failure to comply with this admonition is a
gross misdemeancr punishable by a year in the Clark
County Detention Center and a $2,000 fine. 1In addition,
you may be held in contempt of court punishable by an
additional $500 fine and 25 days in the Clark County
Detention Center.

Do you understand this admonition?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do.

THE FOREFERSON: Thank you. You're
excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank vyou.

M5. BROWN: Ladies and gentiemen of the
Grand Jury, we ask that you hold off on your
cdeliberaticns at this point. We anticipate one final
witness this afternoon.

Also the State will be withdrawing Grand
Jury Exhibkits 5, 6, 8 and 2. Thank vou.

(Recess.)

MR. STEPHENS: Ms. Brown will be down
momentarily. She's the other deputy that was with me.
She'll be here momentarily but we'd like to get started
with the time you guys have given us.

Our next witness will be Dr. Alane Olson.
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I should say we are recalling case State of
Nevada versus Anthony Mayo, Case Number 13BGJ036X.

State calls Dr. Alane Olson.

THE FOREPERSON: Please raise your right
hand.

You do solemnly swear the testimony you are
sbout to give upon the investigation now pending before
this Grand Jury shall be the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, so help you God?

THE WITNESS: T do,

THE FOREPFRSON: Please be seated.

You are advised that you are here today to
give testimony in the investigaticn pertaining te the
offenses of murder, battery constituting domestic
violence - strangulation, coercion, preventing or
dissuading witness or victim frém,reporting crime or
commencing prosecution, involving Anthony Mayo.

Do you understand this advisement?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am, I do.

THE FOREPERSON: Please state vour first
and last name and spell both for the record,

THE WITNESS: My name is Alane Olson. My
first name is spelled A-L-A-N-E, my last name is spelled
O—L—SfO—N.

THE FOREPERSON: Thank you.
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ALANE OLSON,

having been first duly sworn by the Fereperson of the
Grand Jury to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

and nothing but the truth, testified as follows:

EXAMINATION
BY MR. STEPHENS:
2. Dr. Olson, what do you do for a iiving?
A, I'm a medical examiner at the Clark County
Corcner's Qffice.
Q. And as a medical examiner do you need to

have any prereguisites, any classes, any degrees?

Al Yes.
g. What degrees or training have vou had?
A, 1 have a Bachelor's in microbiclogy from

the University of Idaho. I went to medical school at
the University of Nevada Schocl of Medicine. Once T
completed my medical education, fermal medical
education, T moved to Portland, Oregon and spent five
years at COregon Health Sciences University in a
residéncy pathology training program. That's where I
learned how to do autopsies, it's where I learned how to
do what all pathologists do in their careers. Once I

completed my residency I moved to Milwaukee, Wisconsin
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and spent one year at the Milwaukee County Medical
Examiner's Office in a fellowship program for forensic
pathelogy and that's where I worked in a medical
examiner's office doing the types of examinations that
medical examiners typically do. Once I completed my
fellowship I moved to Reno and worked at the coroner's
office there for five years and I've been in Clark
Coﬁnty since September of 2005,

0. And since 2005 you've been working at the

coroner's office?

A. Correct.
Q. And what do you do at the coroner's office?
A, I perform autopsies and other types of

examinations with the goal of determining cause and
manner of death.

Q. How many bodies do you see on a reqular
basisg?

A. On an average per vyear I do arcund 250
autopsies with another approximately 100 to 125
additional examinations.

Q. And do you only do criminal requests or do
you do a variety of other reguests also?

A, There are a number of different
circumstances which require death to be reported to the

coroner's cffice. Most often those involve violence,

129



10

11

12

13

14

15

1s

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

125

either violence perpetrated by another person or motor
vehicle accident or suicides. And we also accept
jurisdictions on cases of people who die for nc obvious
reason. Most commonly those are people under the age of
5C.

Q. Do you have to take any continuing
education courses in order to maintain any licensing
that you may have?

A. Yes. I'm licensed to practice medicine in
the State of Nevada and that requires me to complete 41
or 42 hours of continuing medical education over the

course of the certification period which is two years.

Q. Okay. And you obviously maintain your
certification?
A Yes, I've maintained my licensure in the

State of Nevada.
Q. Thank you.
Dr. Olson, were you'asked to review a body

who was identified as Beverly Estella McFarlane?

A, Yes.
Q. Was thet given an assigned case number?
AL Yes. Every case that's accepted by the

coroner's office is assigned a unique number. In this
particular instance the case number was 12-7691,

Q. And why do you assign it a case number?
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A, So that we don't confuse anybody. That
would be bad.

Q. So it's to organize things, make sure all
documents and what other examinations are done are

maintained with the same body and the same file?

A, Yes, correct.

Q. And each autopsy is given its own unique
number?

A, Yes, each case that's accepted as a

coroner's case is given a number, so all of the
documentation, including aultopsy reports, photographs,
slides, everything, has that particular case number.

Q. Dr. Olson, in reviewing this beody how did
you begin your autopsy?

A, Typically autopsieslstart with what's
called an external examination which is exactly what it
sounds like. We look at the body surfaces and we
describe everything from how tall, well, how long they
are since they den't stand up, how much they weigh, if
there's clothing with themn, if'they‘ve had medical
intervention, marks, scars, tattoos, any injuries that
We can see. We also describe things iike hair color,
eye color and just generally what the body appears like
from the outside.

Once that's complete we do an internal
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examination. That starts with a Y-shaped incision
commencing on the shoulders continuing to the central
chest and then down to the bottom of the abdomen. The
skin is moved away from the center. %e use a saw to
take off the front of the rib cage and we have the
chance then tc look at everything, all of the organs as
they lie in the body cavities. And the whole goal of
this autopsy is to describe injuries as.well as natural
disease,

Once we've opened the body up, all cf the
organs are removed one by one. I weigh them and then I
have the chance to look at them individually. I
describe them. During the course of an autopsy we also
collect samples for toxiceology testing and any other
kinds of testing, cultures or whatever, that may be
necessary depending on the type of case this is,

We do look at the brain. We do that by
making an incision or a cut across the stop of the scalp
from ear to ear. We move the scalp aside. We then use
a saw to take off the top of the skull, remove that, and
then T have the chance to lock at the brain as it lies
in the body. The brain is then removed and weighed. I
may do the examination of the brain, or depending on the
type of case it is, if there's head injury and I need an

expaert opinion I may save the brain and send it to a
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neuropathologist whe is a pathologist like me but they
have specialized training in neuropathology, meaning the
brain.

Once I've finishea with the examination, I
dictate what I saw. I get a paper copy from that_
dictation. I have a chance to edit and add to it. And
once everything is complete and I've reached a
conclusion for cause and manner of death, then T sign it
and date it and it's done.

Q. Okay. On this specific autopsy of
Miss McFarlane, did you notice any abnormalities on the
external body of her?

A, She had evidence of medical intervention.
She had been in the hospital and had a breathing tube.
She also had some intervencus lines. Prior to my
examination she alsc had undergone donation of Organs
while she was in the hospital. And she also had some
small injuries on her body surfaces.

0. T'm going to show you what's been marked as

Grand Jury Exhibit 11. Do you recognize this?

A, Yes.
Q. What is that a photo of?
A, This is a photc of Mrs. McFarlane, the

front of her body basically, her head, neck and upper

chest.
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Q. And this is the way she looked when she
arrived at your office?

A, Approximately, vyes.

Q. Actually I want to ask you one question.
Tt looks like there's a cut down the middle of her
chest. Was that done by vou?

i No. The incision ¢on her central chest was
done by the organ procurement organization.

Q. So that was prior to you really performing
any procedures on her?

A, Yes,

Q. After reviewing the external surfaces of
her body, what did you do?

A Once the external exam is complete then we
move onto the internal examination by the methods that
I've just described and again I'm documenting natural
disease as well as evidence of injury.

Q. Did you find anything unusual or of
interest in the internal examination?

A. Yes. She had evidence of bleeding over her
brain. There was also considerable_amount of swelling
in her brain. And those findings prompted me to save
her brain and send it to the neuropathology specialist.

Q. fou said there was bleeding on the brain.

In your experience what would that be indicative of?
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A. Most ceommonly that's indicative of trauma.

Q. And trauma being just some sort of injury
to the brain area?

A, Either the brain, either the head being
struck by an object or the head striking against a fixed
chiject.

Q. Did you find anything, prior to, I want To
stay there a minute, but did you find anything else
relevant in the internal examination?

A. Aside from the injuries in her head, no,
there wasn't anything significant.

Q. Did you take any photos once you, when you
opened up the head, did you take any photos of the
brain? |

A. T asked cur autopsy techs to photegraph

relevant injuries.

Q. And you were present when those photos were
taken?

A, Yes.

Q. I'm going to show you what has been marked

as Grand Jury Exhibits 12 through 14. Will you lock at
those?
Are those photos of Miss McFarlane's brain?
A, Yes.

Q. And those were taken at or around the time
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you opened up her scalp?

A, Actually when her skull had been opened.
Q. Skull, sorry, that's correct.
A, That's when we have the opportunity to look

at the brain itself,

Q. Let's start with Exhibit 12. Tell me what
we're lodking at here.

A. Exhibit 12 is a photograph that was taken
when.the scalp had been moved to the side, well actually
the front and back, and the top of the skull had been
removed with a saw and her brain is exposed., This
photograph depicts the left side of her brain and it is
discclored, there's blood over the brain surface. In
this photograph you can actually see part of the right
side of her brain and you can compare the colcr and you
see that there's a big difference in the color,

Q. Do you recall whether or not you toock a
photo of the top of the brain?

A. Well, we typically take a photograph of the
left and right and then usually from the back of the
brain.

Q. I'm showing you Exhibit 13, Do you
recognize that?

A. Yes.

Q. And what is that a photo of?
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A, This is a photograph that was taken
standing essentially behind and akove Miss McFarlane and
it shows both sides of her brain.

Q. And is there anything of interest in that
photo?

A, Yes. This is another depiction of the
difference between the right and the left side of her
brain and on the left again you can see that there's

blood over the brain surfaces,

Q. And is that indicated by the darker cclor?
A, Yes.
C. And then lastly tell me what I'm looking at

here in Exhibit 14,

A, Exhibit 14 is a photograph which was taken
of the top of the skull after it had been removed. In
this particular photograph the skull is intact and also
the membrane that lies directly on top of the skull
inside the brain or inside the head is alsc intact, so
it's still attached to the inner surface of the skull.
And on that inner surface there ig a céating of blood,
The photograph as you hold it up, I guess with the
label, if you keep the iabel on the opposite side of the
piece of paper down, then when you lock at the
photograph, it's reversed. So the right side of the

photograph is actually the left side of her skull and
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you need to keep that in mind Qhen you lock at it. Sc
the blcod had accumulated on the left side rather than
the right side as you would assume if ycu just looked at
this without knowing how it's oriented.

Q. Did you find any of that interesting as far
as trying tc determine the cause of death?

A. Well, it all goes along with the fact that
her brain was injured and that's ultimately what led to
her death.

Q. And were you able to determine —- strike
that.

Did vou do any other further examination
that assisted vou in determining the cause and manner of
death?

A. The further examination was limited to the
neuropathologist examinaticon of her brain once it had
sat in a preservative.

Q. Did you eventually send that brain to an

outside agency?

A, Yes.
. Do you recall who you seni it to?
A. The brain went to University of California,

Davis to Dr. Claudia Greco.

Q. And based upon your entire review of the

body of Miss McFarlane were yocu able to determine a
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cause of death?

A, Yes.
Q. What was that?
A. I listed the.cause of death as brain

injuries due to assault.

c. And were there any other conditicns that
may have caused this death?

A, There were cother significant contributing
conditicns that I listed, yes.

Q. What were those?

A, I listed ischemic encephalcopathy due to a
occlusion of the left internal carotid artery,
hypertension and diabetes.

Q. And in lay terms what does all that mean?

A, It means that you have basically two major

arteries that take blood up intoc your brain and she had

a complete blockage in the left artery, the left

internal carotid artery. She also had partial blockage

on the richt internal carotid artery. So her brain was

compromised in terms of its ability to have blood flow,

That caused problems with the functioning of her brain.

Which in technical terms is the ischemic encephalopathy

meaning her brain wasn't getting enough blocd flow and
that causes problems with how the brain functions.

Q. And those were contributing conditions to
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the actual trauma that was conducted?

A, . Yes,

Q. Did you determine a manner of death?

A, Yes.

Q. What was the manner of death?

A, Homicide.

c. Very briefly T want to talk to you. Do vou

ever examine bodies for strangulation?

A. Yes,

Q. What are some symptoms of somecone who had
been strangled? |

A, If the person survives the strangulation
they may not actually have much in the way of symptoms.
It depends on how prolonged the strangulation is. They
may also have symptoms that can range from confusion,
altered level of consciousness, meaning that they're not
all there, they're not quite with it, they're not. awake,
alert. If the strangulation is prolonged that may go so
far as to result in death.

Q. And is there anything, any physical
circumstances or physical things you'd be able to
observe in somebody that had been strangled?

A, Sometimes there aren't actually any signs
or any injuries externally. If we do a focused section

of the neck, which I did in this particular case, 1f
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someone has been strangled sometimes you see bleeding in
the neck muscles underneath the skin. Cccasionally you
can see fractures either in the cartilage of the larynx
or the voice box and there's another component of the
neck called the hyoid, H-Y-0-I-D, bone, sometimes that's
broken. In this particular case with Miss McFarlane T
did not see any evidence of injury in her neck when I
locked at it specifically,

Q. And if someone had survived would you
notice, let's say they had lived and they came into just
consult with you, would there be any injuries as to
their, any other injuries besides the neck that they
would sustain that you would be able to observe?

A. Again sometimes they have evidence of

injury externally and sometimes they don't,

Q. Are you familiar with the term petechia?
A, Yes,

. Can you tell us what that means?

A. Petechia are pinpoint areas of hemorrhage

that can occur for a variety of reasons, one of which is
strangulation or sometimes hangings we see them. They
typically occur in the lining of the eyelids, also
sometimes on the surface of the eyes. We can see them
also on the eyelids and sometimes in the lining of the

mouth.

141



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

137

Q. And sometimes when the subject gets to your

office, are sometimes those signs of strangulation not

apparent?
A, Yes.
Q. And the manner of death is homicide?
A, Correct.

MR. STEPHENS: Okay. Any gquestions from
the grand jurors?

THE FOREPERSCN: No other questions.

MR, STEPHENS: Thank you.

THE FCREPERSON: By law, these proceedings
are secret and you are prohibited from disclosing to
anyone anything that has transpired before us, including
evidence and statements presented to the Grand Jury, any
event occurring or statement made in the presence of the
Grand Jury, and information obtained by the Grand Jury.

Failure to comply with this admonition is a
gross misdemeanor punishable by a year in the Clark
County Detention Center and a $2,00b fine. 1In additiocn,
you may be held in contempt of court punishable by an
additional $500 fine and 25 days in the Clark County
Detention Center,

Do you understand this admoniticn?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am, I do.

THE FOREPERSCN: Thank vcou. You're
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excused,
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
MR. STEPHENS: And lastly we are submitting

to the grand jurors Exhibit 15 which is a certified

‘certificate of death for Miss Beverly McFarlane.

MS. BRCWN: As I stated earlier we would
have a copy of the instructions to mark as Grand Jury
Exhibit 2. I'm tendering those to you now.

Ladies and gentlemen of the Grand Jury, do
you have any guestions with regards Lo the elements of
any of these offenses?

Okay. The State has concluded its
presentation of evidence 1n this matter. The matter is
submitted for your deliberaticns. Thank yocu.

(At this time, all persons, other than
members ¢f the Grand Jury, exit the room at 1:35 p.m.
and return at 1:39 p.m.)

THE POREPERSON: - Mr. and Madame District
Attorney, by a vote of 12 or more grand jurors a true
bill has been returned against defendant Anthony Mayo
charging the crimes of murder, battery constituting
domestic viclence ; strangulation, coercion, and
preventing or dissuading witness or victim from
reporting crime or commencing prosecution, in Grand Jury

Case Number 13BGJ036X. We instruct you to prepare an
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Indictment in conformance with the proposed Indictment
previously submitted to us.
MS. BRCWN: Thank you.
MR. STEPHENS: Thank you.
THE FOREPERSON: Thank YOu.
(Proceedings concluded.)

——0000c0——
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF NEVADA )
: Ss
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, Danette L. Antonacci, C.C.R. 222, do
hereby certify that T took down in Shorthand ({(Stenctype)
all of the proceedings had in the before-entitled matter
at the time and place indicated and thereaftér said
shorthand nctes were transcribed at and under my
direction and supervision and that the foregoing
transcript constitutes a full, true, and accurate record
of the proceedings had.

Dated at ILas Vegas, Nevada,

January 28, 2014

/s/ Danette L. Antonacci

Danette L. Antonacci, C.C.R. 222
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AFFIRMATION

Pursuant tc NRS 23%R. 030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the
preceding TRANSCRIPT filed in GRAND JURY CASE NUMRER
13BGJ036X: '

X Does not contain the social security number of any
person,

—-0OR -

Contains the social security number of a person as
required by:

A. A specific state or federal law, to-
wit: NRS 656.250.

_OR.__
B. For the administration of a public program

or for an application for a federal or
state grant.

/s/ Danette L. Antocnacci
1-28-14

Signature Date

Danette L, Antonacci
Print Name

Official Court Reporter
Title
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brains [8] 12/6 12/7 12/12
12/16 13/16 27/20 29/6 29/10

break [7] 45/6 82/7 82/22
82/24 82/25 83/1 83/2

breaks [1] 120/13

breath [2] €3/16 64/9

breathing [3] 7/23 23/5
128/14

briefly [1] 135/7

bring [4] 32/18 €4/16 75/13
75/25

brings [L] 27/20

broken [3] 65/15 68/12 136/6

brother [2] 38/15 54/15

brought [1] 30/19

brown [4] 2/20 5/14 24/22
1z21/21

bruise [2] 59/21 101/9

bruises [3] 77/13 717/1% 77/16

bruising [7] 89/12 89/17
97/10 101/11 104/8 104/9
104/12

bunch [1] 102/10

BUNTJER [1] 2/7

bureau [1] 90/12

burgers [4] 75/14 75/15 15/23
77/4

burglaries [1l] 85/6

burn [1] 104/20

burns [1] 97/12

business [1] 8/23

buttons [1] 49/2

C

C-L-A-U~D~I-A [1] 11/1

C.C.R [3] 1/25 14C/6 140/18

€295313 [1] 1/7

cable [1] 58/1

cage [1] 127%/5

caleulated [1] 7/8

California [6] 11/20 11/24
12/1 12/2 111/22 133/22

call [12] 15/23 18/12 45/1
61/1 61/10 72716 72/18 73/1
73/3 79/5 99/9 118/17

called [20] 16/10 18/1 27/18
29/14 30/13 32/13 42/24
42725 43/1 45/3 50/3 53/3
54/21 59/17 76/19 95/11 96/3
96/7 126/16 136/5

calling {4] 45/5 56/22 63/17
64/3

calls [5} 10/5 91/22 93/16
108/21 122/3

calm [1] 104/1
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c

calmness [1] 104/3

came [29] 13/18 13/22 16/19
29/3 42/2 42/5 44/19 45/4
45/5 48/2 50/2 54/11 54/18
54/1%9 55/9 56/9 56/17 59/24
60/1 64/23 65/14 6€5/18 71/11
71715 T1/20 8674 86/12 97/5
136/10

can [57]

can't [2] 19/25% 23/6 28/11
28712 32/7 32/15 81/1 118/16
11%/13

cannot {2] 28/10 28/11
canvassed [1] 5/10

capable [1] /1

capacity [3] 93/18 93/21
93724

capillaries [1] 102/12

caxr [2] 26/2 44/17

card [1] 119/17

cardiac [11 23/5

care [2] 53/21 53/23

careers [1l] 123/24

caressing [1] 97/21

Carl [1] 36/21

carctid [3] 134/12 134/18
134719

carpet [1] 104/19

carry [l] 9/24
cartilage [1i]
cascade [1] 32/23

case [30] b5/1% 5/16 6/10
13/4 14/6 14/11 14/15 16/10
16/19 16/24 20/2 20/3 208/25
36/6 45/21 122/1 122/2
125/21 125722 125/24 125/25
126/9 126/10 126/12 127/16
127/24 135/25 136/6 138/25
141/4

casas [6] 12/8 12/10 17/4
8577 110/22 125/3

casual [1] §/22

CAT [3] 24/25 25/5 25/13

CATHY [l] 2/13

cause [23] 19/3 27/13 28/20
45/16 54/20 54/21 56/19 61/1
61/14 61/16 64/10 64/19
T0/16 72/8 15/14 75/21 76/7
124714 128/8 133/6 133/13
13471 134/4

caused [5] 28/16 29/17 90/2
134/7 134/21

causes [1] 134/24

Causing [1] 9/22

cavities [1] 127/7

cells [2] 32/18 %0/1

center [19] 23/12 23/14 26/11
26/12 32/7 34/7 34/10 81/20
81/22 91713 91/16 102/24
i08/12 108/15 121/5 121/8
127/4 137/1% 137/22

centered [l] 96/6

centimeters [1] 15/19

central [3] 30/14 127/2 12%/7

cerebral [3] 27/17 29/21
30/17

cerebrospinal {3}
28/10

certain [1] 31/7
certificate [4]

136/3

26/17 27/16

4712 94/21

138/5% 140/1

certification [4] 12/25 95/5
125/12 125/14
certified [2] 4/12 138/4

certify [1] 140/7
chance [5] 96/22 127/6
127/12 127/21 128/6
change [4] 100/4 100/11
107/10 11%/5
changed [2] 107/1 107/2
changes [2] 18/4 22/6
characterized [2] 8/20 29/13
characterizing [1] 7/10
charged [2] 6/10 10/4
charges [1] 111/14
charging [1] 138/21
cheating [1] 113/7
check [1] 63/7

cheak [4] 63/4 97/11 101/10
101/15
chest [6] 104/15 105/1%9

127/3 128/25 129/6 129/7

child [4] 8/10 8/11 8/11
8/13

chin [1] 104/13

choir [2] 36/25 37/1

choked [1] 59/22

choking {41 62/25 &3/12 63/14
63/14

cirele [2] 26/23 26/24

circular [1] 23/9

circulation [1] 7/23

circumstances [7] 7/1 7/4 /7
/9 7/15 124/24 135/21

citizens {1] 93/17

city [19] 13/16 39/9 8B4/13
84/16 84/17% 93/7 93/9 93/15
110/11 111/2¢

eclaimed [1] 114/20

CLARK [23] 1/2 13/12 14/14
15/2 34/6 34/9 81/19 81/22
85/15 88/15 88/21 91/12
31/15 96/12 108/11 108/14
121/4 121/7 123/10 124/7%
137/18 137/21 140/¢4

class [1] 95/5

classes [1] 123/13

classic [2] 18/23 97/19

Claudia [4] 10/6 10/25 11/8

133/23

Claus [1] 37/6

clean [2] 56/21 118/11

eleaner [3] 113/23 114/8
114/10

clear [4] 24/6 25/14¢ 8B/14
106/6

clearly [1] 28/21

clinieal [6] 16/23 23/7 30/1¢C
30/11 30/24 32/20

clinicians [1] 30/17

closed [10] 55/13 65/4 65/7
67/25 68/7 68/11 68/14 68/16
69/12 113/22

closet [1] 14/1

clesing [1] 64/22

clothes [3] 56/20 8G/10 100/5

clothing [3] 9/6 100/11
126/20

cluas [2] 87/5 87/7

coating [1] 132/20

coercion [9] 6/12 8/24 10/18
35/4 83/17 92/10 109/14

122/15 138/22
cognitive [3]
106/23

103/8 103/19

echerence [1] 87/22
coherent [1] 107/13
Cold [1}] 84/21
COLEMAN [1] 2/8
collar [1] 101/17
collect [1] 127/14
Colleen [2] 2/20 5/14

color [8] 26/1 77/17 102/10
126/22 126/23 131/15 131/16
132/10

comatose [2] 33/7 33/9

come [19] 23/4 25/12 30/6
30/13 42/20 43/9 47/16 50/4
54/6 54/8 55/16 56/4 56/6

64/18 85/25 86/2 95/22 96/17

96/19
comes [3]
coming {4]

87/6
commenced [1] 116/10
commencing [11] 6/13 9/10

9/1% 10/1 L0/20 35/6 92/12

109/15 122/17 127/2 138/24
comment [1] 30/8

14/3 14/9 25/23
23/22 371/6 38/25

commenting [1] 83/19
comments [1l] 118/8
commission [2] 7/13 %4/15

commits [1] 8/4

committed [1] 9/25

common [1] 8/10

commonly [2] 125/4 130/3

communicate [7] 86/19 103/3
103/9 103/11 106/24 106/25
107/12

communicating [11 90/7
communication [1] 107/3
compare [1] 131/15
comparison [1] 29/9

compel [1] 8/25

Compelling [1] 8/14

complete [6] 93/17 125/10
126/25 128/7 129/14 134/17
completed [3] 123/19 123/25
124/5

comply [6] 34/5 81/18 91/11
108/10 121/3 137/17

component [1] 136/4

compremised [2] 33/13 134/20

concerned [1] 88/11

concluded [3] 114/14 138/12
139/6

conclusion [1l] 128/8
conditions [3] 134/6 134/9
134/25

conduct [2]

conducted [2] 112/13 135/1
conformance [1] 13%/1
confuse [l] 126/1
confusion [1] 135/15
congruent [1] 14/17
connection [1] &/22

consciousness [2] 107/19
135/16

consider [1] 82/12

85/3 85/5

considerable [2] 7/3 129/21
considerad [1] 82/10
consistently [1] 97/20

constantly [3] 27/19 107/18

107/20
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constitutes [1] 140/12
constituting [9] 6/11 7/16
10/17 35/3 83/16 92/9 109/13
122/14 138721

consult [1l] 136/11

contact [8] 85/25 86/2 86/13
90/9 96/17 96/19 99/9 111/17

contacted {4] 6&/9 90/7 90/11
111/24

contain [1] 141/8
container [1] 15/21
Contains {1] 141/11

contempt [6] 34/8 81/21 91/14
108/13 121/6 137/20

contention [1] 114/1

context [l] 8/23

continue [3] 32/24 33/14
113/15

continued [1]

continuing [4]
125/11 127/2

116/14

12/20 125/6

coptributing [2] 134/8 134/25
contributer [1] 28/8

contrel [1] 29/24
conversation [2] 77/1 87/11

conversational [1] 120/4
cooked [2] T75/16 114/18
cooking [2] 75/14 15715
copy [7] 5/19 5/20 14/25
105/4 115/24 128/5 138/7

11674

coupled [1] 103/20

course [S5] 14/7 18/8 113/18
125/12 127713

courses [2] 12/21 125/

court [8] 1/1 24/8 81L/21
91/14 108/13 121/6 137/20
141/23

cover [1] 19/8

covering [2] 18/1 18/13

cracked [1] 6&5/7
creates [1l] §/1
creature [1] 6&/25

crime [19%] 6/13 7/13 9/10
9/1z2 9/14 9/14 9/23 10/1
10/1% 35/5 83/18 88/18 90/12
92/11 109/15 111/7 111/10
122716 138/24

crimes [3] 85/4 93/17 138/21

¢riminal [3] 9/19 85/2 124/21

criteria [1] 29/11

eritical [1] 27/21

crux [1] 17/15

erying [1] 97/6

CSF [1] 27/18

cultures [1]

current [1]

currently [2] 12/9 110/21

custedian {1] 8/12

cut [8] 15/15 16/5 24/6
24/16 24/17 31/13 127/18
129/5

127715
13/5 -

|defendant's [1]

cord [B] 22/23 22/25 23/4 euts {1] 25/15
23/10 26/14 cutting [2] 24/5 24/15
corner [1] 72/9 D
coroner [1] 18/10
coroner's {10] 12/7 13/12 dad [88]
14/9 123/11 124/6 124/20 dad's [7] 65/2 B65/11 65/12

124/12 124/25 125723 126/10
correct [20] 24/4 27/9 40/14
40/17 85/1¢ B8/20 90/8 95/1¢9
100/16 100/22 100/25 101/24
102/1 1Ce6/8 107/8 112/5
124/11 126/6 131/3 137/6
corvectional [l] 9/18
Corrections [1] 9/17
correctly [1] 26/22
correlate [1l] 32/20
corrcborated [1] 23/7

couch [4] 61/14 61/16 61/16
61/25
could [24] 28/6 28/6 28/14

28/15 28/20 29/17 30/9 30/25
31715 46/11 55/14 62/19
62/21 65/8 65/10 87/6 87/14
87/15 88/8 89/11 89/18 90/21
103724 115/1
couldn't [15]

55/25 60/24
63/16 63/18
72/10 72/12

43/2 46/22 48/8
61/1 61/3 61/5
64/8 64/11 71/2

Count [3] .5/2¢4 5/25 6/4
Count 3 [2] 5/24 5/25
Count 4 [1] 6/4

COUNTY [26] 1/2 12/7 12/9

13712 14/14 15/2 34/7 34/9
81/20 81/22 85/15 88/15
88/21 91/13 91/15% 96/13
108/12 108714 121/5 121/7
123/10 124/1 124/8 137/1%
137721 140/4
couple [4] 44/13 47/5 §7/1

65/16 70/19 712/2 73/20
damage [7] 21/14 23/5 24/24
25/24 25/25 28/6 32717
damaged [2] 26/1 28/9
damages [1] 28/25
Danette [7] 1/25 S5/4 140/6
140/17 140/18 141/18 141/21

dark [1l] 102/%
darker [1} 132/10
date [15] 1577 20/8 4277

42/12 42/17 52/4 52/6 87/23
103/16 106/20 111/23 111/23
11274 128/9 141/19

Dated [1] 140/14

dates [1] 112/23

dating {2] 8/9% 8/18

Davis {2] 12/2 133/23

day [44] 33/1 43710 43712

43/15 43723 44/1 44/5 50/16
52/12 53/1 53/2 53/3 53/6
53/8 53/11 53/Z5 54/16 55/17
56/5 56/13 66/17 66/20 67/1
68/17 T2/16 T3/7 13/9 14/1
74/1 M4/13 14/21 74/23 I5/11
76/3 78/23 79/1 87/13 B1/25
89/5 100/12 102/7 102/15
106/18 107/15

days [15] 31/24 31/2% 32/2
32/4 33/16 34/% 52/22 53/1
53/1 74/19 81/22 91/15
108/14 121/7 137/21

bc [1] 1/7

death [12] 4/12 6/22 7/8 8/1
29/18 124/15 124/24 128/8

133/6 133/9 133/14 132/1
134/4 134/7 135/3 135/5
135/1% 137/5 138/5
December [2] 15/8 15/9
decided [1] 90/17
decision [2] 36/% 50/15
decreases [1] 22/25
deduced [1) /7
deep [1] 61/24
defendant [6] 1/9 6/10 82/10
112/12 112/23 138/20
i/12
defensive [1] 114/7
definitely [2] 14/16 29/1%
degrees [2] 123/13 123/15
delays [1] 9/23

deliberate [1] 6/24

deliberations [2] 121/16
138/14

delicicus [1] 56/16

delineated [1] 25/2

demeanor [5}] 43/23 43/24
96/23 97/1 97/3

denied [2] 114/12 117/16

department [5] 9/17 13/20
93/1% 110/12 110/18

depending [3] 104/4 127/16

127/23
depends [1] 135/14
depict {1] 100/22

depicted [B] 27/7 89/1 95/18
99/21 101/5 101/20 105/19
106/9

depiction [2] 106/2 132/6

depictions [1] 100/18
depicts [1] 131/12
Deprive [1] 9/5

deputy [3] 2/4 2/20 121/22

describe [15] 24/20 28/23
29/8 30/7 31/25 39/23 45/14
87/3 102/6 105/23 114/2
126/18 126722 127/8 127/13

described [2] 117/21 129/16

designated [1] 15/22

desk [3] 13/20 13/21 59/20

destroy [1] 23/5

details [1] 110/20

detective [12] 108/21 108/23
110/10 110/11 110/13 110/14
110717 110/25 111/2 111/3
111/10 112/10

Detention [12] 34/7 34/10
81/20 81/23 921/13 91/16
108/12 108/15 121/5 121/8
1371/19 137/22

determination [2] 82/i1 98/9

determine [9] 17/12 28/15
31/21 33/6 87/22 133/6
133/10 133/25 135/3

determining [5] 12/17 12/17
111/12 124/14 133/13

develop [1] 33/14

diabetes {1] 134/13

dialed [3] 48/25 48/25 48/25
dialing [2] 44/25 49/4
dictate [1] 128/5

dictation [1] 128/5

did [241]

didn't [17] 18/8 27/13 30/11

30/22 30/23 48/17 54/23
56/20 59/4 68/13 74/10 75/18%
75/22 103/13 103/13 118/3
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didn't... [1] 118/12

die [5] 18721 18/22 30/1e
33/4 125/3

died [4] 21/23 32/12 37/22
111/12

Diege [2] 11/20 11/23
difference [3] 40/19 131/1%
132/7

different [9] 16/12 26/1
66/18 66/19 70/15 97/2
114/17 117/9 124/23

difficulty [1] 95/25

Digital [1] 120/6

direct [B} 5/23 7/12 116/1
116/2 119/1

direction [2] 18/17 140/11

directly [1] 132/17

dirt [6] 65/15 &65/16 69/21
70/18 10/18 10/19

dirty [1] 56/20

disclosed [1] 7/15

disalesing [6] 33/25 81/13
91/6 108/5 120/23 137/12

diseoloration [9] 18/13 18/15
19/2 19/3 19/4 19/8 21/9
2274 23/24

discolorations [1] 24/22

discolored [1] 131/12

discoloring [2] 97/13 101/16

discuss [2] 118/6 118/14

discussed [1] 81/2

disgease [2] 127/9 129/1%

disoriented [1] 87/4

dispatch [1] 85/23

displayed [1] 101/16

displaying [1] 87/5

disregard [2] 55/2 70/11

dissuades [1] 9/12

dissuading [10] 6/12 9/9 9/25
10/19 35/5 83/18 92/11
109714 122/16 138/23

distinet [3] 96/2 102/8

102/13

distinetly {1] 118/19

distriet [4] 1/1 2/20 81/5
136/18

diverse [1l] 104/4

do [191]

doctor [3] 6/16 99/9% 108/25

document [2] 51/6 98/19

documentation [1] 126/11

documenting [1] L126/16

documents [4} 16/17 16/21
17/6 126/4 :

does [26] 8/21 22/24 41/8
41/7 53/21 53/23 57/10 63/23
64/16 66/14 66/15 68/24
68/25 69/3 69/7 14/19 75723 -

41/15 44712 4'1/6 4871 49/8
49/11 51/14 54/3 54/3 56/15
57/16 64/25 69/16 70/6 10/7
71/22 74/14 75/21 76/15
1619 1H/9 1I/19 1119 11/21
79/20 100/4 100/10 100/11
100/24 106/8 107/18 114/25
115/18 120/10 126/1 126/19
136/15

deonation [1] 128/16

done [8] 14/7 57/21 59/11
TL/20 78/2 126/4 128/9 129/6
129/8

door [28] 39/25 46/1 46/8
46/9 46/9 46/10 47/16 50/8
50/9 50/10 55/13 55/14 61/4
61/10 €4/2 64/23 64/24 65/4
65/6 65/13 B5/14 69/12 69/24
70/1 73720 73/23 86/3 B6/4

doors (1] 46/3

dots [3] 96/4 102/10 102/13

down [29] 18/15 20/15 20/16
21/6 22/23 23/2 23/4 23/10
26/14 27/4 45/6 47/17 49/25
59/24 59/25 60/1 560/12 62/24
63/15 83/15 63/19 64/6 102/4
116/12 121/21 127/3 129/%
132/23 140/7

downstairs [7] £3/5 50/10
56/21 61/13 61/20 64/13 77/3

dozen [1] 953/15

Dr [5] 10/6 11/14 31/5 122/3
133/23

Dr. [4}
126/13

br. Alane [1]

Dr. Olson [3]
126/13

dragging [1] 71/9

1217253 12379 125/18

121/25
123/9 125/18

draw {3] 17/24 22/14 117/3
dreads {2} 65/22 65/23
dress [3] 40/24 41/2 41/3

dresser [l] 65/11
drew [1] 22/15
drove [1] 44/16
drug [1] 103/19
drug/alechol [1]
drugs [1] 32/24
drunk [l1] 87/9

103/19

due [4] 21/14 22/5 134/5
134/11
duly [7] 5/5 11/7 35/17 84/5

92/22 110/3 123/2

dura [3] 18/2 18/7 19/6
duration [4] 31/21 33/1 33/8
33/%

during [12] 7/13 12/11 55/16
74713 74/16 87/3 112/15
113/16 113/17 115/10 120/12
127/13

80/7 80/14 116/7 116/8 119/3
11974 134714 141/4 141/8

doing [10] 8/1 9/2 16/16
53/25 54/2 56/17 65/25 71/18
115/10 124/4

domestic [18B] 6/11 7/16 8/3
10/317 35/3 83/16 85/5 85/18
9279 93/25 94/1 94/3 94/4
94/16 94/16 109/13 122/14
138/22

don't [45] 14/10 22/13 30/16
32/1% 33/4 38/15 39/22 40/6

E
each [2] 126/7 126/9
ear [3] 23/23 127/19 127/19

earlier [8] 44/8 46/20 53/11
68/6 70/17 72/4 73/9 78/10
138/6

early [1] 30/18

eagier [1] 306/1

eat [4] 56/12 57/25 59/9
60/9
eating [51 57/22 58/% 58/12

58/21 59/4

eats [1] 59/10

edema [1] 30/17

edge [6] 32/9 45/20 58/16
b8/17 59/16 TL/2%

edit [1] 128/6

education {6] 11/15 12/21
123/19 123/20 125/7 125/11

effect [4] 23/4 55/5 82/18
88/25

effected [1] &/21

effective [1] 107/3

effectively [1] 106/23

effort [1] &/24

afforts [1] 111/10

eighth [2] 1/1 15/20

either [7] &6/20 6/23 102/9
125/% 130/4 130/4 136/3

elbow [3] 104/21 105/186
105/22

elbows [21 97/12 104/22

elements [3] 6/15% 10/4 138/10

Eleven [1] 36/17
Elmo [1] 20/11
else [14] 3B/13 39/19 40/2

54/13 58/25 63/9 65/24 75/24

88/11 90/10 104/16 105/12
116/16 130/8
emergency [1] 100/8
emotions [1l] 104/4
employed [1] 110/10
employee [2] 9/16 9/18
encephalopathy [2] 134/11
134722

end [4] 14/8 16/4 115/12
119/10
ended [1] 114/16

Enforce [1] 85/2

enforcement [1l] 110/16

enlargement [1] 22/12

enlarging [1] 32/5

enough [3] 18/18 18/19
134/23

entire [2] 120/3 133/24

entitled [1] 140/8

escalate {1] 116/14

escalated [1] 113/2

essentially {1] 132/2

Estella [2] 38/5 125/19

even [9] 28/11 30/11 30/18
50/6 63/16 65/6 75/22 116/4
117/14

evening [1l] 114/20

event [7] 34/3 81/15 82/13
91/8 108/7 120/25 137/15

events [3] 16/24 112/24
115/1

eventually [4]
117/18 133/18

ever [19] 49/4 68/20 74/19
93/11 95/11 113/4 113/9
114/9 114/10 115/9 115/11
115/11 116/23 117/5 117/9
118714 119/12 120/12 135/8
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ladies [9] 5/13 5/23 55/1
70/10 80/18 82/8 98/23
121/14 138/9

lady [6] 16/25 18/20 32/12
32/20 39/24 39/24

lady's [1] 19/23

laid [1] 71/21

language [1] 96/1

large [5] 22/22 25/12 29/7
29/8 29/15

lazrger [1] 27/4

larynx [1] 136/3

Las [14] 1/12 5/1 84/14
84/16 B4/17 84/25 B85/11
88/15 93/7 93/9 93/15 96/8
110/12 140/14

last [17] 10/24 35/10 37/16
38/2 55/2 65/3 83/23 83/24
83/25 92/16 99/25 100/1
109/20 109/22 119/11 122/21
122/23

lasted [1] 120/9
lastly [3] 26/5 132/12 138/3
later [9] 21/15 24/25 54/9

75/4 75/6 98/4 114/19 118/5
120/86

LAURA [1] 2/8

law [9] 6/12 33/24 81/11
91/5 108/4 110/16 120/22
137711 141712

laws [1] 85/2

lay [2] 28/23 134/14

layer [2] 19/9 21/11

laying [3] 21/24 44/17 62/24

lead [1] 103/24

leads {1] 103/18

learned [3] 95/4 123/23
123/23

least [2] 31/17 104/21

leave [8] 57/11 57/18 81/1

99/8 116/12 116/16 116/20
117/1
led [13
left [50]
leg [1] 71/9
legal [1] 8/13
legalese [1] 17/23
let [15] 5/9 22/16 23/8
23715 24711 26/21 40/1 41/11
45/6 45/25 67/7 97/%2 $9/15
105/7 116/18
let's [7} 33/6 4474 0/8
101/1 103/10 131/6 136/10
lethargic [2] 87/4 87/9
level [2] 87/22 135/16
licensed [1] 125/9
licensing [3] 12/21 12/23

133/8

125/7
licensure [1) 125/15%
lids [2] 96/5 102/4
lie {8] 40/11 40/20 40/25

41/6 41/8 41/8 41/16 127/7

lies [2] 127/21 132/17

life [5] 6/25 18/20 30/15
30/21 ai/18

like [132]

limited [3] 12/4 103/5 133/15

limping [3] 47/23 47/25 71/8

line [5] 5/25 6/5 6/6 115/24
119/2

lines [3] 116/2 116/4 128/15%

lining [2] 136/22 136/24

lip [3] 101/14 104/13 104/14

ligquid [1] 19/7

listed [3] 134/4 134/¢g
134/11

listened [1] 57/1

listener [2] 55/5 98/25

literature [4] 12/3 13/4 13/5
29/13

little [18] 16/16 43/22 61/15
65/9 67/18 69/17 69/20 72/9
76/21 84/22 87/4 89/18 96/4
98/19% 101/15 102/5 104/13
107/3

live [3] 38/15 80/7 80/8

lived [2] 79/18 136/10

living [10] 38/10 38/13 39/6
39/12 41/23 41724 61/17
84/12 93/4 123/9

lobe [1] 15/24

locate [1] 111/20

located [2] 58/14 86/12

locatien [5] 36G/3 85/17 85/24
96/11 96/1%

locked [2] 13/24 14/1

long [15} 14/10 47/1 47/4
50/3 61/24 74/15 79/4 7977
80/24 84/15 84/23 93/8
116/13 120/8 126/18

lenger [1] 33/14

longitudinal [1] 25/24

look [41] 14/5 15/15 16/7
18/11 19/16 24/20 24/21
30/24 32/5 32/6 32/7 42/17
49/1 49/17 €4/13 85/21 66/14

66/15 66/17 66/18 66/20 67/1

70/2 70/6 T0/13 70/15% T6/2

- 95/17 98/21 9%/3 99/15 105/7
126/17 127/6 127/12 127/17
127721 130/21 131/4 132/23
133/1

looked [18] 18/9 20/7 26/10
44/1 57/14 57/15 57/15% 65/19
65/23 €7/19 68/1 70/3 76/4
76/4 102/7 106/3 129/1 133/3
136/8

looking [22] 12/16 18/1 18/7
18/15 18/17 20/22 21/2 21/6
21/20 21/24 22/10 23/20
23/21 24/13 24/17 25/9 25/10Q
26/8 28/19 32/8 131/7 132/12

looks [7] 24/5 24/6 26/23
7G/6 102/8 102/14 129/5

LORNA [1] 2/3

Los [1] 111/22
losing [1] 87/11

lot [5] 41/9 41/9 45/7 61/2
77/8

lots [1] 23/25

loud [4] 48/9% 56/1 63/21
69/5

louder [4] 44/23 44/23 44/24
48/7

Lump [1] 22/12

lying J1] 41/10

M

M-A-N-U-E-L [1] 83/25

M-A-¥-0 [1] 35/12

M-C-F-A-R-1-A-N-E [1] 6/3
ma'am [34] 85/9 85/14 85,23
86/6 86/11 88/16 88/20 88/22
B9/2 89/23 90/14 91/18 92/5
$2/14 53/13 94/7 94/20 $9/13
99/17 100/2 100/14 100/20
101/7 102/2 163/2 104/25
105/3 105/11 105721 1056/11
106/15 108717 122/29 137/24

mad [5] 54/23 59/13 66/16
66/22 66/24

Madame [1] 138/i8

made [17] 34/3 40/13 55/3

75/16 75/24 81/15 88/12
88/17 90/16 91/% 98/9 108/8
117/2 117/11 118/8 l21/1
137/15

mail [3] 43/5 49/18 49/22
maintain [2] 125/7 125/13
maintained [2] 125/15 126/5
major [2] 25/22 134/15

make [211 20/17 26/21 32/19
‘33/2 36/9 40/15 42711 71722
15/18 75/22 111/17 114/9
114/13 114/23 115/9 116/23
117/9 117/24 118/12 118/11
126/3 ‘

makes [2] 51/17 76/21

making [2] 82/11 127/18

malice [4] 6/19% 6/23 6/24
/2

malignant [1] 7/5

man [3] 39/25 41/11 113/8
manifested [1] 7/1

manner [8] 7/9 7/25 124/15%
128/8 133/13 135/3 135/5

137/5

Manuel [3] 83/5 83/24 84/4
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(%]
(58]

M

many [7] 12/12 32/21 52/22
61/1 95/8 95714 124/16
Mareh [1] 111/2%

mark [7}] 6/15 89/16 101/9
101/23 105/22 105/24 138/

marked [5] 5/18 19/14 21/16
128719 130/20
marks [5] 101/12 104/18

105/14 105/15 126/21
marriage [1] 8/6

massive [1] 18/18

Matinee [4] §5/11 88/14 $6/8
98/9 .

matter [8] 25/1 25/2 55,4

82/16 98/24 138/13 138/13
140/8 '

may {261 6/21 6/22 7/6 7/14
1173 17/13 31/22 34/8 35/14
80/19 B1/21 84/2 91/14 82/19
108/13 109/24 121/8 125/8
127/15 127/23 127/25 134/7
1353/13 135/15 135/18 137/20
maybe [8] 33/4 50/5 79/6
94/20 95/15 102/9 103/18
116/4

MAYO [24] 1/8 5/17 6/1 6/5
6/7 6/8 10/20 34717 35/6
35/11 35/12 35/16 37/17
83/19 856/4 86/5 92/12 109/1¢6
111715 111/18 112/24 122/2
122717 138/20

MCDOWELL [1] 2/14

|membrane [1]

MCEVOY [1] 2/4

MeFarlane [35] 6/2 6/6 6/8
6/8 13/8 38/3 55/3 82/15
86/4 86/1C 89/4 8977 50/16
90/18 96/21 98/10 98/18 99/7
99/23 100/18 100/22 101/3
103/4 104/1 106/20 107/22
113/2 118/15 125729 128/11
128/23 132/2 133/25 136/6
138/5

McFarlane's [2] 96/23 130/23

me [69]
meal [1] 114/18
mean [8] 28/17 32/1 4177

63/13 86/23 87/8 97/8 134/14
meaning [3] 128/2 134/23
135/16

means [9] 6/21 7/17 /22
8/19 28/11 43/24 82/17
134715 136/18

meant [1] 111/7

measuring [1] 33/8
mechanisms [1] 23/6

medical [17] 11/17 29716
30/20 90/22 102/23 118/15 -
123/10 123/12 123717 123/1%9
123/1% 12471 124/3 124/5
125/11 126/20 128/13
medically [1] 106/22
medicine [2] 123/18 125/9
meet [3] 39/16 39/17 11276
meetings [1] 13/3

members [2] 5/20 138/16
132/17
membranes [1] 96/%

memory [4] 105/10 115/2
119717 11%/2¢0

mentioned [2] 27/12 70/17

merely {1]
messed [3]
met [3]

metal [1]
methods [1]
Michael (1]

§2/17
21/19 71/16 71/16
39/20 40/4 86/3
61/19

129/1%

110/25

microbiclogy [1] 123/16

microscope [3] 14/5 15/8
31/23

microscopic [2] 16/8 31/24

microscopically [2) 17/8
17/11

mid [2] 27/1 21/2

middle [5] 24/7 37/14 38/4
72/1 129/5

might [4] 24/6 82/8 102/11
111/8

Milwaukee [2] 123/25 124/1

mind [3] 7/12 7/14¢ 13371

minimum [1] 31/11

minor {4] 8/10 B/11 8/13
2977

minute [4] 79/9 82/5 83/2
130/8

minutes [7] 44/13 47/5 41/6
50/6 50/6 79/6 120/11

Miranda [2] 112/16 119/1%

misdemeanor [6] 34/6 81/19

91/12 108/11 121/4 137/18
mispronounce [1] 27/13

Mis=s [19] 55/3 86/4 89/7
90/16 90/18 96/23 98/10
98/18 99/7 99/23 104/1
106/20 118/15 128711 130/23
132/2 133/25 136/6 138/5
Miss Beverly [2] 86/4 138/5
Miss McFarlane [15] 55/3 89/7
80/16 90/18 98/10 98/18 99/7
99/23 104/1 106/20 118/15
128/11 132/2 133/25 136/6
Miss McFarlane's [2] 96/23
130/23

migsing [2] 68/14 77/23

mistake [1] 40/13
mistakes [1] 40/15
mobile [1] 31/14
mom [100]

mom's [19] 37/25 43/23 46/9
46/10 46/11 47/15 54/21
57/23 57/25 58/11 58/14
60/15 60/25 62/19 65/17
69/1¢ 70/22 72/22 72/23
moment [2] 22/16 117/4
momentarily [2] 121/22 121/23
Monday [1] 74/19

month [1] 41/18

months [1}] 112/3

more [20] 13/2 17/3 20717
25/23 28/25 31/14 44/14 1777
47/8 47/9 60/24 61/5 71/4
97/19 98/5 98/19 103/8
103/18 104/12 138/19

morning [9] 36/25 44/6 d44/8
7472 74711 79/24 80/2 108/24
114/22

Most [3] 124/2% 125/4 130/1
mostly [I0] 54/3 54/8 55/25
66/2 69/8 T0/5 16/7 80/5
80/5 80/6

motion [1] 114/7
motor [1] 125/1
mouth [5] 7/25 101/13 102/24

104/11 136/25

move [5] 52/19 60/2 60/3
127/19 129/15
moved [8] 11/23 47/11 60/5

123/20 123/25 124/6 127/4
131/9
movement [2] 95/24 97/20

movie [3] 58/7 58/23 59/1
movies [2] 58/6 58/8
moving [1] 97/23

Mr. [4] 17/3 17/22 82/4
138/18

Mr, and [1] 138718

Mr. Stephens [3] 17/3 17/22
82/4

Mrs. [1] 128/23

Mrs. McFarlane [1] 128/23

Mz [1}] 121/21

much [6] 24/13 25/3 104/19

105/16 126/19 135/13

mucus [1] 96/6

muffled [1] 87/10

multiple [1] 95/7

mumbling [2] 43/1§ 46/23

murder [1G] 6/11 &/18 14/17
35/3 83/16 92/9 109/12
111/14 122/14 138721

muscle [1] 101/18

muscles [1] 136/2

mutual [2] 115/6 115/12
my {157]
myself [7] 13/6 16/15 61/4

15/16 86/24 86/25 112/10

N

name [2B] 5/14 6/1 10/24
35/10 36/12 37/14 37/16
37/25 38/2 38/4 38/16 63/17
83/23 83/24 83/25 83/25
92/16 109/20 109/21 109/22
122/21 122722 122/23 122/23
l41/21

names [l] 39/22
NANCY [1] 2/15
naps [1] 74/14

nareoties [1] 103/14

narrow {1] 23/3

natural [3] 19/7 127/8 128/16

neceassary [l] 127/16

neck [21] 7/24 89/19 89/21
§5/24 95/24 97/13 97/20
957/21 97/21 97/24 100/5
100/10 101/17 102/22 104/8
128/24 135/25 136/2 136/5
136/7 136/12

need [13] 16/9 16/1C 17/23
23/19 28/1 28712 39/13 82/22
82/24 120/15 123/12 127724
133/1

needed [1]

needs [1]

neither [1] 107/15

neure [1] 27/14

neuropath [1] 13/3

98/10
33/22

neurcpathologist [2] 128/1
133/16
neuropatholegy [4] 11/21

12724 128/2 129/23

NEVADA [19] 1/2 1/5 1/12 5/1
3/16 12/9 85/i5 88/15 94/14
94/15 95/2 95/2 96/13 122/2
123/18 125/10 125/1% 140/3
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N

NEVADA... [1] 140/14

never [3] 118/17 118/17
120715

next [17] 18/13 19/9 20/17

34/16 47/15 61/4 72/1 72/9
12/10 13/25 74/1 79/1 83/4
106716 107/21 114/21 121/25

nice [1l1 66/5

night [B] 56/6 74/12 75/4
75/6 18/25

Nighttime [1] 56/7

nine [3] 84/24 84/25 B6/8

no [67]

non [1] 26/1

non~damaged [1] 26/1

none [l] 65/16

T/23 70/6 14/7

normally [31 8&0/23 96/3 96/5

North [11] 84/13 84/16 84/17
84/25 84/11 B8/1% 93/7 93/9
93/15 %6/8 110/12

normal [3]

nose [3] 7/25 23/22 24/2
not [59]

note [1] 21/12

notes [1] 140/10

nothing [12] 10/12 11/9 34/23
35/19 83/11 84/7 92/4 92/24
109/6 110/5% 122/9 123/4

notice [5] 5/11 22/11 89/6
128711 136/1¢

noticed [5] 87/3 89/5 89/8

101/6 103/21

November [l] 36/13

November 6 [1] 36/13

now [40] 6/18 10/10 17/11
247177 26/12 34/21 36/11
36/16 38/6 38/18 38/20 41/17
43/19 47/21 50/15 51/3 52/7
52/19 59/24 83/2 63/19 66/5
6'1/4 68/25 69/1 69/23 72/4
73/25 78/17 18/23 79/13 83/9
92/2 96/16 101/20 101/25
105729 109/4 122/7% 138/8

NRS [2] 141/2 141/13

number [34] 5/16 5/19 14/2

14/3 14/5 14/11 14/11 14/15

1d/16 14/19 15/2 15/22 16/7

la6/18 20/1 20/2 20/25 45/2

67/11 101/20 105718 122/2

124/23 125/21 125/23 125/24

125725 126/8 126/10 126/12

138/25 141/4 141/8 141/11

Number 1 [1] 5/19
Number 10 [1] 67/11
Number 4 [1l] 105/18
Number 7 [1] 101/20
numbered [2] 14/7 16/6
numercus [1] 12/3
nurse [1] 53/18
nursing [1l] 53/1i8
nutrients [3] 27/20 28/1
28/12
0
o'clock [1] 108/25
0-L—-S—-0-N [1] 122/24
O=-W=-E-N-3 [1] 109/22
ebjest [2] 130/5 130/6
chjects [1] 28/1i%

observations [1] 88/13
observe [B] 96/22 98/2 102/24

135/22 136/13

observed [1] 97/18

obtained [6] 34/4 81/1%6 9i/10
108/9 121/2 137/16

obvious [2] 97714 125/3

obvicusly [2] 105/21 125/13

Occasicnally [1] 136/2

cccasioned [1] 6/22

occlusion [1] 134/12

occur [4] 30/4 30/18 136/20
136/22

occurred [13]1 18/4 21/11 22/5
31/22 32/2 32/3 33/3 33/11
33/15 87/3 88/18 111/4
112/20

occurring [7] 34/3 81/15 91/9
104/5 108/8 121/1 137/15

oceours {3] 7/19 8/3 19/6

oder [1l] 87/6

off [32] 13/21 14712 14/1%
17/25 18/7 19/6 32/24 42/7
44/16 44718 44/25 45/21
45/22 48/18 56/8 58/1 59/14
59/22 60/6 60/6 60/8 60/10
61/9 65/12 72/11 74719 74/21
T4 TT/10 121715 12775
127/20

offense [1] 9/25

offenses [9] 6/15 10/4 10/17
35/3 B3/16 92/9 109/12
122/14 138/11

offered {8] 55/4 55/5 BZ2/16
82/17 98/24 98/25 114/19
118/17

office [16] 12/7 13/12 13/23
14/9 94/14 95/3 123/11 124/2
124/4 124/7 124/10 124/12
124725 125/23 129/2 137/2

officer [19] 9/15 9/15 83/5
84/13 84/16 84/19 50/5 90/11
80/18 91/22 93/4 93/5 93/6
93/9 93/12 93/20 96/20 96/21
99/1

officers [4]
95/17

Official [1} 141/23

often [2] 96/4 124/25

oh [B] 12/14 15/17 39/4 44/2
56/25 87/25 89/6 99/13

okay [88]

old [8] 31/24 31/25 36/16
38/18 38/20 53/24 86/7 86/8

Olson [7] 121/25 122/3
122/22 123/1 123/9 125/18
126/13

once [17] 19/17 30/11 32724
48/19 72/23 79/4 98/15
123/18 123/24 124/5 126/25
127/10 128/4 128/7 129/14
130/12 133/1%6

one [45] 5/10 8/4 13/24
15/17 15/18 15/18 15/25
1%/25 20/12 20/13 21/25
22/16 30/5 31/13 32/4 44/14
44/23 51/12 51/14 53/1 53/2
53/18 53/19 e8/10 68/12
68/13 71/9 15/16 75/16 15/16
15/17 75/17 15/18 15/22
80/18 88724 100/2 104/21
106/10 121/16 124/1 127/11
127/11 129/4 136/20

ones [1] 91/19

94/3 94/16 95/6

enly [11] 13,24 32/6 54/2
55/5 70/8 82712 82/20 %3/11
98/25 119/14 124/21

ocloo [1] 139/7

open [9] 46/1 46/3 50/9
67/24 68/17 69/24 73/21
13/23 113/20

opened [9] 50/10 56/21 65/14
65/14 W0/1 127/10 130/13
131/1 131/2

operate [3] 93/18 92/21 93/24

opinion [6] 27/24 29/5 29/16
29717 29/20 127/25

oppertunity [3] 39/16 42/10

131/4
opposite [1] 132/22
order 4] 19/18 23/16 111/11
125/7
ordinary [1} 8/22
Oregon [2] 123/20 123/21
organ [l] 129/8
organization [1l] 129/8
organize [1] 126/3

organs [3] 127/6 127/11
128/16

oriented [1]

other [54]

others [1] 13/2

our [21] 5/22 6/16 13/19
13/20 14/3 29/19 45/18 58/1
59/5 59/15 60/9 61/14 61/16
68/13 71/21 12/3 87/1 108/24
108/24 121/25 130/15

out {371 9/24 13/16 13/16
15/14 17/21 18/25 29/3 31/17
43/7 47/16 47719 48/2 51/11
51/13 51/14 59/18 60/19 64/2
64/2 65/14 66/21 66/23 £9/20
71/6 L/11 73/1 73/4 16712
80/5 82/5 95/11 96/7 102/4
111/16 111/18 112/6 120/6

133/4

out-of-state [2] 111/16
111/18

outside [3] 32/6 126/24
133/19

over [12] 18/16 20/21 22/13
47/11 63/10 65/12 94/5
113/14 125/11 129/20 131/13
132/9

overall [3] 17/9 17/12 17/16

Owens [5] 108/22 108/24
109/22 110/2 110/10

own [3] 97/21 114/3 126/7

oxygen [1l] 28/11

P

138/16 138/17

95/24

113/20

51/10 128/5 132/23
12/3

16/19

16/4
50/14 80/7

p.m [2]
pain [1]
palm [1]
paper [3]
papers [1]
paperwork [1]
paraffin [1]
paramedics [3)
90/17
parants [1]
parcle [2] 9/15 9/20
part [19] 24/9 25/22 30/18
32/6 47/24 48724 55/2 58/19
81/6 67/18 68/6 68/11 69/20
101/10 103/6 104/13 114/17
117/13 131/14

45/12
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P

part's [1}1 67/24

partial {1] 134/18

particular [8] 7/14 40/8
101/% 125724 126/12 132/16
135/25 136/6

particularly [2] 94/12 101/13

partner [3] 110/21 112/10
119719

partners [1] 96/20

past [1] 12/1

patholegically [1] 30/10

pathologist [2] 17/2 128/1

pathelegists [1] 123/24

pathology [6] 11/1% 12/24
12/25 29/13 123/22 124/3

patient [2] 21/4 21/6

patrel [1] 110/20

pattern [2] 102/13 102/14

peace [1] 9/15

peeled [1] 77/10

pen [1] 102/9

pending [6] 10/10 34/21 83/9
92/2 109/4 122/7

Pennsylvania [2] 11/18 11/18

people [8] 12/5 20/18 30/15
53/21 53/23 53/24 125/3
125/4

per [1] 124/i8

perform [3} 8/15 8/17 124/13

pecforming f1] 129/9

perhaps [1] 114/21

peried [3] 31/7 33/1 125/12

perpetrated [1] 125/1

person [37] 7/18 7/1% 1/20
7/25 8/3 8/5 8/6 B8/7 8/7 8/8
8/8 8/9 8/10 8/12 8/14 8/15
8/17 8/24 9/1 9/3 9/5 9/6
9/8 9/11 &/12 8/13 8/22
13/21 49/9 49/10 87/5 87/7
87/9 125/1 135/12 141/8
141/11

person’s [5]
9/4 9/4

personally [2] 106/10 112/6

perscnnel [1] 90/22

persens [3] 8/11 8/23 138/15

perspective [l] 24/18

pertaining (6] 10/16 35/2
83/15 92/8 106/12 122/13

petechia [12] 89/19 89/24
96/3 96/5 97/25 98/7 102/1
102/2 102/7 102/12 136/16
136/1%

petechial [2] 96/3 98/7

phone [27] 43/20 44720 44/20
44 /22 dd4/21 44/21 44724 45/2
48/12 48/15 48/18 48/19
18/23 48/24 48/5 49/9 49%8/10
49/13 50/8 54/21 54/21 55/18
59717 60/25 12/5 72/71 72/14

photo [13} 23/12 23/15 24/5
26/23 99/25 100/1 100/3
101/15 128/22 128/23 131/18
131/25 132/5

photegraph [17] 4/6 4/9 4/10
24/21 88/25% 102/5 130/15
131/8 131/12 131/14 131/19
132/1 132714 132/16 132/21
132/24 132/25

photographs [5] 4/7 4/11 4/13

8/5 8/11 8/13

99/6 126/11

photos [10] 18/24 20/3 20/5
23/25 27/8 29/4 130/12
130/13 130/17 130/23

physical [10] 96/2 113/3
113/10 113/12 113/16 114/24
115/7 115/17 135/20 135/21

physically [1] 65/24

picked {1] 62/2

picture [7] 17/24 22/15 24/1
24/7 26/9 271/5 106/7

pictures [6] 18/9 18/10 19/22
19/22 19/23 26/16

piece {21 68/14 132/23

pieces [2] 14/4 15/16

pink {1} 102/11

pinpoint [1] 136/19

place [4] 65/3 79/23 93/11
140/9

Placer [1}] 12/9

Plaintiff [1} 1/6

plastic [1] 15/21

play (3] 55/20 58/2 58/3

playing [2] 55/15 56/23

please [19%] 10/7 10/14 10/23
34/18 35/9 64/25 69/16 83/6
83/13 83/22 91/24 92/6 92/15
109/1 109/8 109/19 122/4
122/11 122/20

pocket [1] 61/2

pockets [1] 61/2

point [24] 18/20 18/25 22/7
30/5 33/13 43/10 54/6 55/16
56/4 57/10 63/23 68/9% 70/25
73/6 73/12 14/3 78/23 82/21
86/22 50/9 90/15 102/9
116/20 121/1%6

pointed [1] 69/20

peointing [1] 59%/2C

poison [1] 59/6

police [34] 6/9 42/2 42/4
42/11 42/20 43/9 43/12 43/15
43/17 44/5 45/4 45/5 50/1%
53/4 72/16 72/19 73/1 13/3
79/5 84/13 84/15 50/5 93/5
93/6 93/8 93/12 93/15 93/17
93/20 94/2 94/3 110/11
110/12 119/19

poeor [1] 101/15

poeorly [1l] 101/16

popping [2] 66/21 66/23

portion [2] 26/23 27/4

pertions [2] 26/1 27/24

Peortland [1] 123/20

pessible [3] 9/14 28/5 98/20

post [3] 94/15 95/2 117/13

potential [1] 96/8

potentially [3] 28/15 29/17
30/21

practice [2] 12/4 125/9

preceding [1] 141/4

prefer [1] 81/7

preliminary [1] 17/1

prepare [3] 56/10 56/10
138/25

prerequisites [1] 123/13

presence [6] 34/3 81/16 91/9°
108/8 121/1 137/15

present [B] 2/1 2/19 7/11
39/2 99/6 10073 119/18
130/17

presentation [1] 138/13

presented [6] 34/2 81/14 91/8
108/7 120/25 137/14

presenting [1] 5/15

preservative [1] 133/17

president [1] 87/23

pressure [5}] 7/24 29/23 29/25
30/4 32/21

pretty [4] 41/20 62/21 104/4
105/16

preventing [10] &/12 9/9 9/25
10/18 35/4 83/17 92/10
109/14 122/15 138/23

prevents [1] 9/12

previcusly [1] 139/2

primarily [1] 8/20

print [1] 141/21

prior [11] 5/22 16/18 17/11
32/2 32/4 110/16 110/17
110/1% 128/15 129/9 130/7

probably [1l] 16/15

probation [2] 9/15 9/20

problem {2] 35/5 52/15

problems [5] 32/21 52/1%
85/23 134/21 134/24

procedures [1l] 129/10

proceed [5] 11/3 35/14 84/2
92/19 109/24

proceeding [4] 5/22 /6 9/19
9/21

proceedings [l11] 1/18 5/7
33/24 81/12 91/5 108/4
120/22 137/11 139/6 140/8
140/13

process [1] 19/7

processes [1} 32/16

processer [1] 16/4

procurement [1] 129/8

produce [1] /8

program [3] 123/22 124/2
141/15

prohibited [7] 33/25 81/12
91/6 106/22 108/5 120/23
137/12

projector [1] 20/11

prolonged [2] 135/14 135/18

promise [1] 78/2

prompted [1] 129/22

proof [1] 7/1

proper [1] 28/1

property [1l] 9/4

proposed [5] 4/4 5/19% 5/25
6/5 139/1

prosecuting [1] 9/15

presecution [13] 6/14 7/11
9/10 6/19 9/21 10/2 10/20
35/6 83/19 92/12 109/15
122/17 138/24

provide [1] 118/10

provided [4] 118/7 118/19
118/20 120/16

provocation [1] 7/3

P83 [1] 80/12

publie [1] 141/15

pull [1] 102/4

pulled [1] 67/4

punching [8] &2/25 63/2 63/3
63/5 63/7 63/9 63/10 113/21

punishable [12] 34/6 34/8
81/19% 81/21 91/12 91/14
108/11 108/13 121/4 121/6
137/18 137/20

purple [4] 40/24 41/3 96/4

153




PN

P

purple... [1] 102/10C

purse [4] 60/25 61/3 72/22
12/23

Pursuant [1] 141/2

pursue [1] 13/1

push [1] 63/21

pushed [3] 115/13 116/13
116/13

pushing [5] 49/1 63/15 63/15
63/19 64/5

put [10] 14/1 15/21 20/2

20/11 31/10 61/23 61/24
61/25 64/20 94/14
putting [2}] 18/i8 101/2

Q

qualifications [1] 11/15
quality [1] 101/15
quarter [1] 15/19

question [9] 28/22 31/20
39/13 66/11 82/13 87/25
116/18 116/19 12%/4

questioning {1] 87/3

questions [23] 10/3 31/2
33/20 80/19 80/21 80/22
82/23 87/1 87/21 88/2 88/5
88/8 90/24 91/2 91/3 107/5
108/1 108/2 120/18 120/20
13777 137/9 138/10

quick [2} 20/21 23/8

quiet [3] 64/24 65/1 69/17
guieter [l] 64/5

quite [2] 95/15 135/17

R

raise [€] 10/7 34/18 82/6

91/24 109/1 122/4
raised [1] 114/6
ran [4] ©1/20 62/1 64/21
64/22
range [2]
rash [1]
rashness [1]
rather [1]
reached [1] 128/7
reactions [1] 32/1é
read [13] 6/5 6/6 13/5 36/25
43/6 43/6 80G/23 81/7 81/1¢
112/15 119716 119/17 119/17
real [3] 20/21 23/8 7%/10
really [15] 17/3 25/2 27/14
30/9 41/21 d8/16 49/3 55/13
53/25 536/1 66/24 69/4 T5/%9
80/3 129/9
reason [3]

104/4 135/15
102/14

96/1
133/2

31/12 87/1 125/4
reasens [2] 31/12 136/20
recall [15] 13/13 14/12 15/6
16/21 42/7 94/18 106/10
111/23 115/15 117/25 118/22
120/8 120/14 131717 133/21
recalling [1] 122/1
receive [2] 15/6. %4/21
received [4] 15/7 15/13 16/2
11/
receiving [1]
recently [1]
Recess [2] 83/3 121/20
recognize [20] 19/17 19/1%
25/18 26/6 50722 50/25 51/7
%1716 51/1% 51/22 51/24 67/8
88/25 99/11 99/18 100/9

27/25%
37/7

100/11 105/2 128/20 131723
recollection [6] 14/22 15/4
115/20 116/7 118/23 119/3
racord [9] 5/9 5/18 10/24
35/10 83/23 92/16 10%/20

122/21 140/12

record's [1] 25/14 respond {8] 85/8 85/10 85/17
recorded [1] 120/5 90/13 95/11 96/11 98/13 99/3
recorder [1] 120/6 responded [4] 98/8 98/15
records [3] 17/3 30/10 30/24 100/7 102/23
red [7] 24/22 26/3 76/7 76/8 |responding [1] 46/21

96/4 101/9 102/9 response [2] 5/11 76/13

redness [2] 104/7 104/12

refer [6] 14/22 104/21 115/1 93/14

115/19 115/22 118/24 restricted [1] 33/17
reference [1] 117/2 restroom [1] 120/13
references [1]1 117/11 result [4] 87/192 95/10
referred [1] 104/17 111/13 135/19
referring [3} 22/2 25/25 30/7|retuzn [1] 138/17
reflect [2] 5/9 5/18 returned [1] 138/20
refrain {2} 8/16 8/16 revarse [1] 23/6
refresh [6] 14/22 115/1 reversed [1] 132/24

115/20 116/7 118/23 1196/3
refreshed [2] 15/4 105/10
refused [1] 119/8
regard [l] $8/3
regarding [6] 82/9 82/14

90/16 117/4 119/3 119/11
regards [3] 6/4 10/3 138/190

region [2] 25/23 26/13 rib [1] 127/5

regular [2] 28/24 124/16 ribs [1] 8%/13

relate [1] 94/8 right [56]

related [1] 8/6 rights [5] 112/16 112/17

relation {1} 47/13

relationship [5] 8/9% 8/19 risk [1] 8/1

8/22 113/8 115/4 Rob [1] 2/20
relax [1] 76/21 robberies [1] 85/6
relevant [2] 130/92 130/16 ROBERT [B] 2/7 5/15 91/22
remainder [1] 5/22 92/17 92/21

remember [25] 14/19 26/9 36/2

rasearch [1]
residence [4]

residency [3]

residing [1]

responsibilities [2]

review [5]
reviewed [4]
reviewing [3]

revocation [1]

ROGELIO [1]

13/5

114/22 116/16
116/21 116/24

11/19 123/22
123/25

8/8

85/1

16/17 17/12 42/10
125/18 133/24

19/17 25/6 29/6
29/

17/6 126/13
129/12

9/20

119/16 119/21 119/22

Z/11

41/18 41720 49/8 4d9/11 50/18|rolled [4] 45/21 45/22 60/6
51/20 52/6 52/22 54/1 56/12 60/10
56/14 77/19 77/20 17/21 ROMERO [1] 2/15
86/15 89/18 104/11 114/25 room [53]
115/18 118/16 119/13 119/18 |Rosa (1] 11/24
remove [1] 127/20 rub [3] 76/20 104/18 104/18
removed {5} 21/11 127/11 rudimentary [1] 118/10
127/22 131/11 132/15 rupture [1] 90/1
removing [1l] &/l S
Reno [1} 124/6
repeatedly [1] 113/21 Sacramento [2] 12/2 12/7
repeating [1] 119/14 said [57]
replacing [1] &6/1 same [16} 14/5 14/8 15/22
report [11] 14/7 14/8 14/17 16/6 16/19 18/9 18/11 45/11

14/23 15/1 16/9 17/1 104/21
105/1 105/3 105/5

reported [2] 1/25 124/24 samples [1] 127/14
Reporter [1] 141/23 SAMUEL [1] 2/16
REPORTER'S [2] 1/18 140/1 San [3] 11/20¢ 11/22 11/24
reporting [11] 6/13 8/10 &/14{Santa [2] 11/24 37/6

10/1 10/19 35/5 83/18 92/11 |#at [1] 133717

1069/15 122/16 138/24 Saturday [2] 74/21 74/22
reports [3] 32/18 93/17 save [2] 127/25 129/22

126/11 saving [1] 30/21
rapresentative [1] 99/24 saw [2B] 17/20 18/15 18/17
request [3] 2/19 90/20 120/12f 19/1 24/10 2974 32/19 61/9
requested [2] 88/8 %0/18 62/14 65/3 65/11 65/12 65/13
requesting [1] 118/20 67/15 70/13 72/12 76/3 88/7
requests [2] 124/21 124/22 $7/4 99/12 100/19 102/3
require [1] 124/24 105/24 107/21 127/4 127/20
required [3] 6/34 7/11 141/11| 128/5 131/11
raquires [1] 125/10 say [28] 12/14 15/17 15/24

45/12 66/17 70/13 75/10
100/13 107/1 126/5 126/5
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sexual f1] 8/21
shall 7] T/2 10/11 34722

say... [25] 19%/10 29/1 30/1¢C
32/1% 33/7 40/5 40724 41/14
48/14 62/5 63/2 10/4 10/24
72/13 72/24 73/12 14/25 16/6
71/22 85/24 95/8 95/14
113/24 122/1 136/10

saying [16] 41/2 43/3 44/11
46/16 46/18 54718 55/25
63/20 65/6 66/4 66/5 66/7
71/2 716/10 82/15 117/15

says [3] 57/7 80/25 119/7

scalp [4] 127718 127/19
131/1 131/9

seans [3] 24/25 25/5 25/13

scared [1] 97/5

scars [1] 126/21

scene [1] 90/12

school [7] 11/17 36/20 36/22
37710 94/13 123/17 123/18

schooling [1] 11/16

Sciences [1] 123/21

seratch [2]  70/21 101/23

scratched [3] 59/19 59/20

59/21

scratches [7] 70/16 89/19

89/21 104/15 104/16 104/17

105/15

scream [2] 64/12°120/1

screaming [7] 45/23 45/24

46/2 64/11 64/25 69/16 79/2

screeching [1] 46/24

sealed [1] 19/6

seat [11 34/25

seated [5] 10/14 83713 92/6

108/8 122/11

second [7] 18/2% 1%/16 19/25%

22/17 47/7 54/25 80/18

secret [7] 33/25 80/25 81/1%2

91/5 108/4 120/22 137/12

Secretary [2] 2/% 2/6

section [4] 8/18 15/24 25/10

135/24

sections [2]

security [2]

see [62]

seeing [1] 106/10

seek [2] 5/11 118/15

seeking [1] 9/20

seemed [2] 87/4 113/6

seen [6] 16/13 23/24 25/13

G6/11 68/20 107/23

15/25 24/16
141/8 141/11

self [4] 70/7 74/7 97/21
102/21

send [3] 127/25 129/23
133/18

sending [1] 32/13

senior [1] 93/20

sense [1] 20/17

sent [3] 85/18 120/6 133/21

sentences [3] 87/10 107/%
107/10

September [1] 124/8

sequence [l] 114/25

sergeant [1] 99/9¢

served [1] 110/19

service [1l] 93/16

seven [2] 84/17 110/14 112/3
several [6] 29/6 31/12 32/4
26/206 97/6 97/8 .

severity [1] 30/16

83/10 92/3 109/5 122/8
shaped [1] 127/1
sharply [1] 245/2

should [11] 26/18 26/19 26/22
26/24 27/5 32/14 40/14 74/8

128719 130/20
showed [2] 79/8 85/20
showing [9]
$1/6 67/12 38/4 78/17 105/18

131/22

shown [1] 24/25

shows [1] 132/3

shut [2] 64/24 65/7

sick [B) 76/4 76/5 76/8
76/18 17/6

side [39] 18/4 20/22 21/7

21/9 21712 21/25 22/1 22/3
22/20 23/21 24/ 25711 29/5%
65/2 65/5 65/12 65/16 65/17
70/1% 77/9% 77/9 89/8 89/9
89/12 101/13 101/14 105/15
165/15 105/i6 113/21 131/9
131/12 131/15 132/7 132/22
132/24 132/25 133/2 133/3
sides [2] 22/11 132/3

sign [1] 128/8

Signature [1] 141/19

signed {1] 13/21

significant [2] 130/11 134/8

signg [7] 95/17 95/20 97/15
98/21 99/3 135/23 137/2

similar [1] 117/15

sinee [6] 79/20 79/22 88/4
124/8 124/9 126/1%

sing [3] 37/7 37/9 37/10

sir {2] 84/12 105/10

sis [1] 75/16

sister [15]

56/24 37/4 58/13 58/16 58/16

22/24 24/10 29/1 30/14
127/20 131/2 131/3 131/10
132/15 132/16 132/17 132/19
132/25

slap [1]
slapped [5]

slapping [1}
sleep [9]

19/25 20/10 23/15 24/11 26/5 |soecial [3]
26/16 42/14 50/20 50/24 67/7|soft [1]

softer [1]
softly [1] 71/4
21/16 25/8 25/17 |solemnly [6]

some [36]

somebody [7]
someone [5]

somecne's [1]
something [21]

sometime [2]
sometimes [14]

somewhere [2]

song [1] 37/5
soon [2]
38/14 38/16 39/5 [soothing [2]
40/3 41/24 45/18 54/14 54/20 sorry [7]

speaking [4]

special [2]

115/16

59/18 72/8 115/5
115/14 118/1

113/19

45/11 45/12 11/24

shattered [1] 117/14. 73/18 74/13 74/15 16/20
she [239] 18/24 78/25
She'd [1] 64/12 slept [3] 45/1%9 45/19 45/19
She'll [1] 121/23 slide [3] 15/24 16/6 16/7
she's [7] 23/1 53/18 69/1 slides [1] 126/12

69/4 76/8 100/5 121/22 slight [1I] 104/9%

shipped [1] 123/17 slow [1}] 59/10

short [1] 11/23 slurred [1] 8'/10
shorthand [2] 140/7 140/10 small [9] 14/4 15716 15/21

16/18 16/18 16/23 29/8 96/¢
128/18

102/11 108/25 122/1 smell [4] 87/6 87/14 87/15
shoulders [1] 127/2 103/13
shouldn't [1] 19/13 smiley [1] 24/7
shoved [2] 113/13 115/5 SMITH [1] 2/16
shoving [1] 113/18 snaps [1] 47/8
show [15] 7/4 18/24 19/14 so [162]

8/23 141/8 141/11
31/15
63/23

10/% 34720 B3/8
82/1 109/3 122/6
11/15 11/16 13/1
18/25 40/15 51/22 74/3 77/22
78/23 82/9 82/14 87/21 89/12
80/15 97/13 101/12 101/16
102/11 104/9 104/10 104/12
165/14 113/7 114/19% 11574
115/4 116/20 i17/2 117/13
118/10 119/9 119/9 128/15
128/17 130/2 135/10
2%/2 30/17 37/19
45/2 49/7 €5/12 135/22
33/3 102/9 135/10
136/1 136/9
103/15

25/5 37/19
40/7 40/24 41/8 49/8 49/9
49/11 50/14 56/2 56/15 67/7
€9/18 69/19 71/10 75/24
16/17 76/19 77/22 88711
117/11
54/14 75/4

16/9 24/9
74/14 80/4 135/23 135/1
136/5 136/14 136/15 136/21
136/23 136/24 137/1 137/2
26/25 70/18

13/22 114/21

97/21 102/21
74/1 74/10 106/12
111/6 112/2 112/23 131/3

59/14 12/3 sort [5] 12/25 25/23 69/12
gister's [1] 59/8 87/5 130/2

sitting [3] 39/25 65/6 86/16 |sorts [1] 95/12
situations [1] 95/12 sought [1] 111/13
six [1l] 94/20 sounds [3] 17/7 56/16 126/17
size [3] 22/25 29/11 29/14 south [2] 45/3 45/23
skin [5] TH/L0 1T/L0 1f22 space [2] 19/12 26/1%

127/4 136/2 speak [B] 43/3 44/23 44/23
skull [18) 17/25 18/8 18/8 44/24 48/7 48/9 112/11

l1z/18

96/1 97/23
102/20 112/19

16/11 16/11
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specialist {I1] 129,23
specialized [2] 94/13 128/2
specific [4] 20/8 66/10
128/10 141712

specifically [8] 70/% 70/12
98/2 98/19 103/22 112/22
112/23 136/8

specimen [l] 26/25
specimens [1] 12/5

speech {1] 87/10

spell [9] 10/24 35/10 49/23
419/2% 49/25 83/23 92/16
108/20 122/21

spelled [3] 43/7 122/23

122/23
Spelling [1] 110/25
spent [2] 123/20 124/1
spinal [8] 22/23 22/25 23/4
23/10 26/14 27/14 28/1 28/7
spots [1] b8/18§
spouse [2] 8/5 8/5
Ss [1] 140/3
staff [2] 13/20 13/21
stain [1] 16/13

staining [2] 18/12 21/10
stains [2] 16/11 16/11
stairs [7] 44/19 47/11 47/13
64/18 65/18 66/1 1ll16/12
stand [2] 23/19 126/19
standard [2] 13/15 31/9
standing [5] 21/3 21/5 86/1¢
86/1% 132/2

stanford [1] 11/25

start [11] 20/13 20/14 24/15
30/12 44/4 44/9 52717 59/4
59/13 126/15 131/%

started [17] 55/17 57/1 57/2
57/16 59/5 60/9 61/10 61/10
64/3 65/1 87/2 114/24 115/3
115/ 115/17% 3116/10 121/23
starting [6] 22/22 22/22 23/2
23/2 26/13 116/4

starts [4] 30/13 30/18 32/2:2
12771
state [30] 1/5 5/16 5/25 6/4

T/12 /14 10/5 10723 33/7
33/10 35/9 83/22 84/20 91/22
92/15 108/21 109/19 111/1%6
111718 113/12 121/18 122/1
122/3 122720 125/10 125/16
138/12 140/3 141/12 141/16

State's [2] 34/16 83/4

stated [2] 115/16 138/6

statement [31] 34/3 42/14
81/8 81/15 91/9 98/23 108/8
115723 118724 121/1 137/15

statements [20] 34/2 42/11
55/3 81/14 88/12 88/17 91/8
108/7 114/3 114/9 114/13
114/23 115/9 116/15 116/23
117/10 117/24 119/11 120/25
137/14

Station [2] 58/2 58/3

stay [8] 13/3 57/11 57/18
60/7 60/15 77/2 107%/13 130/8

stayed [3] 44/16 57%/12 57/20

steak [1l] 56/14

Stenotype [1] 140/7

Stephens [5] 2/20 5/15 17/3
17/22 82/4

still [11] 23/16 55/12 60/13
63/21 65/8 73/21 73/23 15/21
100/22 119/21 132/19

stop [9] 32/17 45/25 56/25
ST/T 57711 64/12 64725 65/6
127/18

stepped [2] 32/23 44/14

stopping [1] 64/12

stops [1] 32/11

strangled [4] 97/16 135/11
135/22 138/1

strangulation [32] 6/12 7/17
7/19 7/21 1/22 10/18 345/4
83/17 90/2 92/10 9474 94/9
94/17 95/12 95/18 95/21 96/8
98/21 98/22 99/4 102/3
109713 111/3 111/7 122/15
135/8 135/12 135/14 135/18
136/21 137/2 138/22

street [1] 49/24
stretchy {1] 18/2

strike [1] 133/10
striking [1] 130/5
strong [2] 56/2 103/14
struck [7] 113/23 113/24

113/25 114/8 117/19% 119/12
130/5 )
structure [2] 26/11 26/11
structures [1] 23/3
studies [1] 12/11

study [4] 11/21 12/24 17/4
36/24
stuff [17] 41/1i6 43/4 45/5

45/21 45/24 46/19 46/24 58/8
5%/14 61/2 64/4 64/12 66/3
74/9 75/15 77/8 80/14
subdural [2] 19/5 22/5
subject [2] 37/3 137/1
subjects [1] 36/24
submitted [2] 138/14 139/2
submitting [1] 138/3

subsequently 1] 17/2
subspecialty [1] 13/1
substantial [1] 8§/1

such [6] 7/8 9/5 9/21 9/23
12/16 17/21

sudden [1] 65/13

suffered [3] 16/25 21/14
29/21

sugar [1] 50/11

suicides [1] 125/2

summarize [1] 11/16

sunday [2] 74/21 74/22

superintendent [1] 9/17
supervision [1] 140/11
supervisory [l] 93/18
supposed [2] 36/7 36/9
sure [9] 17/4 21/7 26/21
28/25 33/2 106/6 115/24
120/10 126/3
surface [B] 18/6 131/13
132/19 132/20 136/23
surfaces [4] 126/17 128/18
129/12 132/9
surgical [1}
survived [1]
survives (1]
suspect [1]
sustain [1]
sustained [3] 28/6 28/7 28/20
swallowing {1] 95/25
swaying [1] 87/16

12/5

136/9

135/12
111/15
136/13

swear [6] 10/9 34/20 83/8
92/1 108/3 122/6
swell [2] 32/22 32/24
swelling [8] 18/18 18/19
21/14 25/1 26/20 89/9 101/22
129/21
swing [1]
swinging [2]
swollen [5]
28/9 101/11
swoxrn [7] 5/5 11/7 35/17
84/5 92/22 110/3 123/2
swung [2] 117/6 117/1¢6
symptoms [8] 95/17 95/20
97/15 97/18 99/3 135/10
135/13 135/15

115/11
113/22 117/12
26/15 26/16 27/11

T

take [28] 6/25 12/12 12/20
14/4 15/16 17/25 18/7 19/15
23/24 48/4 53/13 53/21 53/23
51/21 14/14 T4/19 €2/7 83/2
99/15 105/7 119/9 125/6
127/5 127/20 130/12 130/13
131/19 134/16

taken [10] 1/12 21/23 99/7
100/24 106/7 130/18 130/25
131/8 132/1 132/14

taking [1] 13/25

talk [21] 37/11 39/14 a43/12
43/17 43/22 46/23 46/25
49/12 53/9 70/8 71/3 73/25
75/6 15/8 88/24 103/10¢
104/15 1071/16 112/19 119/21
135/7

talked [4}
104/10

talking [15] 19/3 43/20 48/2
48/5 52/7 52/13 66/5 71/4
74/8 18/9 78/15 78/20 87/2
101/19 102/19

tall [1] 126/18

taped [1] 112/13

tatteoes [1] 126/21

teach [2} 12/3 94/2

teaching [2] 93/21 93/24

technical [1] 134/22

technicians [1] 16/5

techs [1] 13Q/15

tell [27] 18/19 19/11 19/16
23/19 24/23 36/6 36/7 40/4
40/7 406/10 40/11 40712 41/2
41/12 41/15 60/19 68/10 81/1
89/11 103/15 112/24 113/4
116/9 119/5 131/6 132/12
136/18

telling [5]
86/18 117/1

tells [2] 22/20 23/1

ten [2] 47/6 B3/2

tendering [1] 138/8

TERESA [1] 2/10

term [3] 8/21 27/13 136/16

terms [B] 12/24 28/24 28/24
32/10 107/14 134/14 134/20
134/22

testified [8] 11/9 30/5% 35/19
84/7 92/24 110/5 117/6 123/4

testifies [1] 6/17

testify [6] 11/8 35/18 84/6
$2/23 110/4 123/3

testimony [15] 10/9 10/16

43/14 50/15 104/7

41/1 41/6 41/12
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T

testimony... [13] 34/20 35/2
82/9 82/14 83/8 83/15 $2/1
92/8 104/23 109/3 109/11
122/6 122713

testing [2] 127/14 127/15

than [9] 13/2 21/13 26/1
4%/1 47/8 103/19 116/18
133/2 138/15

Thank [36] 11/2 11/5 24/13
31/18 33/22 34/13 34/15
35/13 80/16 82/1 82/3 83/2
B4/1 90/23 91/19 91/21 92/18
107/25 108/18 108/20 109/9
109723 110/1 111/2 121/11
121/13 121/19 122725 125/17
134/10 1377/2% 13872 138/14
139/3 139/4 139/5

that [527]

that's [58]

their [12] 12/8 29/2 39/22
53/19 57/22 58/2 58/18 62/3
71724 115/12 123/24 136/12

them [25] 16/6 19/17 19/17
19/18 19725 20/1 20/11 42/24
42/25 43/1 43/3 45717 49/15
50/1 50/3 56/18 66/5 66/
112/18 126/20 1271/11 127/12
127/13 136/21 136/23

then [121]

there [104]

there's [22] 12/23 24/23 25/3
26/3 26/22 271/23 28/21 2%/1
29/25 31/12 32/4 67/18 95/24
96/1 107/12 128/20 127/24
129/5 131713 131/16 132/8
136/4

thereafter [1] 140/9

theraof [1] 9/7

these [32] 6/15 6/15 13/18
16/11 1%/4 18/4 18/25 19/19
19/22 20/3 20/5 20/10 22/11
24/19 24722 25/5 25/15 26/15
27/7 27/23 28/16 31/21 33/24
81/11 91/5 99/1% 100/7
100/18 108/4 120/22 137/11
138/11

they [54]

they're [9] 15/17 16/1 16/3
19723 26/19 55/% 135/16
135717 135/17

they've [1] 126/20

thiek [1] 15/21

thin [1] 16/5

thing [13] 17/5 18/23 21/12
24/24 32/9 32/11 37/18 78/9
78/10 80/24 82/12 103/20
115/4

things [9] 12/16 28/19% 32/4
66/4 113/16 114/18 126/3
126/22 135/21

think [20] 12/12 27/15 38/22
40/6 48/1 50/14 50/24 51/17
56/14 59/6 65/11 77/1% 79/6
§2/25 103/11 107/23 111/6
114/17 114/18 117/14

third [2] 48/17 87/24

this [168]

THOMAS [1] 2/17

thorough [l] 98/5

those [37] 8/11 9/24 12/16

15/21 15/25% 16/1 16/5 16/21
19716 27/7 29/6 29/12 52717
53/18 53/19 82/20 88&/2 88/4
88/8 89/25 95/17 97/18 98/21
102/12 104720 112/22 124/25
125/4 129/22 130/17 130/22
130/23 130/25 134/10 134/25
137/2 138/8

though [4] 21/3 21/23 59/12
69/4

thought [1] 77/22

thoughts [1] 107/11

threat [1] §&/14

threaten [2] 9/5 73/6

threatened [1] 54/20

threatening [2] 6/7 9/11

threats [1] 9/8

three {10] 31/23 31/25 32/2
32/3% 33/1 33/16 38/22 53/1
54/8 88/23

throat [4] 7/24 95/25 103/21
103/23

through [16] 14/6 16/3 19/15
24710 25/15 27/19 30/13
55/14 72/11 T72/12 84/18
%9/15 99/19 99/22 100/17
130/21

Thursday [7] 1/13 52/25 53/8
74/1 74720 74/24 18/24

tilted [1] 21/25

time [64]

timelines [1] 31/6

times [7] 48/16 88/23 95/7
95/8 85/14 96/4 99/8

tissue [6] 15/17 le/12 22/12
26/13 26/15 21/11

Title [1] 141/23

today [13] 10/15 35/1 35/24
36/2 36/9 40/5 80/25 B2/11
B3/14 92/7 104/24 10%/11
122/12

together [11 79/18

told [10] 17/22 36/1 43/3
59/14 60/2 73/3 74/8 98/20
114/15 119/%5

tones [1] 120/4

too [7] 62/6 63/12 69/19
80/12 104/8 104/19 104/19

tock [22] 15/14 18/10 19/22
20/5 26/15 50/11 54/4 60/9
61/3 61715 61/23 62/2 62/2
66/3 68/4 68/9 75/15 102/9
114/6 119/6 131/17 140/7

tool [1] 9/6

top [11] 14/12 14/19 42/8
58/20 62/25 101/18 127/20
131/10 131/18 132/15 132/17

topies [1] i07/11

123/1% 123/22 128/2
transcribe [1] 5/6
transcribed [3] 115/23 118/24

140/10
transcript [5] 1/18 115/1

115/19 140/12 14174
transcription [1] 120/7
translate [1] 15/20
transmit [1] 26/17
transmitted [1] 30/1
transpired [6] 34/1 81/13

91/7 108/6 120/24 137/13
transpert [1l] 90/17
transported [2] 13/23 16/1
trapezius [1] 101/18
trauma [14] 12/17 16/24 28/21

28/23 29/21 29/22 32/1 32/3

33/10 33/12 33/15 130/1

130/2 135/1
treat [1] 30/17
treated [1] 103/7
treatment [3] 118/6 118/15

118/18
tried [3] 30/25 107/16

118/10
troeper [1] 84/20
trouble [3] 41/9 41/9 102/20
true [2] 138/19 140/12
truth [49]
try [9] 48/10 60/25 71/6

T2/7 T2/16 T76/22 871/12 98/17

9979
trying [1ll} 15/20 44/23 59/6

60/4 68/12 72/14 72/18

105/22 116/12 118/11 133/6
tube [1] 128/14
Tuesday [1] 74/20
tumors [2] 12/5 12/17
turn [3] 20/17 47/16 76/%8
turned [3] 18/16 58/1 71/19
turns [1] 77/17
™ {1] 56/1
T™Vs [1] 80/14
two [13] 11/22 22/11 31/11

31717 48/16 53/1 54/8 59/25

82/6 82/20 95/15 125/12

134/15
Tylenol [2] 119/9 119/9
type [18] 28/15 28/16 87/5

87/7 94/1 95/12 97/12 1C1/9

103/19 104/20 105/22 105/24

113/7 115/4 115/4 117/2

127/16 127/24
types [53] 16/21 19/1C 28/19

124/4 124/13
typically [4] 124/5 126/15

131/19 136/22
TYRON [3] 1/8 5/17 37/15

torso [1] 105/17
total [1] 110/18

U

towards [8] 22/23 23/4 23/10
23/23 26/14 101/14 104/22
119/10

town [2] 13/16 37/6

toxieology [1] 127/14

track [1] 87/11

tracked [1] 13/18

tract [1] 26/19

traffic [1] 85/2

trained [1] 95/16

training [10] 920/4 94/1 94/8
94/11 94/19 94/22 95/4

uh [47] 33/5 39/4 3%/21
43/21 47/3 47/20 48/13 52/14
53/5 53/22 56/3 57/9 58/4
58/8 58/10 60/11 61/7 61/21
62/7 62/12 64/15 65/5 65/20
67/6 68/5 68/19 68/23 69/25
70/14 71/5 T1/13 72/6 12715
73/15 713/17 73/22 74/24
75/19 75/24 16/11 17/3 17/24
79/11 79/15 80/11 80/13
80/15

Uh-huh [36] 33/5 43/21 47/20
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sobbatil b

Uh=huh... [33] 48/13 52/14
53/22 56/3 57/9 58/4 58/8
58/10 60/11 61/7 61/21 62/
62/12 64/15 65/5 65/20 61/6
68/5 68/19 68/23 69/25 71/5
12/6 13/15 73/17 13722 76/11
77/24 19/11 79/15 80/11
80/13 80/15

Uh-oh [1] 39/4

ultimately [3] 11/23 14/8
133/8

uMC [1l] 90/18

uncomfortable [1] 71/25

uncomfortableness [1] 97/23

uancommon [1] 18/22

under [8] 14/5 16/7 19/6
87/17 94/16 119/23 125/4
140710

undergone [l1] 128/16

underneath [4] 19/9 101/13
102/3 136/2

underside [6] 18/3 18/5 21/21
26/10 98/6 102/11

undersigned [1] 141/4

understand [21] 10/21 17/20
17/23 26/21 27/14 34711 35/7
43/2 44/3 48/14 48/17 81/2
81/24 83720 91/17% 92/13
108/16 109/17 121/9 122/18
137/23

understanding [2] 33/2 853/20

understood [1] 119/21

unique [2] 125/23 126/7

University [9] 11/20 11/24
1271 13/19 102/23 123/17
123/18 123/21 133/22

unlawful [4] 6/19 6/20 7/17
8/24

unlawfully [2] &/24 7/20

unless [1] 32/23

until [3] 19/6 33/4 57/20

unusual [1] 129/18

up [58]

update [1] 13/8

upon [15] 7/18 7/20 8/4 9/3
9/4 10/10 28/13 34/21 55/5
83/9 92/2 109/4 111/9 122/7
133/24

upper [3] 26/23 105/17
128/24

upset [1] 97/3

upside [2] 20/15 20/16

upstairs [5] 57/21 €2/1 64/21
64/22 15/15

Ursula [1] 40/3

us [25] 13/1 13/17 18/11
23/20 34/1 36/11 39/19 54/15
56/19 60/2 71/24 80/9 81/14
B7/1 91/7 102/6 108/6 112/18
114715 119/22 120/24 121/24
136/18 137/13 139/2

use [13] /8 1/9 1/18 9/2
9/7 44/18 56/20 68/12 68/20
72/7 103715 127%/4 127/19

used [6] §/18 68/18 711/19
g0/8 95/4 117/14

uses [1l] 7/20

usually [5] 74/13 74/16 80/1
90/1 131/20

V-I-T-A-L [1] 83/25

vacuum [31] 61/11 62/2 64/24

65/15 66/3 67/5 67/14 67/15

68/1 68/4 68/13 68/13 68/18

68/20 68/22 68/24 69/1 69/3

69/7 69/9 113/22 114/8

114710 117/4 117/4 117/6

117/10 117712 117/13 117/17

119/12

vague [1] 116/19

variety [3] 12/15 124/22

136/20

various [3] 6/21 111/14

114/18

Vegas [14] 1/12 5/1 84/1l4
84/16 84/17 84/25 85/11
88715 93/7 93/% 93/15 96/9
110/12 140/14

vehicle [1] 125/2

vein [1] 66/23

verbal [5] 113/1 113/4 113/5
113/9 1ile/11

verify [l] 16/13

versus [2] 5/16 122/2

vertical [1] 25/15

very [25] 16/5 17/4 18/2
18/2 23712 24/13 26/14 26/15
27/11 29/23 29/23 31/15
50/11 66/10 76/4 80/23 B1/9
96/2 97/5 97/5 102/8 103/%
107/3 107/7 135/7

vessels [2] 27/21-102/12

via [1] 13/17

Vviecks [3] 76714 76/16 76/17

vietim [19] 6&/13 9/9 9/12
9/13 9/23 10/1 10/19 35/5
83/18 92/11 95/22 95/23
96/21 109/14 111/12 113/2
115/10 122/16 138/23

viewed [1} 19/1

violence [19] &/11 7/16 7/18

7/20 8/3 9/2 9/5 10/18 35/4

83/17 92/10 94/1 94/4 94/16

109/13 122/15 124/25 125/1

138/22

visit [2] 54/15 106/21

visits [1] 38/15

vital [4] 83/5 83/25 84/4

96/20

voice [B] 22/9 46/24 64/10

97/22 136/4

vobte [1] 138/19

W

WAGNER [1] 2/17

wait [B] 15/18 44/25 72/25

M4/6 15/17

waiting [1] 5/10

waived [2] 112/18 119/22

wake [4] 74/2 714711 79/24
80/1

walk [3] 71/6 82/5 116/12

walked [1] 59/15

walking [6] 47/19 47/21 52/13
66/1 11/8 11/9

wall [3] 45/19 61/25 72/10

want [20] 11/14 17/15 18/25
22/14 23/16 26/5 31/20 33/2
41/17 43/22 53/9 68/9 88/24
112/22 113/14 117/3 118/9
129/4 130/7 135/7

wanted [6] 5/23 63/17 82/25
118/15 119/7 119/21

warden [1] &/16

warrant [2] 111/13 111/14

was [360]

wasn't [10} 28/4 32/13 41/1
43/1 50/6 59/10 59/11 65/6
130/11 134/23

watch [5] 58/3 58/5 58/7
60/24 61/5

watches [1] 54/15

watching [3] 58/8 58/23 59/1

water [2] 71/19 120/13

way [21] 13/15 14/8 16/2
18/4 20/7 20/17 20/19 21/18
22/14 23717 24712 24/17
29/12 45/3 65/2 65/7 37/2
107/12 117/21 12941 135/13

we [111]

we'd {1] 121/23

We'll [2) 20/13 83/1

we're [19] 22/10 23/20 24/17
25/10 25/11 26/12 31/16 36/2
36/2 36/5 36/9 41/22 52/1
66/% 78/2 88/14 106/6 106/6
131/7

we've [2] 23/24 127/10

weapon [1] 7/8

wearing [4] 40/24 40/24 41/2
4173

Wednesday [4] 53/7 53/9 33/12
74720

week [2] 74/17 88/1

weeks [2] 31/11 31/17

weigh [2] 126/19 127/11

weighed [1] 127/22

welcome [1] 90/25

well [29] 15/13 28/3 28/8
29/11 30/39 31/16 32/14 41/20
43/2 43/20 44/9 50/1%6 68/25
89/22 90711 94/4 94/17 95/2
98/18 102/21 103/23 117/21
118/5 126/18 127/8 128/17
131/9 131/19 133/7

want [47] 11/17 11/19 43/4
44/18 44/24 48/17 48/24
4%/17 49/25 50/9 55/1% 56/10
57/8 57/21 80/2 60/12 60/16
60/21 61/10 61/11 61/12 62/1
64/2 64/2 64/19 64/23 66/2
67/19 69/14 T0/12 711/14
T1/15 72/3 13/16 11/3 17/4
78/25 94/13 94/18 96/16 98/4
98/12 106/16 114/16 118/13
123/17 133/22

ware [97]

what [201]

what's [21] 15/16 21/7 23/9
24/16 32/13 36/12 371/5 37/14
37/16 37/25 38/2 38/16 43/4
76/16 88/25 96/2 99/18 $9/21
105/19 126/15 128/1¢

whatever [4] 106/22 117/15
118/20 127/15

when [135]

whenever [6] 13/1% 17/25
29/24 30/2 32/5 32/15

where [45] 7/19 15/24 15/25
16/4 18/20 19/13 20/24 23/9
24/2 36/6 37/9%9 45/14 45/13
46/4 46/7 47/13 58/14 59/16
59/25 60/5 €0/12 60/21 62/16
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W

where... [22] 62/23 63/3
64/20 67/21 69/21 70/18
71/14 78713 79/23 80/4 86/12
87/11 93/6 102/11 103/16
103/18 111/20 113/2¢ 114/7
123/22 123/23 124/3

where's [4] 61/12 61/12 64/4
76/14

whether [10] 13/13 14/14
27/25 114710 115/15 117/24
118714 119/6 119/11 131/17

which [30] 6/22 6/25 8/1
8/15 8/16 9/1 11/21 13/23
l6/2 16/10 18/2 19/6 19/23
21/14 21/14 22714 23/24
30/12 31/10 32/5 32/9 68/10
124/24 125/12 126/16 132/14
134722 135/25 136/20 138/4

while [2] 11/8 128/17

whiplashes [1] 29/2

whispering [3] 48/6 75/9

75710

white [4] 25/2 32/18 77/10
96/4

whites [1] 96/5

who [33}] 8/12 %/11 9/23

13/10 16/5 18/10 30/16 37712

3721 37/23 38/13 39719

35723 41/22 50/13 57/3 57/3

58/11 78/5 78/7 86/2 87/23

95/1 96/19 110/24 114/23

116/10 119/19 125/3 125/19

128/1 133/21 135/10

whoaver [1] 4%/12

whole [18] 10/11 11/8 17/5

34/22 35718 45/7 68/17 83710

84/6 92/3 92/23 97/22 107/14

109/5 110/4 122/8 123/3

1273/7

whom [4] 8/6 8/7 8/8 8/10

whoop [2] 54/22 73/8

why [17] 21/23 27/10 36/1

36/2 36/4 42/23 49/22 57725

60/17 70/4 15/20 16/6 85/17

§8/10 90/20 103/11 125/25

will [15] 5/18 6/15 19/1%

20/13 20/17 23/3 23/4 32/24

101/11 108/24 115725 121/18

121/21 121/25 130/21

willful [1] 7/17

willfully [1] 7/19

Wiseeonsin [1] 123/25

wit [1] 141/13

withdrawing [1] 121/18

WITHDRAWN [1] 4/8

within [1] 31/7

without [4] 28/17 28/18 85/18

133/4

witness [22] 6/13 9/9 9/13

9/24 10/1 10/6 10/1% 31/2

34/16 35/5 36/6 67/10 77/25

83/4 B3/18 92/11 108/24

109/14 121/17 121/25 122/16

138/23

WITNESSES (1] 2/1

WOJCIECHOWSKI [1] 2/3

woke [1l2] 44/12 45/8 45/22

45/23 74/5 74/6 74/7 14/7

74/11 74/12 15/3 79/1

word [5] 43/23 46/18 46/18

49/24 117/1%

wording [1] 51/22

words [d] 46/18 61/10 54/3

87/10

work [16] 12/12 13/6 44/10
44/11 44/15 46/17 46/19
53/14 53/15 54/4 68/13 74/16
84723 110/22 118/9 118/13

worked [9] 11/22 11/24 11/25%
12/1 12/6 84/15 93/8 124/3
124/6

working [1] 124/9

works [1] 53/1%

worse [3] 32/15 32715 107/2

would [52]

wouldn't [3} 26/17 28/3 30/6

write [2] 16/8 16/8

writing {1] 50/18

written [1] 12/3

wrote [3] 42/18 51/15 51/20

Y

Y-shaped [1] 127/1

yeah [33] 15/18 23/18 24/8
28/18 31/14 36/10 40/1 45/10
46/3 46/22 47/9 48711 48/24
49720 50/17 51/23 53/16 56/8
57/6 57/24 58/20 60/14 69/2
69/8 73/5 78/6 8/19 79/22
79/22 80/6 80/8 103/8 113/6

year [10] 33/3 34/6 236/14
B1l/19 91/12 108/11 121/4
124/1 124718 137/18

years [16] 11/22 12/1 12/8
84/18 84/24 84/25 B86/8 90/5
93/10 94/20 110/15 110/19
11%/19 123/21 124/7 125/12

yell [3] 57/1 66/11 120/1

yelling [1D0] 44/9 44/10 44/13
45/9 46/14 47/1 55/17 55/24
66/8 66/9

yells [1] 66/14

Yep [1] 73/24

yes [22B]

yesterday [7] 39/17 3%/17
40/15 41/12 42/15 42/17
50/20

yet [4] 19/25 56/20 59/4
59/11

YOLAWNDA [1] 2/4

you [767]

you'd [2] 50/25 135/21

you'll [4] 21/12 21/15 22/10
113/15

yeu're [36] 17/25 18/7 19/2

20/16 21/3 21/5 21/6 22/2

24/9 25/25 28719 30/2 32/17

34/13 36/7 37/11 239/12 40/23
40/23 41/2 41/2 55/7 58/9

38/11 58/25 76/18 19/21
90/25 91/19 99/16 101/1¢

101/25 105/8 108/18 121/11
137/25

you've [8) 12/12 12/15 19/17
21/7 29/5 36/11 93711 117/5
124/9

young [2] 353/23 75/21

younger [1] 32/10

your [224]

yours [1] 51/17

yourself [2] 175/25 81/5
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| Te The Honorable Jodge of the Bighth Judicial Disteiet Court of

Electronically Filed
02/28/2014 12:40:10 PM

A b i

CLERK OF THE COURT

Bireet, Smls, HA2E
"‘ddﬂ &91 §‘§

;’f\.l;qunex for Defeiidan

DISTRICY COURT
; REVABA

LLARK COUNTY,

It the Matier b the Application of) L .
CASENQ, Ca14-295313-1

_m T NO. XXV

Maya,
ey Corpus.

Amhmn Tyr

i
2

PETTION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORMUS

The Stiste of Nevada, in and forthe Comty of Clark

The Petition of Asthony Tyron Maye-sobwitied by AMY A, FELICIANG, Deputy
Public Défender, a5 attorsey v the shove-caplivosd indiidual, respoat) nlly afficors: ;

1. Thint she {8 a-duly :.qliéﬁi'i_'ff-f:ei:,j_;izrifi‘ﬁiiié;{i'!ig wid Heensed ‘aii(}ﬁm}f’-in“ﬁiiz Cliy ot Las |
'W?Si‘fﬁ, E?.‘fjmil-}"f ot Ol Eifk'.f;- Stalg oF Nevada: |

p That Peliioner nakey app!issamn fir & Waitof Habeas Cor pm, that the N;m

Eerz: the iuaiamam 1% ;mpmc-m,d dmmih preonstrnctiy ely impuisoned and restrained of hm mm.riv

is {he L.‘];_u-}ﬁ {._.m;n_tg_IJ@-_{Qnt_m;x _{_,_e.gz_m_,_E.lx..r_t:lh_e. officer by whony he §s ilng}rm;::r;ﬁrd m;gi{ _1‘-(33&1‘@111’1@!#"1'3
Doug Gillesple; Sheritf,

A, That thiipprisonment &nd resbint of said -‘E?Ei_fi-t_i{?n_t‘ziﬂi:l% undawiul in 'ﬂj'li!_-t_f_]flf}
The State -tiiﬁ notpresens the exealpators evidence that Mao asked this State t prosent unflleﬁ |

172, 085(2% (2) The ium_uaﬁ;r;:‘,z“tﬁ-:-gﬁféﬁng e u-se"‘-ujlf":;i; vacuany eleaner fu the Tadictment must be
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Een)

Domestic Violence - -Strangulation, Coercion, and Preventing or Dissuading 2 Wilness or Victim
From Reporting Crime of Commencing Prosccution; and (5) The State introduced many prejudicial

and improper bad-acts evidence,

4. That Petitioner consents that if Petition is not decided within |5 days before
the date set for trial, the Courl may, withoul notice ol hearing, continue the trial indefinitely 10 a date

desighated by the Coutd.

5. That Petitioner personally authorized his aforementioicd attorney to -

comimence this action.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays that this Honorable Court make an order directing
the County of Clark to issue a Writ of Habeas Corpus directed to the said Doug Gillespic, Sheriif,
commanding him to bring the Pelitioner before your Honor, and return the cause of his
imprisonment,
DATELD this ?/‘__i of February, 2014.

PIMLIP J. KOHN
CEARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

/
AMWA. FELICTANG, 79596
Deputk Fublic Deferdder
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DECLARATION
AMY AL FELICTANO makes the following declaration:

L. Lamcanattomey duly Heersed to practice Taw i the Stwie of Nevada; Lam the-

{)‘@p_ aky Piﬁﬂ'ﬁiﬂ Detender &S&igj‘i{;\i 1 represerit thtﬂeiendmﬁ v the i:s;s._iﬁn; ritgster, and g l‘%im Hur

1| with the faets and elreumstanses of fhis case, |
2. That | arh the antorivey of record for Petitioner in the gbove matior, Sat Fhave

pead the ferggoing Petition, kiiow 1he vonlents thereol, and hat the same i e of iy own

knovdedge, exedpt Tor hose matlers thoredi staled ‘oivinfonmativn ahd beled, dnd 48 0 togé matis,

{ believe them fo be fruey that Petithoner, ANTHONY TYROE MAYQ, personally authorizés

pomence thig Writof Habeas Corpus dition,

53045

EXECUTED this ‘25

s
19

]

b

: 26
37
: ¢
E b
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X7

Rg;m-;im;%

ey, and i desponse, Maya sent the Siite B ceftified Rtleron Deceibior 1,03 Ry

asked oy the ollowing exsulpatary evidencely

INSUPPORT OF PETITION FORWRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
COMES NOW fhe etibioner; ANTHI

counsel, AMY AL FELICIANOG, e Clark ({mm} Public: Defonder's. Offiee, and subynits. the
i+ following Poins and duthorities i Suppert of Defendant's Petition for a pretrial Writ of Habess

Il Corpus,

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Amimm \ef‘m; 5 chargui b‘{ Indmmcni mth Mmdm Baﬂmy & mmaiumag L‘)mmmr

Violenoe—8 :‘umgu?ahunf (‘emimr aud I‘wwninm ar [}awzmhna .'rv}ﬁ}\.}&% or K-“ic;iifii £rom

e

NI Gr [& ammgnciiig ?maxscuhs‘in foratleg sred aets agait ins; wife; ;fif;’fﬁ’."{?_i‘ir}?rﬁ-‘ﬁl‘lf‘?ﬂ.?—lﬁliﬁg

at

dlleged ifa:.}’_ita‘_‘\r":?{‘ﬁ:l(:(-,‘m‘r;‘é:fq._f onAugas § -1, {‘*11 EX A

Procedoral History:

For g '.-p,tfﬁb;ﬁ}ie:;"_é;faui.é:s;?_"'d-‘r:'.!{;rmjfﬂmhﬁxu; e Siate prosenied (hiv case o the ‘orand FHLY Hn

Tonnars 16, 3014, The State served Maya with dotice ofis oDt {0 prosent the easetg e grnd

o

B Iy

Maye’s seriified letiss, My informed the State Gl batsed on I}'}t:*'sfiisim}%‘&iijg tie had st that i 8, fres

be presented to thi-grasd firy:

Hospital fae
su;}pmt :

‘Ee.,I‘ ili’iﬂtiu.
<‘i§1 nrgan'

_ t:tr_; md as Em‘h Ther organs Wers
*;uppmt The: {mmp#&m‘ mf_i-rdmmm f OF

-- Huved: : the mﬂwiuvm»
T s timi \fic ﬂerfx.mr;* msx {a}mm pmt m;:ﬂan‘dmmu(m

{hoart valves, Ji \_5:{ spdeiy }cﬁ adrem? gland),

Lrand Juey Testimony

.....

At tlie’ Grind Jury; the State called he following wilnesses: Aghant Mayo: (Mave's

hictogical duoghter); Mantel Vital (Norh Lt Vepis pakice afffeery; Robeit Aker (Nerth Lay.

Vegas police -officery, Beijavdn thieng (Naith Las Viopas defee

4:

NY TYRON MAYO, by andl thiouph fis.
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9
10
¥

wers ome with Mayo. |

torensie nevropathologisty aid Alane Olsbn(Clark Coualy Cotondr™s Office migdical
examingr). The follosing testimony was given by thése witnesses.
Aslinei \Iag_m_

~Ashantt Is Mayo's-eleven (1 year-0ld blologion) deughter: PUT36-37. At the dnwe

of the alleged incidind, she wis nifie (9F yeurs old FHT 38 McFardine 3 Ashenii's

biological miother, FHT 38 Iy Augnst 2002, she-wes Hving with MeFulane, Mayo; and her

stster, Astley Mayo, PHT 380 Ash [g:y?Es-{:.mrfmﬂ'}{7&};;;.;- {# years old; PHT 33

Ashantt festifiod ‘%lim;‘-:};]:fm‘g;gsjs‘ 8,201 _;?_.‘ M é:.:i_?ii;'fl;ﬁne' was kaf. vwork, and 'SE:B&% st Ashlay.

| involying a vellular iph_@_nfc and 'ti?lti:_ tht‘m o ’*‘ggml I your sacaor P Ii ‘u--‘}'xm_}p-'f,*‘:tiit'.j*'": ﬂE’._I'i?I" :5‘4.

Al this point; the Stateadimonished the grand Jury W,  -ng Ut Fasd poard,™ s m'i! Ny

statements -ﬁ:{ﬂ;ﬁjs;‘! Ef§§=j',ﬁiﬁglﬁiirif-ziiisi!,. PHT 85,

| time, Ashunti, Ashley.and Nayo swere phaying widha ball. PIT 56, McFadne told them ta

' stop, bul Mayo 0l them o ventinue playing, and so-Ashaiti Q{j‘:_{i'i’;juéﬂ:p]a;}:‘;ﬂg‘ Beciuge

b

Mayn “staried tooyell at [Ash

MeFarldne, Ashley: and Mayo went upstalis dnd e dinner v McFuline and Mayo's

feddp.- PLTY 3%,

Dining dinner, Mayo safd that he thought McFarlane wis fying bo peisen Wm, YT

59, 'fsfvff,g}-‘cm%;‘s;:cmm- PRty aztd-&*{;:?_mri'zme ealled 911, PHIE S, Muyo “*;;;!"a_ppca"-atih

phioae: nut of s\.mafhm hdmi PHT 39, Mayo then et off of e bed a:‘xcz’:l;ffiﬁ:-ﬁked:

B MeFarlue. zm\i Sheat her up,” Pﬁ 55‘2
At this v, Ashantiobtained McForkaie's purss i find hy cellutar telephinne; bop

ws unable o Jocare it bedanss MeFarkane’s pursisbad 8 ok wf pockets and “s TotUaf stuffin

every pucket.” PHT 61,

Askanii withessed Mayo punch MeFatane in the dheek and ey¢ area. PHTGI, After

that, Mayoe g thaly vacuuin elener, amkd stot he amd MoFardane's bedmom door PHT 64,

- Asghiont testified fhat the vacounm cleaser was broken geior . Mayé b‘r,iﬂkiﬁﬁﬂg"ii‘ ato e

PHI56-87.  Chnce dignor was. frepard, Astanti,.

ol ulay
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g

hedroary. PHT 68.

vt Maye had vetled belfe. PHT 66 And when fie gels i, 8

Ashiml festified
el on his forchead wpjrenis . Ashant wpeculated that e velnls. appeatinGe meait thit
Mayo wag really mad PFTH5; Shis'sald that shie saw the vein on that day. PRT 68,
McButane soon opened thiir bedtoom Joer. BHT 70 She looked hurl, PRI 0. .
| Ashantitestified that “rostly when she géts in a Tight” she didnot Jook-like she d ;1 thiat clay,
1 pecanse ls;gf'ici-adf. d_'unff'l. agtually beather .-, 2 .‘i:'l_l'~rl;"'i" ?@ At this point, the: State na!dlﬁt‘s
talk oy dbowt this the specificaly. ..« ﬁ;}ﬂ i};xd.ie:s-gxgnd‘gmaﬂg\:;*nnﬁn_; you aee bgtruted to
digregard et PEIF?{!

thane had soratelhes oo hee face and diit In ber hair, PHT 70, MeFarund was

[| Uisping while shigwas walkng and onefey was dragging: PIT71. McFariane then fook 8
shosver aid veont 1o bed in she and Mayos bedroomn, PHT 7172,

MeFardine’s “collular telophone bad  dropped bebind & litde wefrigessior in
MeFariane’s hedroon, where Ashanti wai paable weregeh &, PHT7Z Whi Ashant] wag
fiving 16 pel McFarting’s. cetfali telophone, Mayo dick ot Say anylhing to b PHE 72.
Mayo knew fiat Ashanti was tying o eadl the. police Bévhuse Ashiand gat Melardane's
poese, PHT 72,

st thens Shanged her estimony and seid that Mayoiold ber “go shead™ and call

the potice; and then shanged her testimony agatu-and said thal be told her that ifshy ealled

3

- Gie-polios, he wanld “knoek aut fherfmor” PHT72-73.

Ashatd then egtified gy That wrbier In e day and u apetaged o Thiv neident, Mayo

had threatened to “whoop® her, PET 73,

i

The nekt day, Ashanti hesrd Mayo tell MoFikine that b wes sory anid b

MePartane “shold hase fust okt [him] die truth from thefind get go... & PHT T Later

vred, il sormally whetshe s
St Jid et nOUSe any WS on MeFarlanss e,

| PHT 77, That next gy whs othesivise nneventil, PHT 7879,

6
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i1 Ashanti also testified that Mayo was i ually pore Tror the hioue in the meraings and

2§ only McParlspe was theve with her, PHT 80,

3 0 Then, an Friday, Algist 10, 2002, the police canie 10 b honse, PHY 42, They
4 | eame to the house beeause Ashanii called tham, PHT A2 She calied the pofice becatise

5 MoFulane was vot foeling well. PHT 43, Ashanti spoke to the police, and MeFardane

6 1 “mumbiﬁ'[ﬁ:}]’:":'w;'ih;t.-pn}fim. PHT 43

9 Hartier that mornieg, Mayo had been yelling at MicFirtane abont going towork, BT

§ |4 Mayo then Tef the house; and McFarfone and Ashant semained, PIT 44

& was 1}-‘,’{1}& in Bedtand 1 ﬁt’}]‘;"ﬁ;amé - dq‘_gvnjfgtg;i s and imnduaf ﬂ.%iaaﬁia hc:rkicplmne PR
1o || MeFarlae was 'fin:@pi;;;g_:wlmn*fsi‘:iej !ti‘i!m oot PHT 47, "ﬁ".*}?l_f‘il-_ﬁl-ﬁ—-E?_{infllilj&:{fiﬁﬁﬁg atdved,
111 theisad tht .3‘%=fcf'1?~:‘&!‘-ﬁt_;}t:’S‘;ﬁ&imﬁii:;!_'xg:_ar-wfas': very hgh, soibey ok Hor o the hospital, PHT
1) aa.

by At B of Ashanti’s testiniony, the State said, “Ladies snid aentlenten; you might

4| have beard abont some tstimeny regirding wfhor instiess of snger by the defendait, That

&

only Hing yousn . consider s the evidenci from Ure event i question.” PHIT-ED,
Manuel Vieal

Manuel Vital 15 8 Nowh Las Vegas police officer. PHY 84, He was Aispatched to

I MeFarlane's "ifil?d:dfﬁiﬁﬁ}_"@f:‘;‘ home o gy iD ‘2701-}3; ff‘hﬁ'»n.‘{;iif?:;-lfazj;w o ‘gi.-'-ifﬂ?iiéstic batlery.

il incident. PHY 85, \Px’in\*’nal werived, Asharti angd Mci*arhmglmimlham Pl}

witg albile to commmnionte whh M “arlane, But she sppeared disoriented. P BG8T He
sens vequesied for apanybiilance: PHT 88 Vigad noticed atwasions and swelling on the Tofi
side of fier fice; ag well bridisivg on heraibs, PHT 89,

He alsorioutified that hewittessod petechin, which he. Staled was & Mruptons of thé

A

| Blood cells wivally cansed by Strenguation.”

PHT 90, Hewitd that he knew this “bised o

| [bis} truining a0l experiente™ s o potice officer. PIT 90,

Melarlans yvis thed raisperigd o University Mediial Centor. PHT 90, L
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| comg From the v

| lead 4o Brain issies sad

Robert Aker

i PFET 930 Hehas atlended fistotor

Robert Akeris s Noth Las Vegas polive offi

schools repanting battery dosbstic vialonce and steanguladion theough: the Névda Attty

Genenal's Office and the Nesada. POST (Peace Dificers’ Standieds -and Traliing)

commission, PHTE3-04,.

Aker then improperly. fesfified as.a medical expert regarding the ‘signsand symplomy

m‘t*‘stm;:_gu!§tﬁ'@ﬂ, PHT 95 He testiffed ih,.ltzm sigs and symploms of stengidation initially

ictien, whi typheally deseribes pain sround-the neek op-d

or breathing:. PHI 4s. 151{:1“ thei generally deser bed potechial hemorrhagivg B the evilids,

Aker. d’:&;smiim;i MeFarlaneas having 2 black dye, brojsiag srowsd ber it yiand

check. She had abrasionson hoy face-and elbows, agwell ad discolorition aiound hérneck,

|| PHT-97. The symploms b deseribed as beifig tonsistént with Srangulstion wive that shg

hiad - hiesitathon with e weck moverment, selfsehiin ¢ of her neck: and hoarseness i Ner
voice, PHT 9% Helad nbver previotsly et Melarlansy, See 93-108.. Hesaid tat dhe

Hospital conductd s move thorough ésaminarion anth (hete was peteehia present. PHT 98,

»

1| But when e reviewed photographs of MeFadane's dnjuries; be was wnable o identifi the

it

petechda, PHIT 102,

Frey bowever, again deseribed pelechin, in poneral, fo-the:jury s (e was a medical
expett, PHT I!}Z’.
The State lrfhg.‘;;;i:"_‘Elng:s;c:_pgr]fy' askeil Aker whethier b way able o commnnieale Witk

MeFarkune an the bospital anitanked hity why “[he] Hought that she was having difficoty

vomatugicaling. PHT 103, He spaoulast and testified thet it Wil heviwse of 4’ coginiiive

brain issacoupled with herinjudies.. PHY W03 He speculatsd and g lestitieg

| improperly s 4 medical dxper that 1§ wos the injuries e her throutCangd he Bend that cold

v instlity o commindicate, PHT 03,
e thery gt that she fuad only shght bridstvg scoomd her reck. PHT 103, His

st fuferaction: with MeFardaie-was the follawing day, PRE 107,

iculy swallowing.
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1 [ Benjaain Owens

Blujamin Gwens 15-a:Noath Las Vegas Polics detellive, PHT {10 Owens v

54

T

mvolved fn-investigating the fiieidost sller MeFarlane sassiklaway, PHY $11. He obtaindd

4[| nsrrest warnand and arrested Mayo in Los Anpeles; California, fr Macsh, 3013 PIFT £11.

20 e hae igatsd Maye iiﬁ:--l{k}&,ffki‘fl‘gﬁgﬁs"g}, California, aﬁm‘;&ii{ﬂst.i}@ B, PHT 11243,

T

Muyo admitted fo having.a-verbil dliercation With-MePatang beeaise Mayarbelieved that

shet was eheating on Mago with another man, FHIT 113,115 Mayo adasitted thit he shoved,

MeFarbane, stapped her on the-face; and punched hee, PIT 11 3. He sdiifted 16 swinging &

vacuum - eleanse alhoe, ‘M;;_‘};Q;?gj:s-’(‘[lwk MeFarlaie in the Jind. PHT 113414, Mayo-dosiied thiat

e

1 4 the vaouum cloaner sver hit MeFarlane i the tieand: ;;;f?'}.;;[]‘* $d:

Mayo-satd that during the pliysicasl altereation, MeFardane pushed Mayo aid stapped

hitn. BHY 15, Mayo stated it the argument vasivebal a Bt and ag e was walking

i dowarthe Staivs; MeFadane pushed biriand he pushed her batk, aud the Nght escilated Trowm

there. PHE H6. Mavp also stated thial, at Some poing, BeFadlane fll backwind ind GHEHOY

15 g iwad onthe grond,. PHT 118,

16 Afier the indident, Méye adininistered 6 retald to MoFardane, assintiing her swith ber

i‘ Dlack eye and helpioly to dfear berup. - PR 118 Mays siated (ot he wsked Mitarane it

she wanted 1o go to tie Faspital, butshe refiised and jpstasked to take Tylenol PHT 119,

1y Mayo stated thal afterthe ineident, hie Jeff the Rousethe.nexi morning. PHE 114, |

20§ Ehaidia Greee
43 Claadia Greco 52 forensic medical -examiner sng neuropatholagist whe currently
an i handles ftht; Placer -Nt:wx.dsi;;{?mtnif;y-:%‘i:ﬂ'ma_sis;j:_;g:—;_\:r:sgs; PHT 112, The {ri-lﬁi“k'Q:ﬁﬂﬂﬁ}*‘_(qutgcsn_mf_*gs'

shiipped 1

23 || Office asked herto wwalyze MoFarlane’s boain, PHT 13, Mo Failane’s brajs v

xpress, neveptod by e from desk ff of hey offive, and then frovided

- Greeo via Federal 1

23 | to Greeo, PHI A3, Greeo did ot semembier exaclly whin she received MeFatiacs b,

i . w- LA § ‘ S I ¥ - g @ B R . e g
2% f ot she believed Bt way in Decomber 2012, FHTE LS. Ay exinining MeFilaes brals,

27 || Grevo propared & vdput with ber findihgs. PHT 14,

P
28 1 0

|
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a3

- | hrain. PET 13, - She also-siw evidencs 6F massive swi

photouraphs nf the el durdng hey festimony, she indioaed that-certain infuries were “why

ln pxarnining Molfarlenes brain, Grego found.  hamprrhiige on the 16l side of the

to conelude that MéFichme's 1ife was iredttiovable, PAT 18 Shetestifiad that this type ol

iy swae pobamcamiion dod & “classic tiig 4t happonss® BFHT I8, Jo sevidwing the

| [MeRatfune] died™ PIET 2L,

The' State theiasked Grévo-to speculate as to-whiat type- of obfects could case the
injuries proxent i MoFardane. BHT 28, Greco vesponded diat it was clearly travmg, which
menn ;xn;;iﬁi;;g‘ﬂa A damages m‘h:zs the brain m‘;s-fku}'i LT . ‘shegdw ;_m;&az_&}m;_aiﬁ;‘c_:fi'g
persar who 5§ a car aceident wehiee sutfers frons whiplash befose the aithags deploy. PHT
29,

Greco: testifed shat _h=_§;¢_l§"mj'l';;=:u:=1_§;f- .St-ifi‘é:’;‘&gj. xs;a'fnf:iﬁraj Aravma, which wag appravated by the
Faiet that ‘.é._h;z?_aii rady Biad: iiﬁi’gﬁ hload pressure which the Tgh blood pressure Mvas very, by

hatdio control” PHT 29, Whisi o peeson bds Igh Mood pressure, thore is mived foree bieing

| general autopsy procedure and then explained et fo this case,

transiitied dwid 10y rastor (o geta bomorrhage on the Yasin, FRT 20-30, “Skie alsn festified

that 3t was possible o treat g condition early on, butin 1his case, the medieal nervention

1 digd ot savecher e PRT 300 Shie estfied: that, bocause MéFalane had so rirany probleins.
| with her high blooid predssuee; it was Iropodsible o stop the bushy swelling, PHI 32

Alane Olsoi

123 Bhe was the-medical examiner-assigned to MeFintase PHT 125, She described the

5

bezause of the beain ufry

she needed anexper opinionand so she:would send the fainto a neyropthologist. PHT

R3S,

Qlson deseribed MeParkare a8 having evidaes of medical inteveention, PHT 138

ihcFariane had beenin @ hospital and had a breathing sibe, PHT 128, MeFatlmie had slso

uiddegone drgan donition while st the hospiind, and she bad seme snwll injuries on hev body.

by

g ennd abnopimalities, which fed her

Alane (lsoncis a medical examiner with the Clak E;fmun-i}r'{:I‘;mc.;_m;ﬁ;. Offies PHT
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| Mayorwss charged by Indictment, He has pleagded not g1

| Lody, PHT 129,

MeFurlang bl evidece of brain blodding and swelling. PET 129, Aside:fron the

ijuries faside MoFarlane’s head, she foubd o other signifieant inferies. PHT 130 Olson

estified that the biaih was senl 1o Grecoat the Unbwarsity of Califbenia, Davis; for

esamimation. FH 55

Oison eoncluded that the vause of death was teatn mjwies due to assault, a8 well as

the coniributing congditions of Tschemic encephalopathy due w-occhision of the lefl interaal

‘thicre sre blockages i the artesios aut thie braln i not gettbig onoagh Wood fow, PHT T34,

Olson testified thar, with strangulation, there: e efter ot external sigas of injury.

determing whethier there way evidence of strangolwion. PHT 136:35.  MoEarlane bad-niy
Enjuries 1 hee pecl when Otsor speeifivilly exmined it PHT 136,

sthoned whother she was Gamiliar with the leon “paidthia,” whish $he

Ol vk Que

PECT 136-37, Osor alse Jid nof tesify that therewas any evidence of strangulation in a

nyanner that ereated a risk of deatlor substantial Bodily harm,

February 9, 2015, o
ARGUMENT

Il process and # Saodamentally Sy proceeding, which titpives that the: Indicuieat spativst hiny be

i| dismvissed. The argoments joelude: (1) The Siza‘:‘;s:'-ﬂ_ id not present the: exealpatory svidenie fiat My

asked ihe State fo present under NRS 17215023 {27 The hagnage reparding e wge o a vazuam

cléaner o the fodictvment twust be siricken; (3} The State.did not establish proper chain of custody

3
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i| support the- charges. :c;:ﬁ'"ﬂgti'@}{ Domestic *&fici:ﬁ;lg::gsf-&ﬁ:;ira;j}gu_l_a;insﬁ,;.-{fci;:}.rﬁi_ﬁh,__ and Preventing op

_ i Hipn.
y

| grand juey? The State viplsles NRS I?i’;;_h;:ié{‘%}}\;?imn the fz‘:{mse; fails 4o present evidance 1o the.

exeulpatovy evidence, [the State], in effect dustroys the-existence of an indepaidont gind inifornigd

| w hlki fends fo EKF?RE:?‘}-'ﬂ"%‘#’s‘*';f'-’ ﬁie-:-éhm:g.eﬁ i“ Wr’ H"(Z} i Fare o dg o t\’mj i ‘i}i{;i‘-}j}_’;é?ﬁ-l};ﬁi@llg"

Dissuading a Withess or Vietin: From Reporting Crime of Commending Froscoution; and (5) The |-

State introductd miany freindicial and fmpropet bad-aéts evidince,  Hle will addiess coh. dratmient

iflq*;x-’;e‘_y‘&;:, applicable :l‘;;_ziii argyaieits below is tEm i a\smmm that gt the grand jwrythe

only-evidence that is recetvetd mwust be legal evidence, '§

PG 86 (1989),

L THESTATEDIDN

HESTATE VEPRESEN
MAYD Rr;r;ml 518 ;

.‘n, BE

S 1:{5&;1@13

The Indictaient st beé disimissed Becatse the Staw failed 1o vomply with fts blization 1o

present predipatony evidenice fo the grand jury, NRS 17204302 states "[1jf (he districr gtorney i

grand j mry whith has o wndeaey o akp}fﬂ!ii ew.ay the ¢ imfg.:. Sheriffv, Frank; 193 \‘w EtUA iﬁb

FRIEP A TR, 2 (19T (‘medﬂ v, Bigt, CL 107 New, 563 (1991,

The grand fury’s Tusction i 1o eleadthe intiocent: nd less thantse b ngte ikl those whie:

anay he guilty.” 410 Us. L AGET (1973) When the State “refhsos 1o pressiit

“grand Jury. UiSoy, GO, 554'5?{1"’[*’:‘52&1'9?. 336, 1383 (LD l*}i‘)) Johnsm v, mm*um Cmim 33y

PR T {Cak 1973),

lrncher Newadi lavw, The Sigte o an dbsolive duty fo prestnt 1 the gtand j iy ovidenpe |

il v, Pravk,
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in-evidmes is- exsulpaiory within e m&amm of

NRS I72375(2), thereby irfusring the Stafe’s duty io prescat it o (he giand jury, i aoreralli lofl o

fhe District Cowt's diveestion.  Ostinan 4t 564, Howgver, mnder serfafn circumstantes, séilense

iy b Limnf;*ai exendpatory ds-a. ragtter of faw, L@, ab S64-65. Feirness, iv o bedeook Jepad didy

required of the State that chooses to present its probistile cause determination o g grand jory,

REITI Juw ]x;'mu.‘i.!im\h st be dong fairdy aind B complance with due process. The

- fundamental principle Eﬁ&hiﬁ:{‘j’.; this. prenise. s he Faot that veither the defndant tor His totnssl wre
| present fy be dble g challehge evidonce orgxdming - withdsses. There is no Court-prssgnt fo gisare

| that due process is complied with and the procoss is fair andl thit:the evidence &y prosented i way

that protedts ddefendant’s constitutional rights; This is Mw ‘\TR\ 172 {4‘1( 23 r;:qmrm the: %Mk Yo
prosentexétipaiony evidiuios,

In thieinstant case. Maye speaifically requested tat the Riate preseit exeulpatiny evidente.

sz}:cf;r;mrrIimé He exeulpatory evidénce 10 be presented and asked that the State present oy the wand ]

Jury the following:

ah hic \upp('!
J: but mli uhw and on life

& WS pwm;m ¢ SHIR
support. (i Avgust 28, 201
frony hi; mp]}_ “ﬁmld smp zm‘, _rg

’ il}
y i, -3 ‘e mli Leem: m !mz ihus hca d
Ui,uulﬂ’fi mer hm Ht’ﬁ m mm, wuc 1‘&*:\‘1{1\@{3 &d '

(heart valy u. ..-klﬁnm’?;, :sp!m: foft advenal’ ahnd}
However, the State-lid not present sy of (his' excilpaiory evidencs, except Toc the fact that.
MeFalane's drpany. had been dongied.  However, fhe Swte did not ckent that flie urg&m AVETE

Cfﬁ‘li-é‘l_i{:}"g'.‘fhi It;ffiuf’m"lim;: wag &hi balive, This pvidence is elearly excpitory and tendy 1o explain

13
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away 4 he a:hzii;g;ﬁ;; i ﬂ;!f&!@,‘,,R,;1‘;!.3'.?--7-'1351}m‘il‘;_ﬁgz.f,-,th;: fransplant conrdinator imUM( E]‘g:fj‘i&f:jled hie 'N],,;,‘ﬂ"ﬁi*{)

thiat #fter MeFirlang’s % Organs were donated, she mmil:i pense.fo Hve, Forther, McFarlane was s

Gl ative, i whal ultimately résulted jo-lir

sappart, The-harvestiog of hier vrgans; while shig vss
death. This clearly would tend 1o explain awey gie charges.

:hmr{!nmh' the %fm: failuve 1o ;:;fesel?.i thiz: exoulpatery evidence equires that the

- iﬁ MAVO IS ;wm CHARGL
E OF A DEADLY WEAPON

Mayo by charged i Count. ] with Murder, Tl ds sol charged withuss of  deadly weapan,

However, the Indictment alleges. that he mardered MeFalane by striking MeFailane onthe head

| stafor hody with & chosed fist andfo a vt Sleanct? The Biate'is not ieging that Maye used

the vacuws cloaner a3 o deddly wenpon, and thevelore; i is o

langusge in the Indictment, Fuorther, because he i not being eharged with use of & doadly - wapon,

the Tnelusion of the vacnum-cleaner language doss net jrovide Mayo witle safficient constitational

notiee 0f the State’s theory du order for hitn'to-he able to-offectively defond the very sertous Mirder

Farther, (here) was no indication. from the testimony presented a0 e grand Jury thet Mage

struck MeParkase in the tead with the vacouoy cheaner. The testinlony bresented at tis géand jury '

wig that M HYG ;zii;;aiilggi ‘& vaeiren elowngr, j-'ﬂ;tlf.«'j hendmined o Iiing MoFarlang iy ihe hand with the

vacrum cleaner. ;f?é!.tiiﬁuglfiftﬁs}‘is:w&u‘?t‘i b hitting ey abon the body,™ as charaed i'ﬂ‘:i'li?:%:-ﬁ_i{l?i%::lm_ieni.s .
| “Uhis:aition did not contebale in sy way © her death, There was no medital evidence presented o |
“sopport that the vaduum eledier idany way coniritbaied toher death;

CH

i
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erby prafudichl o include this




Iy

wotiee bf the State’s prosecutorial theoty, - Therfore, the. fangbage iy e Tndictment regdrding. thie

|| of MeFartane’s braiit is inadmissibla, shiould- be: }.z[ill»!\s.‘i?, and, based wiithe | imi:rrg:}m p;ﬂmiwm; :

Sex Buros v, Sherff, 92 Nev 533, 554 P20 257 (1978), Toestoblish ehitii of susiody, the St

Testified Gt she reeeived, the bidin via Federal Bypress from the Clark Couity Comser’s Office; |

Beeause the-nge of the varuum oleaner wasnot 2 eonfeibuting faotir fo MePardane’s deatly,

aud Mayo is not charged with vse of 4 deadly weapen iy eanunission of the-sct, 4t is overly

inflaminslory f include ke fangtage, ws well as constimionadly detitlent in providing Mayo with

VO ui;ﬂnu BIGSL { stricken fiom ihf: fmhummt

131K

TheStare failed to-establish G praper fowndation for the chaia of custody reg irdmp

McFatlane’s brany, and aecond ifﬁfg] }*_. Al testimony fdm Ordve wnd Olson. concerning th: conditien

ank .u'ncgm;s;limzi-afm_aii‘E_}fi;aé;im}ft_ta:ai evidence; the wiveder eliurpe must tn, dismisged,  Purther, Because 3
the State relies solely va the brain injurics as establishing MeFarkane’s cause of death, (hs Murdes
aharge oot be dismigsed.

Fhe State i responsible-for extublishing a proper haiy of eustorly for adinissian of evidenee,

mavst show that ‘suhs!ﬁuiwu, altegation or ampering ol i evidetice did oot vocur: and {2) the

offered evidence is the SR, OF rms,mmhlv similar’ w the substanee seized.” i at 534033, 4

atioweas that Groce

Hege, the.only testimony soiaeding the chaty o costody o EMelailane’y

sometime in December 2012, which was uccepted by her fions office and then provided w e The

tncident is alloged e have socamed August 2012, and there w a8 no- ir.,h!!mﬂll}*‘ asto W ho handied

the brait or where (e brai was 1 the: four montlis in-betveen the allegsd eident and Greeo's

188
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Fomt
s,

send MeFarkine®s brals o O reen; but EL&llf'l\.fd anly. tlmt it was sont o Greco, There way no

testhwony establishing the chitn of custody or whe of B k. people were involved in hindling
and préparing the brats, Adduioosily, when Ofson deseribed MeFarlane's sutopsy sind sianithition,
she constantly referred o the word ®we,” indicating thit there was & toan of people examining
MeFarlane, and Olson adniitied 1o the prosence and pacticipation of autopsy technicians, PHT' 130,

The State b the Burden tor establish & proper chain of custody for admission-of evitlonce: In

4 evidence drthat: it wag ins the saime condition a9 when setzed, especiall¥ i light of the fadrmionih
gap i between. the autopsy snd when Grpeo received MeFadone's brale-snd dhe anknown peracus
| present and. pasticipating ‘i the autopsyy examination, peeparation, wid Handhing of MeFardane’s

1 birnin.

: | stk begiase of the prejudivial nature of the impraper and wiconstitetonal sdmission of tis svidence

dismissed;

!‘ IV,

R VICTIN
TCUTTON

,\{”I\u& FROS]
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this cosey the Stede i nob eatablish that theee wae o subitation, ditemtion, o3 tampering ol the |

Acevrdingly, st wsthuony regarding MoFadane’s brain and: brain inhuries must be.exeluded, |

ped the State’srelia ROE o Mtiallam s brain :i:t:'lj‘l@ifiﬁ_?& as her cause of deatly, the. Iribictmpnt must by

There wag ingufficient evidence presented-at the grand j ury to support probable cause on the |

31 charges of Battery Domestie Vinlenee—Stravgulation Coercion; and- Preveénting or wauniuw




s

ﬁ’ii‘l}"ﬁ-i&i éhaiﬁgéétzriﬁiﬂt Sﬁéitéﬁry’-f'[i“iﬁ':’ﬁ&ﬁt je \ffi@féz-m;fea--'--:$£ﬁiélgﬁia§im. *Sirangulation” i defined

Ay “intentivoatly :mpzzrjmé, the:viogmal bréathing bi tiralitionof the blood by ﬁgapi}:stg PRSSHIE Of
of deathy or mhmmni bmﬁn irnm . I\!\_‘: ?Llﬂ 43 (l){%&) Heve, tiww was i prob huble: RS
inadmiissible evidence was tmpropetty admilted to support this charge,  Adeordingly, this Count

st be diEmissed,

First, Ashguiti &;eaa‘@ikfigé_that: Mayo choked MeFardme,  Aker testified that Do saw shight

broising andfor discolesalion aound N
[} testitiod thai MeFaclane had no signiticant injurtes ofberthan the juvies inside of her bead, ~ Glaoy

alsy tostifled e, with deingdlation; tere sie offen o exiemal signs.of injovy. Therefore, Dison

testified that the ivernal ¢

did not-note- any infiles-to McFarlane's neek fn ey sulopsy report and no inf

it not lestity fhat MeFarkme had petgchin or pitedhial hemorrhiaging,

 stangled MeFarlane in a-maner it created - tisk of dewst or substaitial bodity Tam.. Thevsfore,
thia Count ost be dismissed.

Second, dnadnilssibleiand. niproper testimoty was adiiteed by the State I support of this

-charge; which requives dismissal of (g Count, Although tie Swte hed two niedical experts leslily

17

182

e wrout or neek or by blocking the noseor siputh of anfsther porson I donanner that eréaies o sk

support tist stanpulation. created a risk of death or substantial ‘bi:tiffﬂ}-’_ howrn, el additionally;

Fudane’y neck.  However, Olson; the amedical exjeit,

| cotiducts an meernal medical xamingtion . descrving whather strdngulation. oocugied. - Olson
?g_%j;i,fﬁ__a;gigion fé:é.t-qxi-c';_i'j.lEi}lt:-“ ’viclarfﬂm hid oo Hijuriss to ber neck, Sheslso
fes 1o imsmk as
contribating faclors fo-her death, Olsen did not describe any pathologie Badigs with regard &

strongilativn had did aog gl 30y & conbuting Thetor o MePartane’s bratn injuriss. And, Hson

H Based off the ':_m_t:dij{i&f testiony ‘p;r_e;se;’ﬁ&:_;}, oty {5 nit Probakile dause to Shw thel Mayy
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ab the grand jury presontocnt, dather than- guestion the medical wxperss about the pressiee of
petechia and strangudation; the State instead licited wnqualified sxperl tossinony and speculation
oo both Vital snd Akst repitding whettier Mayo confiiitted stangulation that rested avisk of

i

esenie of

dontls or subistanBisl Badiy T, Fivthen, thé Stite faifed 10 present evidence that the
| bodily hasm,

iy wifaess is aoting as anexpert witness . ., when he does more than awrely relate the favts

! and Tostead anityred the facrsandfor’. ™ makes chnctasions r;barainw thase faus,

{22 Nev, 715, 728, 138 B 462, 471 -(2006). Heto, Vital aind: Aker festifind extensbvely @ the

ng festimony W ever, piven - that the presency of peiechis meany:

t,

| preserice of pelechine Howe

1| that ,siran_guig;;l}ifciy_t? ceurzed Wi g manner thaterented sk al-death by serlous bedily liarm,

Additonally, Vital said that he: witnessed petechin- on MoFarlane; w hich hes statod - wvas

eaused by \u;mgtrhtmn Vital said hat he ke this bessd onhig Emmng and experiente us a police

lids bochéberining

“officer, Hasvever, Vital didd not tindliced amidical examination of Mebarlane’ss

the presence of peteehiy, ind wher Aker ‘tesfied about o photograph of MiFardsise, ht-could not

identify any potechiapresent. Further; Vitad il trabied g medionl exped, is not adoctor and s
npLia position Sa arw hether peteehiafs caused by stringutation orby othereauses. s impmpc

e T to Sty us & nidical expert dodsay that petechis s caused by stangulation,. And, theState

did ot preseot the Exeblpaiory evidencd Ut potechia can be caised By contifions aher thayy
stramgulatioa, Purther, thers gk 110 festhony presented diat the fact el pedeclia may ot may ot |

b present meaRs: lhdi strangutation peeureed | i1 & maanee that ereated w vk of deaily r o mbﬁamml'

H . 'Emdiii;;'hm:m-\..;

Neut, mnd mote egregiousty; dker festified imprapady as 2 medicl experl regarding the

- pitechia lk fiesl iestified that be Had atterded training (hroweh the Nevada, ey (ien

I8
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Offiee sl Nevada POST.  Boty airings only $nvelve polive officers’ stuidards and . aining

4

regarding batery domestie violenes investigations. s does not amke Aber qualitied to testify

By A
medicslexpart; nor did he sobduet g nicdical saminaticiof MeParlase,

T facy, Aker’s ek oFanedical experie rogacting stiangudation vag eviddoeed by Hing

degeribes pain i the neck or difficulty swallowing or breathing, He then: provesded (o tatk abioyt

petechinl hemotihaging in the eyt Hids as being asothier sign of strangulation

wwevement, selfsonthing of her neek, and hoarieniss it her voide, Heé bad nover met MeFsrdahe

“getiving Were

befiore; amd thevefore, 3 was purse specufation: for him o determing Biat any of these
inconsistent with MeParlane’s nommal behavior. Second, none of those factors lndieate thi

I strangaladon piouied that crsad i of denth of subslatial bodifs: harm.

I Aker thenfestified that & wedieal exaibinntion was conducted of MeFarhine ab the hospital

and petectia was prosent, Ehiy testimony s Hutmissible as Aker did wot sonduit the weedieat
exarmination, and his statementis based or iadmissible hegrsuy h(}mﬂk l'iersg}if_rzii' Fxanines o Aker, .

And when shown a picture '-t:si""’:ﬁ»'iq::-i?‘-i_%ria;am, fre s was unable to Rentify ﬂm-;:_;3;-;}5;_.-;;;:;:-:;_»:gﬁs;‘j_‘;ipggc(é}iigm

Aklitionally, te-Staie Jid not present; through Ak, the exculpmory evidence that petechiy vanbe.

cabased By othpecnosey than Strudstion,

Finally, dker -speeulated and said that hiv difficulty. commimivating Wwith MoFailane was.

because her injuries to e throat fead o brain issues and ag trability to conmitnivae, Notoly i

thiis wonclision il

this lestimony gure speculstion and madmissible, Aker isao qualitied to rende
- these staternents should wob biwe Beén prosemad v ?'tii&:‘g;ar}&_ju'r}*: And,his-watimony is pitently
incorrect and divecdy eontradicted by the medical gapert testinoiy profented, ARS8l lask-of

expeitise and impropes testimony Ty welb-demonstated by the faet Gt the nedivsl oxaminer’s

1
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testifyiog thal the signs and symptonss of strangulation vswslly comie to ies from the vidtin, who k

He said hiat e believed Melarlans's syaiproms of shangulation were hoditation with ieek




i bedroom, There was nd testimomy whatioey

testimony fiir,eciui_‘jgr-am_ﬁr&&éiz;f'ﬁg&, bis puuee wipuatified gpiceulation.

The absolutely hapoper polive-officer festimiony coupled with ihe medical -expert’s

| tostittiony that there were' no edtesial or inferial Tjurics consistent with steengulation and

Sangulation Wes not o onfibuting, factor to MeFaride's dédth requires that s Count e

dismigsed: The State whe Hy Ldled to establish protistle canse-thal Mayo strangled MoFarlane “jig g

manner that creates a1k of deatly orsubstantial badily haem,"

I3 There was ng prebable cause to support the eharge of '{f:uarejgrg,?_;;ggg; ' t&.&iﬁa}fum- fhiy

Sount must bedivatseed,

Mave is chavped with Covrcton for using gh ysical force of the theeat ol forew against

MeFardane by notallowing Ber to-calt the:polive. However, there was no pro hable eause to SuppE

hat MeFarlane was wot allowed focall the police, At the grand Jiey, Ashanti estiffed i, duritg

the beglnning of the physical - sliereation, McPurlane cabled 911, -sad Maye théy stapped the

- Selephone out of Ig@iﬁhag}{é; However, Aslientt also bestidied that Ashant] tied 1 Togate MeFartane's

N

| telephome-dn peder o conlact the pedive, She E:;;;‘tlf}d‘fii(;_ﬂ-fﬁ_’tﬁf",1t-_,:if{ﬂifj3llisaﬂ.-?‘,’ff;f;}.?al_"liij"t{;‘_—' had: too many

possessions b ihe pockels of her prrse, Ashaiti 6550 wstified that the tetephone was Tn MeFarlame's

bedeoamn, and thal after the phiysical alteveation, MeFarkng ok ahawer aid Wen Taid down i hop

McFarlane into rot calling the palice,

"_‘i"‘imm AR 10 tw: fm;agy Ahat Mayo. ;fﬁli;fmi(;a—eimé} f;f\.fié::ﬁﬁ;‘!ﬂﬂg: ii-r;gmyr way.not e call ,éi}é;fjptﬁ e
Melakane wasiches bedeoom with sceess to.hir telephone. I faet, the o How were 33;;3&;.‘-(;9;;:{‘;-.;;_;;{1"
until Frichay,. when Ashidit cilled the puice becnuse MoFalant wos not féi‘;*ﬁng well. &Lundmghf

hevangd thie wvas mo - testimbny that Mayo ysed physical forewor the Gweat of force 8 privent

MePartane from canfacting the polive, this Count st bedimissed.
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v that Mayo wisd Toree or the thiediof foric'ts PovTes
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¢ Theve WA N E?l*()b’#b!t cange: Hr support iha chiige Uf Ptﬁ“,_
“lttw% nr Vietim Er i Reporting € ‘mm O {’ anpeneing Froge ﬂ!fiﬂ“» ang the
1his O mm st ht* dmmimd

Mayors chiiged with Pretenting of Digsuading Witness.or Vichm From Rep

(:fi_ziil_kiltﬁtiﬁ.i},‘lg;:?f!f!l'i;&féi‘;}!.E.Ifflifg‘?f]'- h}?':_ihﬁm’iiﬁ‘;lﬁijg‘Qf threatening Ashankt and: MeFarlane figin conitiencing ;
&t uﬂmmi Prosecition of pracecding by thieatening to St A;é-l:filf_m_tfi:lmfdﬁzt MePFarlane i Axhani
| andfor Melarkue eontacied the }::;u_l_'ii:g Therg Was T p_ﬂ'sl_;mb}g;a_usas jpfeggnfliﬁdf_ o me grawed ey 1
_.xuprmrt this ::hargh and fh‘,mmw it ezt be dismissed,

Reparting MoFarlane, g5 discussed abiove, e wis ho. g 511&1}0;3%’ that: Maye fntimidated o

was nol Reling well—not bresuse of the domestic incident. - There was no probuble canse that Maye

sutintideted-cr thivatened MéSulane e cumnmmmg aeriningl pm.\mm;(m

Reparding Ashanti, - Ashantt festified fhat Maye knew it 'she was leying to locate

MeParlane's telephane to-call the police. She fostified firse that he said nithing to Fer abiont ihis

She then elvanged her testmongand said that he-toli her o g dhmi g call the polige, ahd Eh::n

changed her estinony: azg,enn m Ry thisit e !uid her tim i she catled the pative, he wou&l L:mLL ol

- her om.™ - Ashatis st two Testimontal stitements do ol stpport that Mayo dissnaded er from
| conmencing & rbainal prosecution. And. feither, she wstitled that the day aflor the physical

| advercation swa¥ uneventfisl, demonstrining that she was vedgr nn thientof fealy ot 6 chmnsetice

crimina prispes utmn, lfmalE}, ﬁ\hux Ashaeti did c:ili thipokice on }mi%, :.ahe: did siol call thom: el

COMBIACY PXSOCtion - sshe mk!u! them beeause Mo a;l;mu Wi ol ies.hm, uwii ‘I"‘Eiu-:s_, ber |

intention 16 calling the potice was becanse MeFirline was not (e img‘., s wvell snd hor bention wasnot

| e somimence s srbming] proselution or gain assistange And, Adhasti Jnd el the pidice when

;s,;-[gg:-'_ﬁ_;@ i W Tt :fgsk:_:{in;g ';vf;éi_i,_ﬁd'{f-i‘;.&'a;;mfratilé'gs it .ﬂﬁﬁ‘{ did o believe shie was undes intmdating

thig Crigor |

aseki‘;g,g_;— nisistanes with such, Ashati t:;-a;’:iﬁed;t’hsﬂ;sitea coptacted the ?;}(?1‘?%?&-‘1*_}.0!}’;;jbﬁ:c'{lliskrfﬁf, '_‘_;;éj;;jpm_;; :
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1o, complelely prejudiving e proceeding and denying Mayo doe ;;ji‘isi cess and o Tonduentally fir

B defoniduit commitied the offmse Petrocelll v, Suue, 101 N, 46,53, 692 P2 503, 50708

| {1983}, hup{i‘i:sndtd byislatule gu oather prownds by NRS 213,085 ¥ {1995y, Admtaumﬂj the: Cinpt

- diiner, agsin, g completely Treelovant and vnrelated incident; Ashanii featitying shal Maya hiad
- yelled and been angry before, which cansed i vein to pop our of his head; which Ashanti speaylatisd
meant that be wis very angoyioand Ashanti testifying ur Mavo hiad “previensly Tought witly

- MeFailanebut “don’t acuslly beat hee .y

or thrests from Maya, .IESﬁ:’A;;ms_f:;;\‘.'{'shzm;!‘i-igl.ir;i rotinkend o commgice é_i;;_ﬁii?i‘}&ﬁfcgutif{m i?zwtekﬁﬁsmﬂm '
with a prosecution, Maye camiof be charged avith dissuding her from secking assistonee with &

prossewtiaror commeneing w orimitial prosédution,. Accordingly, this chittge ,ziu.;sitw: diseissed,

Yoo MANY HIGHLY 'ﬂﬁsi::lai;;uz(}}lm BAD_ACLS WERE
TESTIFIED O BEKC Lo A R ‘

ﬂurmg the Sttty preseniment 1o theg g\,mn(} Jory, sunsrous wmclarged. imd futs were: m{aimi

procesding:

As authined above, exly logal evidence i3 adimissitle ot il grand Juy proteeding.  Soe

Laoh:immh o ‘ilh‘?

11, 85 Nev, 295, 454 .24 86 {1969, Uscharged baut:aets may only be ftroduged,

after the Court hasconducted w hearing and found by “plain, clesand convincing vvidenee that the

st aleo fod tat the probative valus outweiphs the prepdivial offoct, 6

Here, nunmstons bad-ncts evidence was admitted. The Stare itself recngrized that the tad-
acts evidence was improperly sdimitted and occasionally.admonished the grand Jury sokto congider
the bideaet ¢videace,  The bad-act evidenee admitied Included:  Achiant! 't'ésti‘i}:-ix;gjrrﬁ:;za;ﬁ‘-ﬁtiine.-%-‘-Ehai':
Maye had threaténed 1o Sahiaop™ her eardigr B the dey togarding 9 completely unrelated: st

irelevant dncident; Ashonii tostifyiog that Mayo yelled at her while playing withoahall bofoie

s
Bk
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The State admonished the grand jofy theee ey duridg i testimga g -onee after Astiant

fivst testified that Maye. threatened to Uwhoop? her gatlier in-the day, onee alter Ashanti deseribed

31 that My had previousty fought with MéFarlae, and once ab the conclusion ofshanti’s testimony;

4 Do of the Badsgit wvidonce vy sdmissible And here, the svervhedining amonnt of biad-
aor evidence was overly prejudicial.  Although the Stass éﬁiﬁﬁi:fi?ifﬁ:ﬁiwd, the geand jusy, the
ad nsu'mzié'l‘im entywere unelear sd-could #ot care the pm;mimai mﬂui

The Stare’s. first :nﬁimg}.;{i;gfin_nﬁ-iﬁ‘ following Ashueti’s wstimony that Mayo threatened io
“whoap” hercame after a long stitenent by Ashanti, wd the State siaply sadd that the graod § ury
| was to Vdisregard-that Tast pad™ wy well as any statomentsannd by Melarlane, This admosishment
P g vnicloar ay o what the “last part™ the State way referdng to, 15 well ay being ‘i'ﬂs:-fliitflfﬁ::_sfi!i te

sifmonishment wgading bearsay,  The second adinonighment cuve atter. Ashant diseussed Mayo

talk cialy about this te speeificatly, .« And fadies and geatiémi you are instucted to Ssregaid

v || that™ Apain, this adridnishuient was. wholy tdhenr e o what the grand jury wag supposed
17§ distegard and inefficiont to cure - the préjudicial effect of the textimony.  Finlly, the tast
1 ydmonishrent from the State was at theend of Aslant's tesfivony. The St saild“Ladies and

genilamen, vou might have heard about some testimony regarding other fostanees of anger by the

{#¥efendant. That information is net 1o be considered by youin making your determination here |
Htoidey: Thi only thing yoware o congider is te evidenee fond therevent in smestian.”

Altroueh (e State admonidhed the fary three times, there was suchosirnhphning bad-aet

[¥)
#ai

24 evidenve introduced Hut the admonishenents coukd not o the prejudicial effeet on the grand fary,

Fheir introduction dested Mayo due provess and-a fundunentally faiv proceeting, snd -;;;;@sa;{}rdi'iagiy,::.

the {ndictment must bdismissed.

v

e

£
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CONCLUSION

Based on the above, Mayo respectfully requests hat this Court grant his Pefition lor Writ of
Habeas Corpus and dismiss the Indictnient agains! him.

DATED thiszg of February, 2014,

PHILIP ) KOHN
! UNTY PUBLIC DREFENDER

BHETANO, #9596 ~
ublic Defender

24
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O CDLARR COUNTY DISTRICTATT ORNEY, ﬁ\‘ifﬂni@#' for Piintifn

[ HABE, AS CORPLS will Be heard on the i'@m day: af Mani SO

Il msade this 280vd ay-of Feboiary, 2014 to; : g

NOTICE

YOU WILL PLEASE TARE NOTICE that the fﬂf‘t’hﬂiﬁh PETITION FOR WRIT (‘)F'

3

5.4 9:00 aan, in- E}cpmimc,nt N,

2014

XXV Distriet Conrd,
DATED this 28ih day of Feliary; 2014,

CERUFICATE OF BLECTRONIC SERVICE
Fherehy dertify that $ervice of PETITION. FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPL] S Was

T @:i mm&i Aa t:rn fﬁ.l
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3 ANTHONY TYRON MAYO,

e Ewlwm(:a!!y i‘hEd
OYATIZ014 114710 AM

(O ﬁm uornwv N
Nevada Hay #0 & e CLERK OF THE GODRY
M)B[* RT &;.“_

l;Nm a&a-: 8¥135.201
12500

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

S CASENO:  £:14:298313.1
PMlaintift; 534,

DEPT NU Xh‘lf

12581304
INDICTMENT

Defendant.

STATEOFNEVADA )
COUNTY OF CLARK

‘.th: Deferdant above samed, ANTHONY TYRON MAYQ; accisad by the-Clirk
Leounty Grand Jury of the Grilvels) of MUTRDER (Category A Ielmw NRS 208,010,
2600308, BATTERY CONSTETUTING DOMESTIC VIODLENCE - SiRA\TLI{ EATION
(Category € Felony - NRS: 200, 4813 200,485; 33.018); COR WRCION ((”"alwmy B Felony '~ |
NRS 3@?.196}.@@- I"R}JVIN}H\G C}R..DI‘S.E:L;&IDINU W}I,N_QES OR \:]Cf }MH{QM
i REPORTING URIME-OR COMMENCING i'?ifmS’i&?ﬁ?{iﬂi&'ﬁ?}%\i“{Gat{:-ggr}r £ Pelony « NRES
HR9.308), conmitied st amd within the County. ol Clark, State-of Nevada, on @faf‘hetis%één |
| August®, 2012 and Atgist 10, 2012, us follows: ;

S
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COUNT.L - MURDIER

dic ot or helwveen, Augist8: 2082 Yo Augyst 18, 2012, then and there willilly,
feloniously, without avthority of law, ¥nd with prepneditation: wind deliberation, and with.
rrative aforathought, X BEVERLY M CJ*E—\RLANL& b Being, by sitiking BEVERLY |
MCEARLANE about the head sndfor body \ith a closed fist andfor s vacuwns elediner, said |

ki.ﬁii_rm:_ {'Iﬂ ’}"']*;.axfimf bi&eﬂ’wﬁfﬁtl &a‘!ibﬁr-aw;&ﬁﬂ ]’kf&i'ﬁfﬂﬂ&t‘:‘ﬁ" andlor (”-?'} haviig:gosurred in E

the commission-of an. tmim-.rful ael, w}uch i its: Congeguence; naturally l_cmis 1o destroy the

life of 5 koman bmggm-mf;-. aﬂ-s-mz;uhs in the death of BEVERLY MC%A[xLﬂhh onr |

| about August 23,7012,

- COUNT 2- BATTERY CONSTITUTING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE « STRANGULATION
did on or between August 8, 2012 10 Augnai T, 2012, tHew and thiers ‘l'xl“h[f}, 1

unlawiilly, and feloniously useforce droviclencs Upos the person of the défehdat’s spmls;,, :

former spouse, oF.any other person 1o whor the: demidam iy rolated b} bived or marriage, a

person with whom the defendunt i or was soteally residing, a person with whom the

defendant iy having a datin g relationship, 8 person with whom {he de icmia nt s g child fn |
common, the.minor child of any -af those persons. or the defendant’s minor chitd, to-wits |
| BEVERLY MCFARLANE, by stangilstion.
| COUNI 3~ COBREION

did on o betwesn August 8, 2012 to August 10, 2012, then sed there witfutly, |

H rﬁtl;mfl’tfiii}-; 'emtl_ﬂ iiﬁ!ﬁ)ﬂzi'm,iﬁh{ u;:_iit-_ ‘;:n;.hysiﬁal' force, or ihe hnfddiste thivat of Sush force, a?gés-i'zmls;i'

"whmh she .h_ezd i3 '171'&!1&:1& L—ii},, ar gbsta,m Fror ,dc_s‘l;ng, by‘_n‘.m, :-ii_:i(i‘nﬁﬁlfﬁ'gih%; i '_i_i;,lf;’-\;';!};-‘.lii;:&*

| MCFARLANE to catl the polive..

{7

-
.-flli'i"

§g

HiE
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COUNT 4§ -

| ENDORSEMENT:

 Kefgperson, CIRFk Couniy Oramd Jury
o ’ )

PREVENTING QR BISSUADING Wi Pi“wESb QR VICTIM EROM
NCING PROSBCUTION

- RLP{}R FING CRIME OR COMME

didd on or-beltween August 8, 2017 o August 1, 2012, then and there *.Hliuih

-untawduily, and Felordously, by intimidation or thesits, prevent or dissuade 6r Hinder or-deluy.
| :Asziiié’khé:‘f-ﬁ‘ {MAYO andfor -BEVERLY MOFARLANE from comnnenctng’ 8 orimingd
- proseeution. o 4 proceeding for the revogation of & purale ar picbation, m seeking or
assisting fnsuch & prosecution or pmwuimg. i‘)}' theestening 1o st Ashanti-Mayy- .,mrl for.
. -I:Q_,_\_f’h}ﬂ_.,-,\’ MCFARLANE if Ashanti Mayo “andfor ‘_BIE:;‘.‘H:-I{L,,Y-‘ ,_ML%—*&RLANI:. _;::ng_gu:d_ .

- the police.

DATED this «ii\ﬁ" Ay of Jarary, 2014,

Gy,

BY | |2k
]“s uty Distiet Atmrﬁ{y
: wacfﬂ?ﬁréi)?i%f: B

A Triee Bl

3 RS T L NG NN S
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MNaimes of witnesses testifying before the Grand Jury:
AKER, ROBERT, NLVPD P#1053

GRLECO, CLAUDIA, ¢/o CCDA/VWAC, 200 LEWIS AVE., LVYN
MAYO, ASHANTI, C/O CPS AND/OR B, MCFARLAND
QOLSON, DR. ALANE, CCME, 1704 PFINTO LN, LYN
OWLENS, BENJAMIN, NLYPD P#1173

VITAL, MANUEL, NLVPD

Additional witnesses known to the Disteict Attomey at time of filing the Indigtment:
BODNAR, MICHAEL, NLYPD P#724

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, CCDC

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, CITY OF LAS VEGAS DETENTION CENTER
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, LVMPD DISPATCH

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, LVMPD RECORDS

CUSTODIAN GIF RECORDS, NLVPD DISPATCH

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, NLVPD RECCGRDS

FISCHER, PATRICK, NLYPD Pt 1647

GADAM, FNLJ, UMC, 1800 W, CHARLESTON BLVD., LYN

GASTON, LEE, NLVED P#2035

HALYERSON, ERIC, NLYPD P#1943

HOLLINGS, LARRY, NLVPD P#1594

LEE, KANOWELL, NLVYPD P#223838

MARKS, DANA, NLVPD P#1726

MCFARLAND, BERNICE, c/o CCDA/VWACL, 200 LEWIS AVE,, LVN

i

1/

i

it
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PARENT/GUARDIAN OF ASHANTI MAYO, c/o CCDA/VWAC, 200 LEWIS AVE, YN
PEPITC, FNU, UMC, 1800 W. CHARLESTON BI VD, LVN

SEARCY, STEVIE, 43169 MATINEE AVE,, NLV, NV

SWIFT, SHELDON, 326 STURGEON LN., LYN

VIGAL, MANUEL, NLVPD P#1923

VILLANUEVA, ALAIN, NLVPD P#)869

13BGIO36X/12FN1733X/d8-GJ
NLYPD EV# 1214352
(TK 1411}

i

FIWPDOUSUNISGUTLY INGEN MR 13301 dos
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any measures 10 prolong her tife. Mclartane was an orgas donor, and as such, her organs were
haryested while she was slill alive and on tife support.- The leansplant coosdinalor for UMC,
Rudy Murray, informed the NLVPL) that “[a}Rer [Beverly’s] organs are dlonaled, she will ecase
to live. Thus, her death ocevreed afler her vital organs were removed.  Additionally, one of ¢he
pathologic fudings on the sutopsy report §s that Melardae was “[5]rus post orgai donation
{heart valves, kidneys, spleen, left adeenal gland).

fi ihe event thal the grand jury retorns autrue bil), 1 woukl approciate your notifying me
directly, as | wish lo be present af br, Mayo's initjal appearance in ke Eighth Judiciat District
Courton thz indiclnent.

If you have any questions or need additional Information, please contact e at {702) 455.
5733

Yery Lraly yours,

NAILIP J. KOHN

faafl
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney | Eectron '" .
Nevada Bar #001565° nically Filed
ROBERT STEPHENS : 04/04/2014 02:48:58 PM

Nehada Bor Ho11386 | ‘
evada Bar :

200 Lewis Avenue ‘ % i%““"""
Las Ve as, Nevada 89155-2212

702) 6 1-2500 ‘ CLERK OF THE GOURT
gtate of Nevada . '

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of Application,

of Case No. C-14-295313-1
Dept No, XXV

ANTHONY TYRON MAYO,

#2581304

for a Writ of Habeas Corpus,

P il g N N N N N

'RETURN TO WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS AND MOTION TO DISMISS
DATE OF HEARING: April 21, 2014
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M.

COMES NOW, DOUGLAS C. GILLESPIE, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada,
Respondent, through his counsel, STEVEN B. WOLF SON, District Attorney, through
ROBERT STEPHENS, Deputy District Attorney, in obedience to a writ of habeas corpus
issued out of and under the seal of the above-entitied Court on the 28th day of February, 2014,
and made returnable on the 19th day of March, 2014, at the hour of 9:00 AM., before the
above- entltled Court, and states as follows:

1. Respondent admits the allegations of Paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Petitioner's Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus and Motion to Dismiss.

w20 12ANT 733\ 2FN 1733-RET-(Mayo__Anthony)-001.docx
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2. Respondent denies the allegations of Paragraph 3 of the Petitioner's Petition for Writ

of Habeas Corpus.
3. Paragraphs 4 and 5 do not require admission or denial.

4. The Petitioner is in the actual custody of DOUGLAS C. GILLESPIE, Clark County

Sheriff, Respondent herein, pursuant to a Criminal Indictment, a copy of which is attached

hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference herein.

Wherefore, Respondent prays that the Writ of Habeas Corpus be discharged and the

Petition be dismissed.
DATED this 4th day of April, 2014.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #0015

BY

ROBERT STEPHENS
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #011286

PROCEDURAL SUMMARY |
On January 17, 2014, an Indictment was filed against Anthony Mayo (Defendant)
charging him with Murder, Trial is currently set for February 9, 2015, On February 28, 2014,
Defendant filed the instant Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. The State’s Return follows.
FACTUAL SUMMARY

On or about August 8, 2012, Beverly McFarlane (Beverly) was living with her husband,
Anthony Mayo (Defendant) and their two children, Ashanti and Ashley. Grand Jury
Transeript (GIT) 41, Defendant became upset when Beverly accidentally called Defendant.
GIT 54. Defendant was so irritated and annoyed by the phone call that he ordered Ashanti

and Ashley to their room. GIT 54. When Beverly arrived home from work, Defendant was

playing with the children in the living room. GIT 56, Beverly.asked that they stop playing

while she began cooking dinner. GJT 56. This caused a verbal argument between Beverly

2
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281




—

I T S T S T T N T S S S, —_
@ NN A th B W R~ S % oA oo R D DS

O Oe -1 vt s W R

i and then she would just stop. GJT 64,

and Defendant. GJT 56. Once dinner was finished they all went upstairs to the master
bedroom. GJT 58. |

Another argument arose about the cooking. GJT 59. Defendant ordered Ashanti and
Ashley to their room. GJT 59. Defendant was so mad that his eyes were “popping out of his
head” and his vein was popping out of his forehead. GIT 66. Beverly tried to call 911 but
Defendant slapped the phone out of Béverly’s hand. GJT 59. The phone slid under the fridge
in the room. GJT 72. Ashanti tried to retrieve the phone, but Defendant stopped her. GJT 72.

Defendant then mounted Beverly and began choking her. GIT 59, Out of fear, Ashanti
and Ashley went to their room which is directly across from the master bedroom. GIT 60. As
Ashanti watched, Defendant punched Beverly numerous times in the face and body. GJT 63,
Beverly .kept screaming for help. GJT 63. Defendant then began to choke her, GIT 63.
Ashanti saw Defendant pushing Beverly down into the bed, GJT 63. She knew Beverly was

being choked because she could hear it in Beverly’s voice. GIT 64. Beverly would scream

Ashanti eventually turned away from the beating and went downstairs in an attempt to
find her mom’s phone in her purse. GJT 60. Ashanti was unable to find the phone in the
purse, GIT 61. Defendant observed Ashanti searching for the phone. GJT 72. He told
Ashanti that if she called the police, he would knock Beverly out. GJT 73. He also threatened
to “whoop” Ashanti, GIT 73. She then hid behind the door so she could not see what
Defendant was doing to Beverly. GJT 61.

At some point, Defendant left the room wh_ere he was attacking Beverly and went
downstairs looking for his bat. GJT 61. Defendant looked for it downstairs and then went
into the garage to look forit. GJT 61. Knowing where the bat was located, Ashanti rushed
downstairs and hid the metal bat. GJT 61. Ashanti then returned to her room. GJT 62. After
being unable to locate the bat, and while still upset, Defendant returned to the master bedroom
grabbing a vacuum cleaner on the way in. GJT 62. Defendant attempted to close the door
behind him but left it open just a little bit. GJT 64. Ashanti could hear her mother screaming
to “stop” and “not do that.” GJT 64. She then heard a loud bang. GJT 65.

3
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Some time passed and Beverly exited the bedroom with a limp. GJT 65. She was
severely beaten, with scratches on her face, GIT 70. Dust was in her hair and on her person.
GJT 65. There was also dust on one side of the bed. GIT 65. The vacuum was broken. GJT
68. Ashanti attempted to communicate with Beverly but Beverly was having a hard time
speaking. GJT 71.

Beverly attempted to wash some of the dust off of herself but had a hard time. Ashanti
tried to help her mother as best she could. Beverly then followed Ashanti into her room and
tried to sleep in Ashanti’s room, however, Defendant demanded that she sleep in the master
bedroom. GJT 71.

The next morning, August 9, 2012, Ashanti heard Defendant apologizing to Beverly.
GIT 74. Beverly slept almost all day. GIT 74. Beverly woke up at around dinner time. GJT
74. She could only whisper. GJT 75. Ashanti brought some food to Beverly. GIT 75, It
appearcd to Ashanti that her mom was “very sick.” GJT 76. Beverly’s eyes were red and her
skin was peeled off on one side of her face. GJT 76-77.

On August 10, 2012, Ashanti was woken up by Defendant yelling and cursing at
Beverly to go to work., GJT 44, 46. After Beverly informed Defendant that she would not be
going to work, the Defendant left the residence. GJT 44. At this time, Beverly got out of bed
and tried to call the police. GJT 42-44, Beverly limped to the stairs. GJT 47. Beverly could
only whisper, even though she was trying to talk louder. GJT 48, Initially Beverly called 411.
GJT 49. Then she called 311. GIT 44-45. Because Beverly was having a difficult time
talking, Ashanti eventually took over the 911 call. GJT 43, 45,

Officer Vital and other police officers eventually arrived at the residence and tried to
speak to Beverly, however, again Beverly had difficulty communicating with them., GJT 43,
86. Initially Officer Vital spoke to Ashanti who pointed him towards Beverly.' GIT 87.
Officer Vital described Beverly as “a little lethargic, disoriented, kind of displaying sort of
intoxicated tj(pe of person clues, but I could not smell any odor of alcohol coming from her.”
GIT 87. She had slurred speech and muffled sentences. GJT 87. She would get lost in the
conversation. GJT 87. Beverly was unable to give her date of birth, name the President or

4
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identify the day of the week. GJT 87-88. Officer Vital also noticed that she had abrasions on
the side of her face and her face was swollen. GJT 88-89. Beverly had pettechia and
scratching on her neck. GJT 89. Ashanti testified that Beverly did not have a limp or difficulty
communicating until right after Defendant beat Beverly, GIT 52. Beverly was taken to the
hospital. GIT 91.

Officer Aker followed Beverly to the hospital. GIT 93. Officer Aker has taken almost
240 hours in domestic violence training courses and is permiited to teach other cadets about
domestic violence and strangulation. GIT 94. Specific to strangulation, Officer Aker attended
a course on strangulation. ‘GIT 94. This training has assisted other officers in the field on
numerous occasions. GJT 95,

Officer Aker testified that Beverly was very scared and upset. GJT 97. He noticed a
black eye and an abrasion and bruising to her face. GIT 97, Beverly hesitated to move her
neck. GJT 97. She continued to sooth her neck. GJT 97. Her voice was very hoarse. GJT
97. At the hospital, Officer Aker noticed petechial hemorrhaging under her eyelids. GIT 98.
Beverly still had great difficulty in communicating due to her cognitive abilities being
diminished. GJT 102-03.

On August 11,2012, Officer Aker again returned to the hospital to check up on Beverly.
GJT 106. His interaction with Beverly was somewhat limited due to the several medical
procedures that were being performed. GJT 106. However, Officer Aker noticed that her
cognitive abilities had worsened. GJT 107. Beverly had virtually no ability to communicate.
GJT 107. Her answers were just gibberish. GJT 107. |

Eventually Beverly died and her body was examined by Dr. Olson. GJT 125. Dr.
Olson assigned the autopsy case number 12-7691, GIT 125. Each autopsy is given a unique
case number. GIT 126, An external review of her body showed that Beverly had intravenous
lines on her body. GJT 128. Prior to the autopsy, Dr. Olson noted that Beverly’s organs were
donated. GJT 128. In fact, there was a significant cut down the middle of her body which Dr.
Olson said was from the organ procurement procedure. GIT 129. Dr. Olson also identified
other “small injuries” on the surface. GIT 128,

5
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The internal examination showed that Beverly sustained a “considerable amount of
swelling in her brain.” GJT 129. Dr. Olson preserved the brain and sent it to Dr. Greco. GJT
129, 133. She testified that the bleeding on the brain would be indicative of trauma to the
head. GJT 130. Dr. Olson noticed the stark contrast in the coloration of the brain, which is
indicative of one side sustaining more injury than the other. GJT 131, She concluded that her
brain suffered trauma which “ultimately” led to her death. GIT 133-34. Other contributing
factors included the blockage of arteries which interfered with the blood flow to the brain,
GJT 134. This case was determined to be a homicide. GJT 15.

Dr. Claudia Greco has examined 400-500 brains for Varlous reasons in her medical
practice. GJT 12, The Clark County Coroner’s Ofﬁce\; contacted her to examine Beverly’s
brain. GJT 13. In December 2012, Dr. Greco received the brain from FedEx and keptitina
locked area. GIT 13. From that point forward she was the only person who handled the brain,
GJT 13. She personally assigned a number to the .brain which correlated with the number
assigned by the Clark County Coroner’s Office; 12-7691. GIT 14. In her review of the brain,
she noted significant injuries to the left side of the brain. GJT 18. Specifically, she noted a
hemorrhage on the underside of the brain. GJT 18. There was massive swelling on the brain
which would have “gotten to the point where her life was irretrievable.” GIT 18, The brain
began to hierniate or go down the spinal cord. GJT 22. Dr. Greco explained that this injury is
fatal because it will pinch the spinal cord and “destroy the cardiac breathing mechanisms,”
GJT 23. She testified that the brain tissue toward the spinal cord is “very swollen.” GIT 25.
In fact it was so swollen that there was no opening for the cerebrospinél fluid to transmit to
the brain. GJT 26-27. This fluid is important because it brings nutrients and oxygen to the
brain. GJT 27-28, The swelling was so severe that Beverly’s brain would not have allowed
for cerebrospinal fluid to transmit. GJT 28. Additionally, the swelling prevented blood from
transmitting to the brain. GJT 32. The left side of the brain was noticeably more swollen.
GJT 21. She also noted other hemorrhages in the brain. GJT 24.

Dr. Greco testified that the types of injuries Beverly sustained were absolutely the result
of trauma. GJT 28. The hemorrhage was large and caused the death of Beverly. GJT 29. Dr.

6

wi2012FNI 733\ [2FN1733-RET-(Mayo__Anthany)-001.docx

285



W0 N Yt B W o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Greco concluded Beverly “suffered cerebral trauma, brain trauma, and it was aggravated by
the fact that she already had high blood pressure and it was very, very hard to control.” GIT
29. Beverly’s brain was so significantly damaged that medical intervention could not have
saved her life. GJT 30.

Dr. Greco believed the injuries to Beverly’s brain were three to four days old. GIT 31.
She further explained that after Beverly sustained this trauma to the head, three to four days
later, the brain had swelled to the point where the necessary nutrients, including oxygen and
blood would not have been transmitting to the brain. GIT 33.

Detectives Owens and Bodnar investigated the case once it was determined that
Beverly died. GJT 111. In March 2013, Detectives Owens and Bodnar met with Defendant
in Los Angeles, California. GJT 111-12. After reading Defendant his Miranda rights,

Defendant admitted that a verbal argument escalated into a physical altercation. GJT 113. He
admitted to shoving her with both hands, slapping her in the face, punching her repeatedly,
and striking her with a vacuum, GJT 113. Initially Defendant said that he swung the vacuum
at her, but missed, GJT 117. When he missed the vacuum struck the bedpost and the vacuum
broke, GJT 117, Later, Defendant said that the vacuum hit Beverly in the hand as she tried
to block the vacuum from hitting her. GJT 114. Defendant claimed that Beverly pushed and
slapped him as he was trying to leave the residence. GJT 115-16. Defendant said he and
Beverly had intercourse and then the next morning he left the residence. GJT 114. When he
left he told Beverly that he was going to Los Angeles, GIT 117.

Defendant said he gave her some treatment for her black eye to make it appear that she
was not beat up. GJT 118. Defendant asserted that he asked Beverly if she wanted to go to
the hospital, but she refused and just asked for a Tylenol. GIT 119,

ARGUMENT |
L THE STATE PRESENTED THE PROPER AND NECESSARY
EVIDENCE | |
NRS 172.145 requires the State to present evidence that “will explain away the charge.”

Posmbly exculpatory evidence should not be examined piece by piece but as a whole in context

7
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of all the facts. Mazzan v. Warden, Ely State Prison, 116 Nev. 48, 71, 993 P.2d 25, 39 (2000).

“Undisclosed evidence must be considered collectively, not item by item.” Id.

The State presented all the evidence that would “explain away the charge” and thus the
Indictment should remain. Defendant complains that the State failed to present evidence that
Beverly was still alive at the time her organs were donated. Defendant also complains that
Rudy Murray, the transplant coordinator for UMC, did not testify that he informed the North
Las Vegas Police Department (NLVPD) that once her organs were donated, she would cease
to live, Furthermore, Defendant alleges that the State should have presented evidence that it |
was Beverly’s sister who elected to remove her from life support which “ultimately resulted
in her death.” The State complied with the statutory requirements and thus the Indictment
should not be dismissed. | |

The State presented abundant evidence that Defendant caused Beverly’s death. To
suggest that the cause of Beverly’s death was her sister’s decision to remove her from life
support is disingenuous. Dr. Greco testified that the injuries Beverly sustained were
“irretrievable.” GJT 18, She also testified that the injuries were fatal because they would have
destroyed her “cardiac breathing mechanisms.” GJT 23. Furthermore, Dr. Greco indicated
that the injuries Beverly sustained were absolutely caused by trauma. GJT 28. Medical
intervention could not have saved her life. GJT 30. If Defendant not had struck Beverly with
a vacuum-and pummeled her numerous times, Beverly would never have been in a situation
where there was a decision to be made about her life support.

The State presented evidence that she donated her organs. GJT 128, Common sense
informed the jury that she could no longer live without her organs. The State need not present
specifically that Rudy Murray specifically informed the NLVPD that she would cease to live
after her organs were donated because common sense would indicate that she could no longer
live when her organs were donated.

The State also notes that Beverly was declared dead on August 23, 2012. See Grand
Jury Exhibit 15 (Death Certificate). This information was presented to the Grand Jury.
Although the State did not specifically inform the Grand Jury that Rudy Murray, the transplant

8
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coordinator, did not contact NLVPD until August 25, 2012, to inform them that Beverly had
been pronounced brain-dead and that she would cease to live after her organs were donated,
the information regarding Beverly donating her organs was presented. These facts clearly
show that Rudy Murray’s information to NLVPD is not exculpatory. She was already
pronounced dead before Rudy Murray contacted NLVPD. Beverly was not going to regain
her life after August 23, 2012, She was only being kept on life support in order to preserve
the organs for harvesting. Beverly’s sister’s decision to remove her from life support was not
the cause of death. These facts do net explain away the charges and thus there is no obligation
to present them. |

It was the Defendant’s violent actions that caused Beverly’s death. Defendant
murdered Beverly. Had he not punched her with his fists and struck Beverly with the vacuum,
she would not be dead. The fact that the transplant coordinator called NLVPD two days after
Beverly was pronounced dead to inform them that she would cease to live after the organs
were harvested is not exculpatory. The decision of Beverly’s sister to remove her from life
support is also not exculpatory. None of this evidence explains away the charges and thus
there was no obligation for the State to admit this evidence.

II.  “VACUUM” SHOULD REMAIN IN THE INDICTMENT

Defendant claims that the “vacuum cleaner” language needs to be removed from the
Indictment because it is overly prejudicial and does not put him on notice of the State’s theory.
Both of these claims lack support. |

Including “vacuum”‘in the indictment is not overly prejudicial. The fact that the State
did not allege the vacuum as a deadly weapon in this case does not by itself justify its removal
from the Indictment. The State is under obligations of due process and notice to inform
Defendant what crimes the State will prove against him.

The purpose of the Indictment is to put Defendant on notice of the crimes for which the
State is prosecuting him. In fact, had the State not alleged that Beverly was murdered by
closed fists and/or vacuum cleaner, the State is confident Defendant would have argued at
length that the State cannot in closing arguments assert that Defendant killed Beverly by

9
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striking her with the vacuum based upon notions of due process and notice. The State supplied
proper and necessary notice that it intends to prove that Defendant killed Beverly by striking
her with his fists, striking her with the vacuum or striking her with both. Defendant fails to
cite any authority requiring the removal of “vacuum” from the Indictment.

The State need not allege that a vacuum is a deadly weapon to include it in the
Indictment. Just as Defendant used his fists, the State is also alleging that Defendant struck
Beverly with a vacuum which caused her death. It is necessary to include in the Indictment.
Including vacuum in the Indictment is not overly prejudicial. Defendant fails to state with
specificity how the word “vacuum” is prejudiciai. The State emphasizes that the Indictment
is not evidence, it is only a charging document.

III. THE STATE ESTABLISHED CHAIN OF CUSTODY OF THE BRAIN

“It is not necessary to negate all possibilities of substitution or tampering with an
exhibit, nor to trace its custody by placing each custodian upon the stand; it is sufficient to
establish only that it is reasonably certain that no tampering or substitution took place, and the
doubt, if any, goes to the weight of the evidence.” Sorce v. State, 88 Nev. 350, 352-53, 497
P.2d 902 (1972). Any breaks in the chain of custody goes to the weight of the evidence rather
than admissibility. '

Defendant asserts that the State failed to establish a proper chain of custody of the brain
because there was no testimony as to where the brain was secured until it was sent to Dr,
Greco. Defendant also complains that Dr. Olson did not testify that she sent the brain to Dr.
Greco, which creates another break in the chain. However, the State established a proper chain
of custody and the testimony of Dr. Greco and Dr. Olson proved that Defendant murdered
Beverly.

Dr. Olson, of the Clark County Coroner’s office testified that she was assigned to
examine Beverly. GJT 125. She assigned the autopsy a unique case number; 12-7691. Dr.
Olson testified that she sent the brain to Dr. Greco. GJT [33. Dr, Greco testified that the brain
was shipped to her via FedEx on a tracking system. GJT 13. The front desk immediately
transported the brain to Dr. Greco upon receipt. GJT 13. Once she received the brain she was
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the only one to handle it. GJT 13. She kept the brain in a locked closet. GIT 13. She assigned
the brain a unique number and tracked it with the Clark County Coroner unique number; 12-
7691. GIT 14,

The State established chain of custody of the brain, The State proved that Dr, Olson
examined the brain and then sent it to Dr, Greco. Dr. Greco received that brain and examined
it. The State need not have each person who ever handled the vessel the brain was transported
in testify to establish chain of custody. And the State need not remove all possibilities of
potential tampering, See Id. The brain was initially retrieved by the Clark County Coroner’s
office, a respected government agency with no interest in the case. It was sent via FedEx on
a tracking system and received by Dr. Greco who stated that she was the only person to
examine the brain. Additionally she testified that she kept it in a locked closet. Obviously,
the vessel the brain was secured in was not tampered with prior to Dr. Greco removing the
brain. Any minimal gap in the chain of custody of the vessel the brain was carried in goes to
the weight of the evidence rather than the admissibility of the evidence. Because the State
sufficiently established chain of custody, the testimony of both Dr. Olson and Greco were
appropriate.

IV. THE STATE SUFFICIENTLY PROVED THAT DEFENDANT
COMMITTED THE CRIMES OF BATTERY CONSTITUTING
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE-STRANGULATION, COERCION, AND
PREVENTING OR DISSUADING A WITNESS OR VICTIM FROM
REPORTING A CRIME OR COMMENCING PROSECUTION

At a preliminary hearing, and similarly before a Grand Jury, the State need only show
that a crime has been committed and that the accused probably committed it. The finding of
probable cause to support a criminal charge may be based on “slight, even ‘marginal’ evidence
because it does not involve a determination of the guilt or innocence of an accused.” Sheriff
v. Hodges, 96 Nev. 184, 186, 606 P.2d 178, 180 (1980); Sheriff v, Potter, 99 Nev. 389, 391,
663, P.2d 350, 352 (1983).

Moreover, to commit an accused for trial, the State is not required to negate all
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inferences which might explain his conduct, but only to present enough evidence to support a
reasonable inference that the accused committed the offense. Kinsey v. Sheriff, 87 Nev. 361,

363, 487 P.2d 340, 341 (1971) (emphasis added). The Court need not consider whether the

evidence presented in the record may, by itself, could sustain a conviction, since the State at a
preliminary hearing need not produce the quantum of proof required to establish guilt of the

accused beyond a reasonable doubt. Sheriff v. Hodges, supra; Miller v. Sheriff, 95 Nev. 255,

592 P.2d 952 (1979). The State need not present all its evidence at a preliminary hearing.
Neither the preliminary hearing nor a hearing on a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
is designed to resolve factual disputes or matters of defense which are functions of the triet of

fact at trial. Brymer v. Sheriff, 92 Nev. 598, 555 P.2d 844 (1976), Wrenn v. Sheriff, 87 Nev.

85, 482 P.2d 289 (1971). Likewise, it is not incumbent upon the state to negate all other
inferences at the preliminary hearing. Graves v. Sheriff, 88 Nev. 436, 498 P.2d 1324 (1972).

Defendant challenges the sufficiency of the evidence presented to the grand jury. The
State will discuss each challenge below, showing that sufﬁciént evidence was presented before
the grand jury.

a. The State Presented Sufficient Evidence that Defendant Committed
Battery Constituting Domestic Violence — Strangulation.

To prove Battery Constituting Domestic Violence - Strangulation, the State must prove
that Defendant intentionally impeded the normal breathing of a person in a manner that creates
a risk of death or substantial bodily harm. NRS 200.481. The State presented proper and
sufficient evidence to prove this offense before the grand jury.

Ashanti testified that she watched Defendant mounted Beverly and begin choking her.
GJT 59. Beverly was screaming and crying for help. GIT 63. Ashanti saw Defendant pushing
Beverly‘down into the bed. GJT 63. She knew Beverly was being choked because she could |
hear it in Beverly’s voice. GJT 64. Beverly would scream and then she would just stop. GJT
04.

Furthermore, Officer Vital testified that he noticed scratches on the side of the neck and
petechial hemorrhaging in her eyelids. GJT 88-89. He stated in his training and experience,
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wAZ012F\N173 M 2FN]733-RET(Mayo__ Anthony)-001.docx

211



A R+« IR SN D = . U O S .. N &S R N T Sy

P e et et e e bk e e
o = T e P ==

petechial hemorrhaging is usually caused by strangulation. GJT 90,

Officer Aker noticed that Beverly’s voice was very hoarse when he arrived at the
hospital with Beverly. GJT 97. He also identified petechial hemorrhaging under her eyelids.
GIT 98. Both of these are signs of strangulation. GJT 93-96. Officer Aker heard that her
voice was very hoarse. GJT 97. At the hospital, Officer Aker noticed petechial hemorrhaging -
under her eyelids. GJT 98. |

Officer Aker testified that he has been thoroughly trained to determine whether
strangulation occurred. GJT 93-95. He has responnded to numerous crime scenes for his
expertise in this area. GJT 95-96. |

Defendant alleges that Officers Vital and Aker improperly testified as experts,
Defendant questions such testimony because they are not medically trained. These allegations
have no legal basis. NRS 50.275 states that a witness maybe qualified as an expert by “special
knowledge, skill, experience, training or education.”

Officer Aker testified at length about his specialized knowledge, training, experience
and education in the area of strangulation. GJT 93-96. He qualifies to testify as an expert.
While Defendant may believe that someone more qualified, suchas a doctor, should have been
called, that is not a basis to exclude the evidence. Officer Aker properly testified based upon
his training and experience in the area of strangulation.

His testimony was not based upon the hearsay of someone else’s medical examination,
but based upon his observations of the victim. Officer Aker testified that “we (obviously
including himself) did a more thorough examination” at the hospital. GJT 98. He testified to
his own observations.

As for any allegations that the State did not present evidence that petechia can be caused
by something other than strangulation, the State notes that Officer Vital testified that petechia
is usvally caused by strangulation. GIJT 90. The Grand Jurors were well aware that the
petechia witnessed by the officers was not proof positive that she was strangled. However,
with the other injuries and signs of strangulation, the State sufficiently proved that she was

strangled. |
13
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Moreover, Defendant asserts that there was no evidence that the strangulation caused a
risk of death or substantial bodily harm is belied by the record. Ashanti testified that she
watched Defendant push Beverly by her neck into the bed: That is significant force. GIT 63,
Ashanti heard her mom’s screams simply cease at times when Defendant was pushing Beverly
into the bed. GIT 63-64, The grand jurors used their common sense to conclude that the
strangulatiron was significant enough to impede her normal breathing creating a risk of death
or substantial bodily harm,

Finally, Defendant alleges that Officer Aker was unqualified to opine that the injuries
to her throat led to brain injuries and an inability to communicate. This allegation is belied by
the record. The State is not sure from which portion of the testimony this allegation is made.
The State believes this allegation stems from the questioning on page 103 of the Grand Jury
Transcript. The State asked a question about her cognitive inability to communicate. Officer-
Aker explained that he believed her inability to communicate was more likely due to injury
than intoxication based upon how she was able to answer and what she was answering.
Beverly could not even provide basic information. He also mentioned that he was aware of
her injuries to her neck and head which led him to believe that the difficulty in communicating
was cognitive, Officer Aker never stated that the injuries to her throat led to brain injuries and
an inability to communicate. Instead, he testified that the injury to her neck and head, along
with the answers she was providing to basic questions led him to believe that she was having
cognitive problems. GJT 103,

As Defendant states, the State presented evidence that the medical doctors did not
notate any external signs of strangulation. Even with that information, the Grand Jury
determined that Defendant strangled Beverly. The evidence sufficiently demonstrated that
Defendant’s criminal actions strangled Beverly creating a risk of death or substantial bodily
harm.

b. The State Presented Sufficient Evidence that Defendant Committed
Coercion.
A person commits Coercion when they force or prevent another from doing something

14
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they have a right to do or not do. NRS 207.190. The State presented proper and sufficient
evidence that Defendant committed Coercion.

Here, the State sufficiently proved that Defendant prevented Beverly from calling the
police. Defendant became so upset that his eyes were “popping out of his head” and his vein
was popping out of his forehead. GJT 66. Beverly became scared and tried to call 911, GJT
59. However, Defendant slapped the phone out of her hand before she was able to complete
that call. GIT 59. The phone flew out of her hand and slid under the fridge. GJT 72.
Defendant threatened Ashanti when she tried to retrie?e the phone. GIT 72. |

These acts constitute Coercion. Defendant prevented Beverly from calling the police.
Beverly had every right to call the police. Defendant’s actions prevented Beverly from
completing her call to the police.

Defendant also argues that he did not prevent Beverly from calling the police because
there were other phones in the house. Defendant seems to suggest that it was an overly
crowded purse that inhibited Ashanti from finding another phone in Beverly’s purse.
Defendant’s flawed conclusion is that overly stuffed purse prevented Beverly from calling the
police. Defendant further argues that she could have called the police when she took a shower
and laid down in bed after the argument. Again this argument is flawed.

The State notes, that Defendant forced Beverly to sleep with him that night. GIT 71.
Defendant had his eyes on her to ensure she was not going to call the police. Beverly was in
such fear of Defendant that she did not even try to call the police again until he left the
residence. GJT 42-47. This conclusion is supported by the fact that as soon as Defendant left
the residence, Beverly sought out a telephone to contact the police.

The fact that other phones may have been in the house or that she waited so long to
contact the police again are not defenses to coercion. Defendant prevented Beverly from
calling 911 when he smacked the phone out of her hand, The State has demonstrated sufficient
probable for the Coercion charge.

I

i
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¢. The State Presented Sufficient Evidence that Defendant Committed
‘Dissuading a Witness or Vietim from Reporting a2 Crime or
Comrhencing Prosecution

NRS 199.305 reads in relevant part, “A person who, by intimidating or threatening
another person, prevents or dissuades a victim , ., from reporting a crime to a peace officer
or who hinders or delay such a victim or witness” is guilty of Dissuading a Witness. NRS
199.305. Defendant also committed this offense.

As Ashanti was searching through Beverly’s phone in‘attempt to retrieve another phone
and contact the police, Defendant told Ashanti that he would knock out Beverly if she called
the police. GJT 73. Defendant threatened and intimidated Ashanti and/or Beverly from
reporting these crimes. This is sufficient evidence to prove Defendant Committed Dissuading
a Witness.

Any allegations by defense that later Beverly and Ashanti were able to contact the
police and therefore he did not commit this crime are inaccurate. The statute states that even
hindering or delaying the reporting is a crime. Defendant’s threat stopped Ashanti from
searching for the phone to call the police. In fact, Defendant’s threats effectively stopped
Beverly and Ashanti from contacting the police until Defendant removed himself from the
residence.

Because Defendant prevented or hindered Beverly and/or Ashanti from calling the
police for two days, Beverly went two full days without any medical treatment. She eventually
succumbed to the injuries inflicted by Defendant. Defendant killed Beverly.

V. THESTATE DID NOT PRESENT BAD ACTS REQUIRING DISMISSAL

OF THE INDICTMENT
NRS 48.035(3) permits the admission of facts closely related to the charged crimes.

Many people refer to this as the complete story docirine. In Brackeen v, State, the Nevada
Supreme Court held that “the State is entitled to present a full and accurate account of the
circumstances surrounding the commission of a crime, and such evidence is admissible even
if it implicates the accused in the commission of other crimes for which he has not been
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charged.” 104 Nev. 547, 553, 763 P.2d 59, 63 (1988). The Court has further admonished the
courts that the crimes must be closely interconnected. See Powell v. State, 108 Nev. 700,
707-08, 838 P.2d 921, 926 (1992).

Defendant alleges that the State admitted impermissible bad act evidence. However,

the State did not admit bad act evidence. The State presented some evidence under the
complete story doctrine and admonished the jury as to ifs proper use. This is exactly what the
rules of evidence require.

Defendant clajms the State admitted several bad acts. The State will address each claim

and show that none of these admissions require the dismissal of the Indictment.

(1) Ashanti testified that Defendant returned home from work upset that Beverly
accidentally called him. GIT 54. In his frustration, he threatened to “whoop”
Ashanti, GJT 54. The State immediately interrupted Ashanti and admonished the
Jurors to ignore that testimony. GJT 55. The Jurors were instructed to ignore that
testimony and there is no evidence that the Jurors relied upon that testimony to
return a True Bill, Jurors are presumed to follow their instructions, McConnell v.
State, 120 Nev. 1043, 1062, 102 P.3d 606, 619 (2004). Accordingly, Defendant
fails to demonstrate that the jury relied upon this information in returning a True
Bill.

"The State would further note that this evidence is likely admissible to show the
Defendant’s state of mind. The State must prove Defendant’s intent in this case.
This testimony shows the Defendant’s anger and frustration with Beverly only a
few hours before he beats Beverly. This evidence is likely admissible even without,
but the Jurors were admonished out of an abundance of caution.

(2) Ashanti testified that Defendant and Beverly argued about whether Ashanti and
Ashley should be playing with a beach ball before dinner. GJT 56, Defendant
yelled at Ashanti to keep playing with the ball. GJT 57. For similar reasoning
above, this is not bad act evidence. This incident occurred only a few minutes
before Defendant began beating Beverly. This evidence shows Defendant’s
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demeanor and state of mind. Furthermore, this evidence is not overly prejudicial.
Defendant yelled at Ashanti to keep playing with a ball. He was not yelling at her
to do something bad and the yelling was not associated with any threat.

(3) Ashanti testified that “every time when he get mad his like forehead get this, like I
guess it’s his vein popping out of his head and it’s jiggling. So I guess when he’s
really mad that happens.” GJT 66. This age;in is not bad act evidence. Ashanti was
describing how Defendant looked when he grabbed the vacuunﬁ. ‘This is closely
related to the actual crime, The story cannot be told without referencing
Defendant’s demeanor and anger only moments before he struck Beverly with the
vacuum. Furthermore, the State admonished the Jurors to not consider any |
testimony referencing Defendant’s prior anger. GJT 82. Jurors are presumed to
follow their instructions. McConnell, 120 Nev. at 1062, 102 P.3d at 619.

(4) Ashanti testified that Defendant and Beverly fought, but he did not actually beat
her. GIT 70. Again the State immediately interrupted Ashanti and admonished the
Jurors to ignore that statement. GJT 70.

The State did not present any bad act evidence. The evidence presented falls under the
complete story doctrine. However, out of an abundance of caution, the State on numerous
occasions admonished the Jurors to ignore certain aspects of Ashanti’s testimony. Even at the
conclusion of Ashanti’s testimony, the State again admonished the Jurors to ignore any
instances of Defendant’s prior anger. GJT 82. The State did not present any, let alone an
overwhelming amount of, bad act evidence. The State cautiously admonished the Jurors on
several occasions. Accordingly, Defendant’s claim should be denied.

1
i
i
1
I
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CONCLUSION
WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing, the State respectfully requests that this
Honorable Court DENY Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus or Motion to

Dismiss.
DATED this 4th day of April, 2014.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar 001565 ',j:

RGBERT STEPHENS
Deputy District Attorney
Neva a Bar #0011286

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 4th day of April,
2014, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

Amy Feliciano, Deputy Public Defender
Public Defender s Office

309 South Third Street, Suite #226

Las Vegas, NV 89155

BY:  AVsSvg ENBAA

Theresa Dodson .
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
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ark County District Attorne
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ROBERT STEPHENS

Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #011286

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
CASENO: (C-14-295313-1
Plaintiff,
DEPTNO: XXV
~Y§-
ANTHONY TYRON MAYO,
#2581304
INDICTMENT
Defendant.
STATE OF NEVADA
88,
COUNTY OF CLARK

The Defendant above named, ANTHONY TYRON MAYO, accused by the Clark
County Grand Jury of the crime(s) of MURDER (Category A Felony - NRS 200010,
200.030); BATTERY CONSTITUTING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE - STRANGULATION
(Category C Felony - NRS 200.481; 200.485; 33.018); COERCION (Category B Felony -
NRS-207.190) and PREVENTING OR DISSUADING WITNESS OR VICTIM FROM
REPORTING CRIME OR COMMENCING PROSECUTION (Category D Felony - NRS
199.305), committed at and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, on or between
August 8, 2012 and August 10, 2012, as follows:

i
I
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COUNT 1 - MURDER

did on or betwsen August 8, 2012 to August 10, 2012, then and there wilfully,
felontously, without authority of law, and with premeditation and deliberation, and with
malice aforethought, kill BEVERLY MCFARLANE, a human being, by striking BEVERLY
MCFARLANE about the head and/or body with a closed fist and/or a vacuum cleaner, said
killing: (1) having been willful, deliberate, and premeditated, and/or (2) having occurred in
the commission of an unlawful act, which in its consequence, naturally tends to destroy the
life of a human being, which acts results in the death of BEVERLY MCFARLANE on or
about August 23, 2012,
COUNT 2 - BATTERY CONSTITUTING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE - STRANGULATION

did on or between August 8, 2012 to August 10, 2012, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously use force or violence upon the person of the defendant's spouse,
former spouse, or any other person to whom the defendant is related by blood or marriage, a
person with whom the defendant is or was actually residing, a person with whom the
defendant is having a dating relationship, a person with whom the defendant has a child in
common, the minor child of any of those persons or the defendant's minor child, to-wit:
BEVERLY MCFARLANE, by strangulation.

COUNT 3 - COERCION
did on or between August 8, 2012 to August 10, 2012, then and there wilfully,

unlawfully, and feloniously use physical force, or the immediate threat of such force, against
BEVERLY MCFARLANE, with intent to compel her to do, or abstain from doing, an act
which she had a right to do, or abstain from doing, by not allowing the said BEVERLY
MCFARLANE to call the police.
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COUNT 4 - PREVENTING OR DISSUADING WITNESS OR VICTIM FROM
REPORTING CRIME OR COMMENCING PROSECUTION

did on or between August 8, 2012 to August 10, 2012, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously, by intimidation or threats, prevent or dissuade or hinder or delay
ASHANTI MAYO and/or BEVERLY MCFARLANE from commencing a criminal
prosecution or a proceeding for the revocation of a parole or probation, or seeking or
assisting in such a prosecution or proceeding, by threatening to hurt Ashanti Mayo and/or
BEVERLY MCFARLANE if Ashanti Mayo and/or BEVERLY MCFARLANE contacted
the police.

.,

DATED this \hl day of January, 2014,

ROBERY STEPHERS
Deputy District Aftorney
Nevada Bar #011286

ENDORSEMENT: A True Bill
»* M
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Names of witnesses testifying before the Grand Jury:
AKER, ROBERT, NLVPD P#1053

GRECO, CLAUDIA, c/o CCDA/VWAC, 200 LEWIS AVE,, LVN
MAYO, ASHANTI, C/O CPS AND/OR B, MCFARLAND
OLSON, DR. ALANE, CCME, 1704 PINTO LN,, LVN
OWENS, BENJAMIN, NLVPD P#1173

VITAL, MANUEL, NLVPD

Additional witnesses known to the District Attorney at time of filing the Indictment:
BODNAR, MICHAEL, NLVPD P#724

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, CCDC

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, CITY OF LAS VEGAS DETENTION CENTER
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, LVMPD DISPATCH

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, LVMPD RECORDS

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, NLVPD DISPATCH

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, NLVPD RECORDS

FISCHER, PATRICK, NLVPD P#1647

GADAM, FNU, UMC, 1800 W. CHARLESTON BLVD,, LVN

GASTON, LEE, NLVPD P#2035

HALVERSON, ERIC, NLVPD P#1943

HOLLINGS, LARRY, NLVPD P#15%4

LEE, KANOWELL, NLVPD P#2288

MARKS, DANA, NLVPD P#1726

MCFARLAND, BERNICE, c/o CCDA/VWAC, 200 LEWIS AVE,, LVN
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PARENT/GUARDIAN OF ASHANTI MAYO, ¢/o CCDA/VWAC, 200 LEWIS AVE,, LVN
PEPITO, FNU, UMC, 1800 W, CHARLESTON BLVD., LVN

SEARCY, STEVIE, 43169 MATINEE AVE., NLV, NV

SWIFT, SHELDON, 326 STURGEON LN., LVN

VIGAL, MANUEL, NLVPD P#1923

VILLANUEVA, ALAIN, NLVPD P#1869

13BGJ036X/12FN1733X/dd-GJ
NLVPD EV# 1214352
(TKI/11)
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CLERK CF THE COURT

BISTRICT COURY
CLARKCOUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

PlambifY, CASENG. 142953131

W

ANTHONY TYRON MAYO,

DERT. 1D, ff{xi\f- |

Defendunt.

LORBS \*gm thie 'iamimi:, ;@Ni—i;:ﬁf{(m:\ %YR(N MAYD, by aind Ih::(ﬁiigi{fi_i‘

AMY A FELICIANG, “LPHI\ Public Defender and herehy filas this Reply (o the Stere’s Return
fo E\i‘iaya. ssi:‘!::t_ﬁ::‘@u for ’ﬁeﬁ-rgt af '1::3.&2{1::&5:{ift}‘l:-;}u5<'

“This Reply is nuade and based apen all-the papees s pleadings on Ble e, the:

| attached Declnration of Counsel, atd oral argivnent at the timeset for hearing on-Maye's Petilion:

for Writ-of Habieas Corpus,
DATED this D) day ot april, 2015, ‘

PHILIP ), KOHN o
CFAREAER) '_L%N'ﬁ'f BUBLAC DEFENDER
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| this evidence is veesssiry 1o prove Mayo's state of seind. That 38 puee, Bnpermissible bad
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CONCLUSION
Based on the-above, Mayo.respoctfilly requests that this- Court grant his Betition for Writ

of Haheas Corpas and-dismiss e fndictment againsthin;

DATED this l{% day of April, 2014,

..........
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IND )
STEVEN B. WOLFSON | i } s

Clark County District Attorne : '

Nevada Bar ?‘(#001565 Y CLERK OF THE COURT
ROBERT STEPHENS

Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #011286

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

- DISTRICT CQURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, '
CASE NO:  C-14-295313-1
Plaintiff,
DEPT NO: XXV
...VS-.
ANTHONY TYRON MAYO,
#2581304
INDICTMENT
Defendant.
STATE OF NEVADA
' S8,
COUNTY OF CLARK

- The Defendant above named, ANTHONY TYRON MAYO, accused by the Clark
County Grand Jury of the crime(s) of MURDER (Category A Felony - NRS 200.010,
200.030); BATTERY CONSTITUTING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE - STRANGULATION
(Category C Felony - NRS 200.481; 200.485; 33.018); COERCION (Category B Felony -
NRS 207.190) and PREVENTING OR DISSUADING WITNESS OR VICTIM FROM
REPORTING CRIME OR COMMENCING PROSECUTION (Category D Felony - NRS
199.305), committed at and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, on or between
August 8, 2012 and August 10, 2012, as follows:

1
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COUNT 1 - MURDER

did on or between August 8, 2012 to Augﬁst 10, 2012, then and there Wilfully,
feloniously, without authority of law, and with premeditation and deliberation, and with
malice aforethought, kill BEVERLY MCFARLANE, a human being, by striking BEVERLY
MCFARLANE about the head and/or body with a closed fist and/or a vacuum cleaner, said
killing: (1) having been willful, deliberate, and premeditated; and/or (2) having occurred in
the commission of an unlawﬁJl act, which in its consequence, naturaily tends to destroy the
life of 2 human being, Whlch acts results in the death of BEVERLY MCFARLANE on or
about August 23, 2012.
COUNT 2 - BATTERY CONSTITUTING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE - STRANGULATION

did on or between August 8, 2012 to August 10, 2012, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously use force or violence upon the person of the defendant's spouse,
former spouse, or any other person to whom the defendant is related by blood or marriage, a
person with whom the defendant is or was actually residing, a person with whom the
defendant is having a dating relationship, a person with whom the defendant has a child in
common, the minor child of any of those persons or the defendant's minor child, to-wit:
BEVERLY MCFARLANE, by strangulation.
COUNT 3 - COERCION

did on or between August 8, 2012 to August 10, 2012, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously use physical force, or the immediate threat of such force, against
BEVERLY MCFARLANE, with intent to compel her to do, or abstain from doing, an act
which she had a right to do,' or abstain from doing, by not allowing the said BEVERLY
MCFARLANE to call the police.
H
i
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COUNT 4 — PREVENTING OR DISSUADING WITNESS OR VICTIM FROM
REPORTING CRIME OR COMMENCING PROSECUTION

did on or between August 8, 2012 to August 10, 2012, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously, by intimidation or threats, prevent or dissuade or hinder or delay
ASHANTI MAYO and/or BEVERLY MCFARLANE from commencing a criminal
prosecution or a proceeding for the revocation of a parole or probation, or seeking or
assisting in such a prosecution or proceeding, by threatening to hurt Ashanti Mayo and/or
BEVERLY MCFARLANE if Ashanti Mayo and/or BEVERLY MCFARLANE contacted
the police. _

DATED this _]_l\ﬁ day of January, 2014,

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #011286

ENDORSEMENT: A True Bill
LY g
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Names of witnesses testifying before the Grand Jury:

AKER, ROBERT, NLVPD P#1053

GRECO, CLAUDIA, ¢/o CCDA/VWAC, 200 LEWIS AVE,, LVN
MAYO, ASHANTI, C/O CPS AND/OR.B. MCFARLAND
OLSON, DR. ALANE, CCME, 1704 PINTO LN., LVN
OWENS, BENJAMIN, NLVPD P#1173

VITAL, MANUEL, NLVPD

Additional witnesses known to the District Attorney at time of filing the Indictment:
BODNAR, MICHAEL., NLVPD P#724

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, CCDC

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, CITY OF LAS VEGAS DETENTION CENTER
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, LVMPD DISPATCH

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, LVMPD RECORDS

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, NLVPD DISPATCH

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, NLVPD RECORDS

FISCHER, PATRICK, NLVPD P#1647

GADAM, FNU, UMC, 1800 W. CHARLESTON BL VD, LVN

GASTON, LEE, NLVPD P#2035

HALVERSON, ERIC, NLVPD P#1943

HOLLINGS, LARRY, NLVPD P#15%4

LEE, KANOWELL, NLVPD P#2288

MARKS, DANA, NLVPD P#1726

MCFARLAND, BERNICE, c¢/o CCDA/VWAC, 200 LEWIS AVE,, LVN

1 |
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PARENT/GUARDIAN OF ASHANTI MAYO, ¢/o CCDA/VWAC, 200 LEWIS AVE., LVN
PEPITO, FNU, UMC, 1800 W. CHARLESTON BLVD,, LVN

SEARCY, STEVIE, 43169 MATINEE AVE,, NLV, NV

SWIFT, SHELDON, 326 STURGEON LN., LVN

VIGAL, MANUEL, NLVPD P#1923

VILLANUEVA, ALAIN, NLVPD P#1869

13BGJ036X/12FN1733X/dd-GJ
NLVPD EV# 1214352
(TKI/11)
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THE STATE OF NEVADA,
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Plaintiff, )
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Defendant, )
)
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, JANUARY 16, 2014

* ok ok ok & ok K

DANETTE L. ANTONACCI,

having been first duly sworn to faithfully
and accurately transcribe the following

proceedings to the best of her ability.

THE FOREPERSON: Let the record reflect
that I have canvassed the waiting area and no one has
appeared in response to Notice of Intent to Seek
Indictment.

MS. BROWN: Ladies and gentlemen of the
grand, my name is Colleen Brown. Along with me is
Robert Stephens. We are presenting the case of Grand
Jury Case Number 13BGJ036X, State of Nevada versus
Anthcny Tyron Mavyo.

The record will reflect that we have marked
a copy of the proposed Indictment as Exhibit Number 1
and that all members of the Grand Jury have a copy of
it.

Pricr to proceeding to the remainder of our
instructicns, T wanted to direct the ladies and
gentlemen of the Grand Jury's attention to Count 3. The

State has a proposed amendment to Count 3 on line 22,

18
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removing the name of Ashanti Mayo and replacing it with
Beverly McFarlane. And that is B-E-V-E-R-L-Y,
M-C-F-A-R~-L-A-N-F.

Also with regards to Count 4, ﬁhe State has
a proposed amendment to line 5 to read Ashanti Mayoe
and/or Beverly McFarlane. And line 7 toc read proceeding
"by threatening to hurt Ashanti Mayo and/or Beverly
McFarlane‘if Ashanti Mayo and/or Beverly McFarlane
contacted the police."

The defendant in this case is charged with
murder, battery constituting domestic viclence -
strangulation, coercion, and preventing or dissuading
witness or victim from reporting crime or commencing
prosecution. We are required by law to advise you of
the elements of these offenses. We will mark these
instructions as Exhibit 2 this afternocon when our doctor
testifies.

For now you are instructed that murder is
the unlawful killing of a human being with malice
afgrethought, either express or implied. The unlawful
killing may be effected by any of the various means by
which death may be occasicned.

Malice can be either express or implied,
Express malice is that deliberate intention unlawfully

to take away the life of a fellow creature, which is

11
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manifested by external circumstances capable of proof.

Malice shall he implied when no
considerable provocation appears, or when all the
circumstances of the killing show an abandoned and
malignant heart.

The intention to kill may be ascertaiﬁed or
deduced from the facts and circumstances of the killing,
such as the use 0of a weapon calculated to produce death,
the manner of its use, and the attendant circumstances
characterizing the act.

The prosecution is not required to present
direct evidence of the defendant's state of mind as it
existed during the commission of the crime. The Grand
Jury may infer existence of particular state of mind
from the circumstances disclosed by evidence.

Battery constituting domestic violence -
strangulation. Battery means any willful and unlawful
use of force or violence upon the persen of another. A
battery by strangﬁlation occurs where a person willfully
and unlawfully uses force or vioclence upon the person of
another by strangulation.

"Strangulation" means intentionally
impeding the normal breathing or circulation of the
blood by applying pressure on the throat or neck or by

blocking the nose or mouth of another person in a manner

12
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which creates a risk of death or substantial bodily
harm.

bomestic vicolence occcurs when a person
commits one of the following acts against or upon the
person's spouse or former spouse, any other person to
whom the person is related by blcod or marriage, any
other person with whom the persdn 1is or was actually
residing, any other person with whom the person has had
or 1s having a dating relationship, any other person
with whom the person has a child in common, the minor
child of any of those persons, the person's minor child
or any cther person who has been appointed the custodian
or legal guardian for the person's miner child: A
battery. Compelling.the other person by force or threat
of force to perform an act from which the other person
has the right to refrain or‘fo refrain from an act which
the other person has the right to perform.

As used in this section, "dating
relationship” means frequent, Intimate associations
primarily characterized by the expectation of
affectional or sexual involvement. The term does not
include a casual relétionship or an ordinary association
between persons in a business or social context.

A, Coercion. It 1is unlawful for a person,

with the intent to compel another to do or abstain from

13
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doing an act which the othér perscn has a right to do or
abstain from doing, to: (a) Use violence or inflict
injury upon the other perscn or any of the other
person's family, or upon the other perscn's property, or
threaten such violence cr injufy; (b) Deprive the person
of any tool, implement or clothing, or hinder the person
in the use thereof; or (c) Attempt to intimidate the
person by threats of force.

Preventing or dissuading witness or victim
from reporting crime or commencing prosecution. A
person wﬁo, by intimidating or threatening another
perscon, prevents or dissuades a victim of a crime, a
person acting on behalf of the victim or a witness from:
{a) Reporting a crime or possible crime to a: Judge;
peace officer; parole or probétion officer; prosecuting
attorney; warden ¢r cther employee at an institution of
the Department cf Corrections; or superintendent or
other employee at a juvenile correctional facility; (b)
Commencing a criminal prosecution or a proceeding for
the revocation of a parole or probkation, or seeking or
assisting in such a prosecution or proceeding; or (q)
Causing the arrest of a person in connection with a
crime, or who hinders or delays such a victim, agent or
witness in an effort to carry out any of those actions

has committed the offense of preventing or dissuading

14
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10

witress or victim from reporting crime or commencing
prosecution. |

Are there any questions with regards to the
elements of the charged offenses?

With that the State calls its first
witness., Dr. Claudia Greco,

THE FOREPERSON: Please raise your right
hand.

You do solemnly swear thé testimony vou are
about to give upon the investigation now pending before
this Grand Jury shall be the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, so help you.God?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE FOREPERSON: Please be seated.

You are advised that you are here today to
give testimony in the investigation pertaining to the
offenses of murder, battery constituting domestic
vioclence - strangulation, coercion, and preventing or
dissvuading witness or viectim from reporting crime or
commencing prosecution, involving Anthony Mayo.

Do you understand this advisement?

THE WITNESS: Yes.,

THE FOREPERSON: Please state your first
and last name and spell both for the record.

THE WITNESS: TIt's Claudia Greco.
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C~-L-A-U-D-I-A, G-R-E-C-0.
THE FOREPERSCN: Thank you.
MR. STEPHENS: May I proceed?
THE FPOREPERSON: Yes.
MR. STEPHENS: Thank you. -

CLAUDIA GRECO,

having been first duly sworn by the Foreperson of the
Grand Jury to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

and nothing but the truth, testified as follows:

EXAMINATION

BY MR, STEPHENS:

Q. Dr. Greco, I want to ask you about your
qualifications and some of your education. Can you
summarize some of your schooling?

A, Yes. I went to medical school in
Pennsylvania and I'm from Pennsylvania. And L, after
+hat I went and I did my residency in pathology at
University of Califeornia in San Diegc. And 1 then did a
neuropathology fellowship which is the study of the
brain for two years after that. And I worked at, in San
Diego for a short time and then ultimately moved to
ganta Resa. 1 worked at University of California, San

Francisco., I've worked at Stanford. And then for the
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past 13 years I have worked at University of California
in Davis and that's in Saecramento, California. And I've
written numerous papers and literature and I teach.
T've limited my practice to the brain and in that I
examine surgical specimens from people with brain tumors
and I also examine autopsy brains. I've worked at the
Sacramentc County Coroner's Qffice examining brains. I
did that for about five years, did all their cases. And
I currently handle the Placer Nevada County forensic
cases.

Q. Okay. 5%o during your studies and your
work, how many brains give or take do you think you've

examined?

A. Ch, I would say four to 500.
Q. And you've been asked to do a variety of

things in examining those brains such as looking for
tumors or determining trauma or determining
abnormalities?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you havelto take any continuing
education courses cr is there any licensing that goes
along with what vyou do?

A, There's licensing that goes along with my
general study of pathology and neurcpathology. In terms

of forensic pathclogy there is no sort of certification
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of that. 1It's a subspecialty that some of us pursue
more than others in forensics. And so T have gone to
meetings in forensic neuropath and it's my Jokr to stay
abreast of literature. Every time I have a case I
regearch the literature, I read my current books and I
always update myself on my work.

Q. Okay. Were you asked to analyvze a brain

from Beverly McFarlane?

A, Yes.

Q. Who was it that asked you to examine that
brain?

A, The Clark County Coroner's Office.

Q. And do you recall whether cr not the, how

the brain goct to you?

A. Yes, I do. The standard way that this
happens with cut of town or out of city brains is that
they are shipped to us via Fed Ex and that's how this
brain came. And as you know these are all tracked.
Whenéver the brain arrived at the University to our
department, it was accepted by our front desk staff,
person signed off on that, and the front desk staff was
instructed that as soon as this brain came that it was
to be immediately transported to my office, which is
xept locked. And after that I was the cnly one that

handled the brain, taking it to the lab to ogxamine 1it,
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and after I finished, put it in a locked cleoset. And
what happens is is the brain is assigned a number when
it comes into our facility and that number, on
everything that I examine, and when I take small pieces
to look at under the microscope, that game number
feollows the case through all my examination and then
when my report is done it's, of course i1t's numbered all
the same way, and then ultimately end up with a report
and then the brain comes back to the coroner's office

for, they keep it for, I don't know how long.

o. The number or case number that you assigned

it, do you recall that off the top of your head?

L. Tt was 12051468,

Q. And do you know whether or not Clark County
assigned a number to that case also? |

A. Definitely. And that number also is on my
report 50 we just keep everything congruent all the
time.

Q. Do vou remember that number off the top of
your heacd?

A, No.

Q. Would it refresh your reccllection to refer
to your report?

A. Yes.

Q. T'11l apprcach and hand you a copy of your
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report here.

A, Okay. So the Clark County number is
12-7691,

Q. And that refreshed your recollection?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. When you receive, do you recall what

date it was that you received this brain?

A, No, but I know it was in December of 2012.

Q. And in December of 2012 what did you do
with that?

A, With the brain?

Q. Yes.,

A, Well, that's when, when I received it T

examined it and then took out of the brain, after I
actually look at the brain and I cet it so that T can
see what's going on inside, I take small rleces of
tissue, they're about one and a half by, oh say -- no
wait ;f veah, one and a half inches by one inch and
about a guarter inch. We do everything in centimeters
so0 I'm trying to translate. About an eighth of an inch
thick. And I put those in a small plastic container and
with that same number on it and designated by A, B, C,
D, B, ¥, Gor 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7. T have what we call
a slide key where I say section Bl is from frontal lobe

and 1 identify where every one of those sections is
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fermalin, which by the way is how the brain is received.
They're fixed in formalin and they go through a
processor where they finally end up in paraffin and then
we have technicians who cut these very thin and then
attach them to a slide that's numbered with the same

number and then that slide is, I lock at that under the

microscope and then I write what, T write a microscopic

report of what I found. And sometimes what we need and
which I did in this case i1s we need what are called
special stains and so these special stains highlight
different abnormalities that are in the tissue and
verify what I've seen on the first stain or add
additional information to that.

Q. Okay. And I probkably gct ahead of myself a
little bit. But prior to doing any examination of the
brain, were you given any documents to review?

A. Yes, I had a small number of, a small
amount of paperwork that came with the case in the same
kox.

Q. Do you recall what types of documents those
would have been?

A. There was a small amount of clinical
history on the case. BRBasically the events of the trauma

that the lady suffered in her home. And I had a
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preliminary report of what the general forensic
pathologist had found. And subsequentiy I asked for
more records because as Mr. Stephens knows I really
study these cases and I like to be wvery sure of the
whole thing.

Q. Okay. So after reviewing the documents
that you received then it sounds like what you do is you

begin to examine the brain both microscopically and

overall?
A, Yes.,
Q. Now prior to examining it microscopically

do you do an overall review of the brain to determine
what areas of interest you may have?
A, Yes.

Q. I want to get right to the crux of this.

Did you find any abnormalities on the overall brain

itself?
A, Yes.
Q. What abnormalities did you see?
A, I saw —— and I understand this is hard to

figure out because it's such, it's what goes on inside
the head. As I told Mr. Stephens it would be hard for
me to understand legalese so if you need me to explain
anything or draw you a picture I'm happy to do that.

But whenever you take the skull off the brain, you're
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looking inside at a covering on the brain that's called
the dura. It's very, very stretchy which is gobd if you
nit your head. On the underside of that ~- and by the
way all these changes occurred on the left hand side of
the brain. On the underside of that was hemorrhage.
And then the surface of the —- and so then after you
take off the dura, you're looking at the brain itself in
the skull. And of course I didn't have the skull, I
just had the brain, but the same pictures that I looked
at from the general coroner who took plctures of the
brain inside the head were the same. %o vyou lock at the
brain itself and it has what we call staining or
discoleoration of the next covering of the brain that is
right attached to the brain itself. So there was
discoloration looking down at the brain that T saw.
Then when I turned the brain over, so I'm basically
looking at it from this direction, what I saw was
evidence of massive swelling of the brain and. enough
swelling and enough abnormalities to tell me that this
lady had gotten to the point where her life was
irretrievable, that she was going to die and she did
die. And this kind of injury is not uncommorn, it's the
classic thing that happens.

Q. Okay. TI'm going to show you a few photos

in a second and T want you to point out some of these
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abnormalities that you viewed, vou saw on the brain,
Before I do that, what is disccloration? When you're
talking about this discoloration, what would cause this
discoloration?

A. When the subdural, when the hemorrhage
occurs uﬁder the dura, until it gets sealed off, which
is a natural healing process of the brain, it‘s_liquid,
it's blocd, and it gives discoloration. to the cofer, the
next layer right underneath it.

Q. Ckay. And what types of, when you say
nemorrhage, can you tell us what a hemorrhage is?

A. It's bleeding. It's bleeding in a space
where there shouldn't be blocd.

Q. I'm going to show you what have been marked
as Grand Jury Exhibits 16 through 22. Will you take a
look at those for a second and then tell me if you

recognize them cnce you've reviewed them.

A, I'm just putting them in order.

Q. Do you recognize these?

A. Yes.

Q. What are they?

A. They are pictures, T tcok these pictures

and I, they're pictures of this lady's brain which you

can see ——

Q. You can't show them yet. Just one second.
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A. I identified all of them with her number.
Q. So you put your case number that you

assigned to this case in these photos?

A, Yes.

Q. These are all photos that you took?

A, Yes.

Q. &nd this is the way you locked when you

examined the brain on that specific date?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. I'm going to show you these, I'm
going to put them up here on the Elmo projector.

A, The first one is on the bottom.

Q. Okay. We'll start with that one. We will
start with Exhibit 16.

That's upside down.
A. Yes, you're right, it's upside down. Can

you turn it the next way and it will make more sense Lo

people.
T Q. This way?
A. Yes.,
Q. Just real gquick over here on the left hand

side, what are we locking at?
A, The label for the brain,

Q. And this is where you would have indicated

the case number?
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A Yes.
Q. What are we looking at here?
A, This is the brain as though you're standing

behind the patient so that the left is on the left and
the right is on the right. So you're standing behind
the patient and you're looking down. So on the left
hand side is what's, and I'm sure you've heard this, the
left hemisphere and the right hemisphére, and you can
see on the left side the area of discoloration and
that's just the staining from the blocd that would have
occurrec from the layer that has been removed above it.
The other thing you'll note is that the left side of the
brainlié bigger than the right and that's because of
swelling which is due to the damage she suffered which

vyou'll see later.

Q. I'm showing you what has been marked as
Exhibit 21,

A, The other way.

Q. Messed it up again.

What are we looking at here?

A. Okay. So this is the underside of the
brain and this is what I said to you before explained
what happened and why she died. Is taken as though we
were looking at you laying on your back and your head up

tilted back. So on this one the left side is actually
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on the right hand side.

Q. Okay. So you're referring to this area is
actually the left side of the brain?

B, Yes. And so you can see the discoloration
again that occurred there again due to the subdural
hemorrhage. And the other changes that are there
that -— am I allowed to get up and point?

Q. Yes, absclutely. You just have to keep
your voice up sc they can hear you.

A, Qkay. So we're locking, and if you'll
notice there is asymmetry between these two sides. So
you see this big lump or enlargement of this tissue and
you don't see it over here. And what that, and so the
way that the brain is which -- do you want me to draw a

picture like I drew for you?

Q. In a moment. Let me get there in one
second.

A, Okay.

Q. Go ahead.

A, So what this tells me is that this side is

bigger and what happened here is that the brain is
starting, because it's so large it's starting to
herniate or go down towards the spiﬁal cord.  Because
that's what the skull dces. It's_big and then it

decreases in size and goes to the spinal cord. And so
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this tells me that what was going on here is she's
starting, her brain is starting to go down and what it
will do tc the structures that are in the narrow area
that ccme down towards the spinal cord is it will effect
and damage and in fact destroy the cardiac and breathing
mechanisms and that's fatal. You can't reverse that.
And that's also corrchorated in the clinical history.

Q. Okay. Let me ask vou real quick. This
circular area here, what's this area? Is this where it

goes down towards the spinal cord?

A, Yes,

Q. And that's in the very center of the photo
there?

A. That's right, in the center of the head.

Q. Let ﬁe show you another pheoto. Hopefully

T'm still in order. This is Exhibit 17, Do you want it
this way?

A, Yeah.

Q. You can stand up again if you need to tell
us what we're looking at here.

A, Okay. That's lcoking at the left side of
the brain. The nose is up here. And so this is coming
back towards your ear. And you can see the

discoloration here which we've seen before. I just take

lots of photes.
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Q. So on the left hand side of the picture
that would be where the nose and the front of the face
would be?

A. That's correct.

0. It looks like on-this photo, just so I'm
clear, it looks like there might be like a cut kind of
in the middlie of the picture, like a smiley face.

A, Yeah. That is what happens, that's an
artifact, that's part of sometimes when you're cutting

through the skull the saw bounces in and hits the brain.

Q. Okay. And let me show you Exhibit 20.

A, The other way. There you go.

Q. Thank you very much. What are we looking
at here?

A, Ckay. So this is when I start cutting the

brain tc see what's inside and I cut sections that are
cut this way. So now we're lccking at another
perspective. And what you can see here, again left and
right, are these hemorrhages in the brain.

Q. And can you describe what they look like on
the photograph, what hemorrhages look like?

A. That's these red brown discolorations in
the brain that vou can see that tell you that there's
been damage. And the other thing that's here that's

aison shown in the CAT scans later and is evidence of
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swelling of the brain is that instead of the gray matter
being really sharply delineated from the white matter,
there’'s so much fluld in the brain that it's not
anymore,

o. And these CAT scans are something that you
reviewed in analyzing the brain?

A. Yes.

Q. I'm showing you Exhibit 19, What are we
locking at here?

A, We're looking at a further back section of
the brain. And this is the left side and here we're
just beginning to coﬁé into the large hemorrhage that
was seen on her CAT scans,

Q. Okay. And just s0 the record's clear,
these are vertical cuts through the brain?

A, That's right.

Q. I'm showing you Exhibit 18. Do you

recognize this?

A, Yes,
Q. What is that?
A, This is again further back. And you can

see this is the major part of the hemorrhage and as it
comes back it gets more into this region. So it's sort
of a longitudinal damage.

Q. Okay. You're referring to this damage. Is
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it any different cclor than the non-damaged portions of
the brain?

A. Yes, it's red because there's hemorrhage or
blood in it.

Q. - And then lastly I want to show you

Exhibit 22. Do you recognize this?

A, Yes.
Q. What are we looking at here?
A. So if you remember the picture that we

looked at the underside of the brain and there was a
structure in the center. lThis is the structure in the
center and then this is further back, so now we're
starting to get intc the region of the brain tissue that
heads down towards the spinal cord and this is very,
this tissue is all very swollen. And I took these
pictures to show that her brain was so swollen that she
wouldn't have been able to transmit cerebrospinal fluid
into the brain. Sc there should be a hole right there,
a tract, and this shculd be a space also and they're
just not there because of all the swelling.

Q. Okay. So let me make sure I understand you
correctly- then. There should be a hole in the, there's
an upper portion of this photo, it looks like a circle
almost, and there should be a circle or a hole inside

this specimen somewhere?
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Q.

picture,

A.

Q.

That's the mid brain, ves.

The mid brain.

Yes.

Down here in the larger portion of the
there should also be a hole?

Yes.

and those holes are not depicted in these

That's correct,
Why would that be?
Because the brain tissue is very swollen.

And you alsc mentioned, and there was a

term that I'm going to mispronounce cause I didn't

really understand it. It was a neuro spinal fluid I

think.

A,

Q.

A.

Cerebrospinal fluid.
Cerebral. What is that?

That is, it's also called CSF. Tt's the

fluid that flows constantly around and through our

brains that brings nutrients into the brain. Blcod

vessels are in there. So it's critical that this fluid

flow.

Q.

portions

And because there's no hole in these

of the brain, do you have any expert opinion as

to whether or not she would have been receiving the
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proper nutrients that she would need from that spinal
fluig?

A, Well, she wouldn't have been able to
because it wasn't able to flow.

Q. And what would be the possible injuries
that could be sustained or the damage that could be
sustained if there isn't that spinal fluid flowing?

A, Well, it is just a contributor to the fact
that this brain‘is already swollen and damaged. And you
know the fact that the cerebrospinal fluid cannot flow
means you cannot even get, you can't get oxygen, you
can't get the nutrients to the'brain that you need.

Q. Okay. BRased upon your analysis of the
brain and alsc your expertise in this area, could you
determine potentially what type of objects could have
caused these type of injuries?

A, You mean without knowing the history?

Q. veah. Without knowing the history, if
vou're just looking at the brain, what types of things
could cause the injuries that this individual sustained?

A. Tt's clearly trauma. There's absoclutely no
question abcut that.

Q. And trauma is, can you describe Lthat in lay
terms and regular terms?

A, Sure. Anything that damages, hits the
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brain or hits the skull or if there's impact. So say
somebody in a car whiplashes and hits their head before
air bags came out.

Q. And vou saw photos of the hemorrhage on the
left side of that brain. In your opinion in what you've
reviewed in those several hundreds of brains you
reviewed, was that a large hemorrhage, a minor
hemorrhage? Can you just describe how large or small
that hemorrhage would have been in comparison to other
brains?

A, The criteria -- well, you can have any size
of hemorrhage in another brain, but the way that those
are characterized in the pPathology literature is that
that would be called, because of the size, would be a
large hemorrhage.

Q. In your medical opinion as to, do you have
any cpinion as to what could have potentially caused the

death of this individual?

A. Yes, definitely.
Q. What opinion is that?
A, It is she suffered cerebral trauma, brain

Crauma, and it was aggravated by the fact that she
already had high blcod pressure and it was very, very
hard to contreol. So what happens whenever you have high

blood pressure is that there's more force being
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transmitted into the brain, and hemorrhages, it's easier
tc get a hemorrhage whenever you're hypertensive. But
that is not the location of a hemcrrhage that would
occur just with high blood pressure.

Q. Okay. I believe at one point you testified
that she wouldn't have been able to come back from this.
Can you describe what vou were referring to with that
comment

A. Well, it's really, I could do that from the
clinical records and I can also just say pathologically,
even 1f T didn't know the clinical history, is that once
you start to see evidence of the brain herniating, which
is what it's called when it starts to come through the
central hole in the skull, 1is that that, that's
inconsistent with life. That's what we see in people
who die, If vou don't have that severity vou can, if
the clinicians can treat somebody with cerebral edema
before that starts to occur or even in the early part of
it, they can be brought back.

Q. So would any medical intervention, would

that have assisted in potentially saving her life?

A, It didn't,
Q. It didn't.
A, If you look at the clinical records, they

tried everything they could.
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MR, STEPHENS: Okay. Are there any
questions by the grand jurors for this witness?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY A JUROR:

Q. Dr. Greco, can you give me a better idea of
the timelines of when and how important is it that you
get the brain to examine within a certain period of
time? Is it important?

A, What we always do, what is the standard is
that the brain is put into formalin which is a fixative
and it fixes for a minimum cf two weeks before we
examine it. And the reason, there's several reasons for
that and cne is that when you cut the brain fresh you
can, it's more mobile, yeah, and her's would have been,
you know, very soft, and I could not do a good
examinatibn as well as I can 1f it's fixed. So we're
out at least two weeks.

Q. Thank vyou.

BY MR. STEPHENS:

Q. T want to follow-up on that cuestion. Were
you able Lo determine a duration of when these injuries
may have occurred?

A. By microscope, they appeared tc¢ be three to
four days old by the microscopic examination.

0. Three to four days old, can you describe
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what you mean by that; as in the trauma would have
occurred three or four days prior to, to what?

A,  Not that the trauma occurred three to four
days prior, but -- there's several things. One is that
whenever T look at the hemorrhage which was enlarging, I
only look at the cutside part of it. So that, you know
I can't look at the center because of all the
hemorrhage, 1t would just be blood. And so I'm locking
at the edge which we know is this thing is getting
bigger, so it's going to be younger. And in terms, and
the other thing that happens is when the blood stops
flowing, and we know thié lady, before she died, she was
what's called hypoperfusing, sc she wasn't sending blood
to the brain as well as what she should have been and it
got worse and worse. S0 whehever you can't get blood to
the brain all the processes, the reacticns to brain
damage stop because you're not getting blecod there to
bring the white cells. 8o it's, when I do my reports I
say what I saw, I don't make judgments. And so then I
correlate with the clinical history. And then this lady
also had so many problems with her high blood pressure,
with the -- and when the brain starts teo swell it's a
cascade, 1t can just, unless it can be stopped with
drugs it will just ceontinue to swell once it's off

balance.
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Q. So this three to four day duration period,
I just want to make sure I'm understanding it, 1if
someone occurred an injury at the beginning of the year,
January lst, maybe they don't die until February 14th --

A, Uh-huh.

Q. -— would you be able to determine, let's
say they go into a comatose state at the beginning of
February, what is this duration measuring? Is this
duration from the time that they go into like a comatose
state or from the beginning of when the trauma actually
occurread?

A, It would go from the time of trauma to the
point when blood flow was so compromised that it can nc
longer continue tc develop.

Q. I see. So the trauma would have occurred
and then according to your analysis three to four days
the blocod flow would have been restricted heavily?

A. ' Yes.

MR. STEPHENS: OQOkay. .Are there any other
questions by the grand jurors?

THE FOREPERSON: No,

MR. STEPHENS: Thank you. She needs to
admonish you.

THE FCREPERSON: By law, these proceedings

are secret and you are prohibkited from disclosing to
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anyone anything that has transpired before us, including
evidence and statements presented to the Grand Jury, any
event occurring or statement made in the presence of the
Grand Jury, and informaticn obtained by the Grand Jury.

Failure to ceomply with this admonition is a
gross misdemeancr punishable by a year in the Clark
County Detention Center and a $2,000 fine. In addition,
you may be held in contempt of court punishable by an
additional $500 fine and 25 days in the Clark County
Detention Center.

Do you understand this admonition?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE FOREPERSON: Thank you. You'rg
excused.

THE WITNESS:' Thank you.

MS. BROWN: The Stale's next witness is
Ashanti Mavo.

THE FOREPERSON: Please raise your right
hand.

You do solemnly swear the testimony you are
about to give upon the investigation now pending before
this Grand Jury shall be the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, so help you God?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE FOREPERSON: Go ahead and have a seat.
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You are advised that you are here today to
give testimony in the investigation pertaining to the
offenses of murder, battery constituting domestic
violence — strangulation, coercion, and preventing or
dissuading witness or victim frdm reporting crime or
commencing prosecution, invelving Anthony Mayo.

Do you understand this advisement?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE FOREPERSON: Please state your first
and last name and spell both for the record.

THE WITNESS: Ashanti Mayo. A-S—-H-A-N-T-1,
Ashanti, Mayo, M-A-Y-0.

THEE FOREPERSCN: Thank you.

MS. BROWN: May I proceed?

THE FOREPERSON: Yes.

ASHANTI MAYO,

having been first duly sworn by the Foreperson of the

Grand Jury to testify tec the truth, the whole truth,

and nothing but the truth, testified as follows:

EXAMINATION

BY M3. BROWN:

Q. Hi Ashanti. How are yeu today?

A, Good.
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Q. Good. So you know you were just told why
we're here. Do you remember why we're here today?

A, Yes.

Q. Why are we here, honey?
A, We're here because for the problem, for the

case where my dad and I'm the witness so I have to tell,

like tell you guys and you're supposed to get like

the —-
Q. We're supposed to make a decision today?
A, Yeah.
Q. Okay. Now Ashanti, you've already given us

your name. What's your birthday?

A, . November 6,

0. What year were you born?

A, 2002.

Q. S50 how old are vou right now?

A, Eleven,

Q. What grade are you in?

A, Fourth.

Q. Do you know what school you go tg?
A, K. Carl,

Q. How do you like that school?

A, It's fun.

Q. What kind of subjects do you study?
A, I read. T go to this morning choir.

4]



10

11

12

13

14

15

i6

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

37

A,

Q.
your dad.

A,

Q.

Q.

you know

A,

Q.

Do yvou like choir?

Yes.

Is that your favorite subiject?
Yes.

What's your favorite song?

Santa Claus is Coming to Town.

Did you get to sing that recently?
Yes.

Where did you sing it?

We sing it at school.

You already said yvou're here to talk about

wWho 1s your dad?

Anthony.

What's his middle name?
Tyron,

And what's his last name?
Mayo.

And vou said the thing that happened. Do

if something happened to scmebody?

Yes.

And who did that happen to?
She died.

Who is she?

My mom.

What's your mom's first name?
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your mom and

your mom?

20127

My brother,

20127

A,

'Q-

A,

Q.

A,

Q.

A,

Q.

Al

Beverly.

What's her last name?

McFarlane.

And do you know her middle name?

Estella.

Now ycu said that your mom, that that was

your dad. Anthony's your dad and Beverly's

Yes,

Were they living with you in August of

Yes.
And who else were you living with?

It was just me, my sister, my mom and dad.

he wisits, but he don't live there.

And your sister, what's her name?
Ashley.

And how old is she now?

Four.

Do you now how old she was in August of

I think she was three.
Okay. Do ycu know her birthday?
January 2Znd.

Coming up huh?
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Yes.

Did you get her a present?
No. |

Uh-oh.

50 you, your sister Ashley, your mom and

your dad were all living, was it an apartment or a

house?

A house.

Do you know in what city that was?
No.

That's okay. I'm just asking.

So you're living in a house in Augqust of

Z2012. I need to ask you this question first before we

talk about August of 2012. Okay?

A.

Q.
me and vyou?

A,

.Q'

met?

A,

Q.
describe who

A,

sitting like

Ckay.

Did we have the opportunity to meet before,
Yesterday, did we meet yesterday?

Yes.

Do you know who else was with us when we

Uh —

If ybu don't know their names you can just
they are.

There was a lady, it was a lady that was

by the door and then there was a man that
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just let me in, yeah.

Q. And then was anyone else there with you?

A, It was me, my auntie Ursula and my sister.
Q. And when we met with you did we tell you

what to say today?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Okay. But did T tell you something in
particular?

A. Yes.

Q. What did I tell vyou?

A, You said not to lie and tell the truth,

Q. Okay. &nd did I tell you anything about if

T made a mistake?

A, I should correct you.

Q. Did T make some mistakes vesterday?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you correct me?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Do you know then what the difference

is between the truth and a lie?

A. Yes.
o What 1s the truth?
A, The truth is when you're like, like veou're

wearing something, say that I'm wearing a purple dress

and then it's actually black and so that's a lie and
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then you wasn't telling the truth and the truth is that
you're wearing a black dress instead of sayving you're

wearing a purple dress.

Q. So is it good to tell the truth?
A, Yes,
Q. And does telling —- what about a lie, what

does that mean to you?

A, . A lie is something, a lie is bad. It gets
you in trouble, a lot, a lot of trouble if you keep
lying. And that's 1it.

Q. Did me and that man that just let you in

tell yvou anvthing about telling the truth yesterday?

A, Yes.
Q. What did we say?
A, You said to always tell the truth, don't

lie and stuff.

Q. Ckay. Neow I want to ge to August 2012, - Do

you remember that month of your life?

A, Yes.

g. Do you remember it pretty well?

A. Not really.

Q. Ckayv. But we're in August of 2012. Who

were you living with at the time?

A. T was living with my mom, my sister and my

dad.
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Q. Was there a time in August of 2012 when the
police came to your house?

A. . August what?

Q. Was there a time in August when the police
came to your house?

A. Yes.

Q. And do you recall what date that was off

the top of ycur head?

A, The 10th.

Q. Did you have the opportunity to review
your —— did you maké any statements to the police on
that date?

A, Yes.

Q. And did we show you your statement
vesterday?

A, Yes.

Q. Were you able to look at the date yesterday

and see when you wrote that?
A, Yes.

Q. So August 10, 2012 the police come to your

house; right?

A, Yes.
Q. And why were they at your house?
A, They were at my house because I called them

right when my dad left the house. T called them
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because, I called them because my mom wasn't feeling
that well and they couldn't understand what my mom was
saying so I had to speak for her and then we told them
that, like what's the address and stuff. So I went
downstairs and I got the, like the mail because it has
the address on it and I read it, I.like read it and
spelled it out.
Q. Ckay. Good jok Ashanti.
S0 do the police come to your house at any

point in time that day?

A, Yes.

o, And did you talk tc the police that day?
A, Yes.

Q. Did you see if your mom talked to the

pclice that day?

A, Yes.

Q. Was she able to talk to the police?

A. No, she was mumbling.

Q. Now you said that your mom was having a

hard time talking on the phone as Qell?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. I want to talk to vou a little bit about
vour mom's demeanor that day. Do you know what the word
demeanor means?

A, No.
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Q. Okay. What your mom loocked like that day.
A, Oh.
0. Do yvou understand that better?

Okay. Let's start at the beginning of that
day, August 10th. Were the police at your house right

away in the morning?

A, No.
Q. So what did you do earlier that merning?
A. So I start —— well, my dad was yelling, he

was yvelling at my mom when are you going to go to work,
afe you going to go to work, and my meon kept saying I
deon't know, And so then like my dad woke me up from
yeliing at her and after like a couple minutes after he
stopped and asked her one more time are you going to go
to work and then my mom said, she said noc. Sco we just
staved in the house and my dad left, he drove off with
the car. And so like my mom she was just laying in bed
and then she got off the bed, she went to g¢ use the
bathroom, then she came by the stairs and she gave me
her phone, her phone was on her bed and she, she said
get the phone like, she said the phone, the phone, and I
was like what and so then I got -- because she was
trying to speak louder and she speak louder one time,
speak louder, and then, then I went to go gst the phone

cff the bed and so we, my mom kept dialing. Wait. Tt
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was 311 and then I, and then we actually did call
somebody so and she said the phone number and we were
all the way at the south, we like, we called the south
instead of 911 and then the police camz, like we were
calling and then the police came and stuff.

Q. Okay. Ashanti, let me break that down
because that's a whole lot of information. Okay, honey?

You said you were woke up by vour dad

yvelling?
A. Yeah.
Q. Do you guys sleep in the same room, did you

sleep in the same room as your pareﬁts?

A, No.

Q. Can you kind of describe where you were and
where your dad was at the time?

A, Okay. I was across the hall, cause my room
is like right across from them, and so, and so me and my
sister, because we have this bkig bed in our room, we
both slept on it, she slept by the wall and I slept by
the edge, and we had this other bed on the floor just in
case we rolled off the bed and stuff, we fall. So I
rolled off the bed and I woke up and I'm on that bed and
I'm like what, and then my dad, he wcke me up screaming,
he was screaming and stuff and I got --

Q. Let me stop you there.
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Was your door open when you heard the

screaming?
A, Yeah, both of the deoors be open.
Q. And can you see into where your dad was at

the time?

A, Yes.

Q. Where was your dad?

A. He was like right in front of the docor.

Q. To your deoor or to your mom's door?

A, My mom's door.

Q. Could you see in your mom's.room at the
time?

A. Yes.

Q. And you said your dad was yelling?

A, Yes.

g. Do you know exactly what he was saying?

A, He said are vou going to go to work, and he

was saying bad words, like the B word, the F word, are
vou going to go to work and stuff,

Q.. And earlier you said your mom was
responding to this?

A, Yeah, my mom, she couldn't like, she was,
it was hard for her to talk. She was like mumbling and
her voice was screeching and stuff so it was hard for

her to talk.
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Q. S50 how long was your dad yelling at your

mom before he left, do you know?

A. Huh-uh.
Q. Was it a long time?
A, Yes, it was like about a couple minutes.

Ten or fifteen minutes. I don't know.
Q. Okay. But it was more than a second? Was
it more than like (snaps fingers) that?
A, Yeah, it was more.
Q. When your dad left you said that your mom

moved over by the stairs.

A Yes.

Q. Where were the stairs in relation to your
room?

A. Right next to my mom's room. So if you

come right out the door you just have to turn and it was

right there and gc down.

Q. And were you zble to see your mom when she

was walking out of her room?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And do you now how she was walking at the
Time?

A, She was limping.

Q. Was she holding any part of her body when

she was limping?
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A, I don't think so.

o. When she came out of the room was she

talking to vyou?

A, Yes.

Q. And how was she talking to you?

A, She wasg whispering.

Q. Did you ask her to speak louder?

A. Yes. But it was hard, she couldn't like

speak that loud.

phone?

didn't

go get

vou do

Q. Did she try?

A, Yeah.

Q. And vou said that she said get the phone?
A, Uh-huh.

Q. Did you understand her to say get the

A.. Not really. Like the first two times I

understand but the third time I did and I went to

the phone cff the bed.

Q. And once you dgrabbed that phone what did
with it?

A. I gave it to her.

o To your mom? And did your mom do anything

with the phone?

A, Yeah, she went tc the pheone part and she

dialed, first she dialed 411, then she dialed 311.
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Q. Did it look like she was okay with pushing
the buttons?

A, Not really, it was hard for her.

Q. When she was dialing 311 did you ever take
the phone from her?

A, She gave it to me. She be giving it to me.
and then I heard somebody answer and then she said like
something, 1 don't remember.

Q. The person on the phone said something?

A, Yeah, the person on the phone said

something but I don't remember what she said.

Q. Did you eventually talk to whoever was on
the phone?

A. Yes.

g. Did you eventually give them your address?

A, Yes.,

0. And that's after you went to look at the
mail?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you know your address at the time?

A, No.

Q. Okay. So why did you go get the mail?

A. ‘Because they said can I spell, I forgot

what it was, the word, the street was, but they asked me

to spell it so T went down there to go get it and spell
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it. 8o I did and then I gave them the address and they
came.

Q. Okay. About how long after ycu called them
did they come?

A. . Yes. It was like, it was like maybe five
minutes. It wasn't even five minutes. It was like they
were right there. They just asked, right when we got
off the phone they were right at the door. 350 they just
said can you go open the door and then my mom went
downstairs and opened the door and then they said that

her blood sugar was very high so they took her to the

hospital.
Q. Who said that?
A. I think it was the paramedics or something.
Q. Now you said you talked to the police that

day as well?

A. Yeah.

Q. Do vou remember writing anything for them?
A, Yes.

Q. Did we show this to you yesterday?

A, Yes.

Q. Were you able to recognize 1it?

A. Yes.

Q. If I show it to you again do you think

vou'd be able to recognize it?
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A. Yes.
Q. That's good because T have to find it.
Okay. I'm going teo approach you now.
Okay?
A, Okay.
Q. I'm showing you a document., Do you

recognize this?

A, Yes.
Q. And what 1s that?
A. That's the, that's the paper that I filled

out what happened to my mom,

Q. And how do vou know that this is the one
that you filled out?

A. I don't know if it's the one I filled out
but I know that I wrote, I did that.

Q. Do you recognize anything on here that

makes you think this was yours?

A. Yes,
Q. What do vou recognize?
A. T remember that I wrote my dad, my dad hit

my, my dad hit her and --

Q. So you reccgnize some of the wording?
Al Yeah.
Q. Do you reccgnize any ¢f your handwriting on

there?
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A. Yes,

Q. Is this your handwriting?

A, Yes.

Q. And is there a date at the bottom here?
Al Yes.

Q. Is that how youlremember the date that

we're talking about now?

A, Yes,

Q. Okay.

A. The 1.0th.
Q. The 10th.

Ashanti, you said that your mom that day

was, she was having a hard time talking and walking?

A, Uh-huh.

0. Did vour mom always have that problem?
A, No.

Q. And when did those problems start?

A. Right after when my dad bkeat her up.
Q. So I'm going to move now to when that

happened. OCkay?

A, Qkay.

Q. Do you remember how many days there were
between that 10th, Friday, August 10th, and when your
dad beat your mom up?

A, It was Thursday.
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Q. Was it one day or two days, three days?
A, One day.
Q. All right. So the day before you called

the police, is that when you dad beat your mom up?

A, Huh-uh.

Q. Was it the day before that?

A, It was on Wadnesday.

Q. Okay. So it was the day before Thursday.

Okay. So I want to talk to you about Wednesday then.
A, Okay.

Q. Were you with your dad earlier that day on

Wednesday, August 8th?

A, No, my dad, he left to go take my mom to
work.

Q. Your mom was at work?

A, Yeah.

Q. What did your mom do?

A. She is one of those nursing, she's a nurse

but she works at one of those home, like go to their

house.
Q. Does she take care of people?
A, Uh-huh.
Q. And does she take care of young people?
A. 0ld people,
Q. Was your mom doing that on that day do vou
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remember?
A, Yes. She was doing, she only have that

job. She den't mostly don't have other jobks.

Q. So your dad took your mom to work?

A Yes.

Q. Did your dad cohe home at any point in
time?

A, He come home mostly three or tws hours
later.

Q. Were you home at the time when your dad

came back?

A, Yes.
Q. Was anyone else home with you then?
A, Just me and my sister. But sometime when

my brother visit he watches us.

Q. Was he there on that day?
A, No.
Q. S50 your dad came home. Was he saying

anything when he came home?

A. He threatened me and my sister cause he was
on the phone, cause my mom's phone accidentally called
him and then he said that go in youf room cr I'll whoop
you and I didn't do anything and I guess he was mad
50 ——

. Hold on a second.
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Ladies and gentlemen of the Grand Jury, you
are instructed to disregard that last part. And also
any statements made by Miss McFarlane, Ashanti's mom, is
not offered for the truth of the matter asserted,
they're only éffered for the effect upon the listener
being Ashanti and/or her father.

You're okay Ashanti,

AL Ckay.

Q; Your father came home. Did you go to yéur
room? |

A, Yes.

Q. Were you able to hear your father still?

A, Yes. ©Not really. He closed his room door.

Q. Could you hear anything through the door?

A. He was playing his game.

Q. Did there come a point in time during that

day when he started yelling at your mom?

A. Cn . the phone.

0. Is that before or after he went in his room
to play the game?

A. After,

Q. And were you able to hear what was going on
in there?

A. Nc. He said, he was just yeliing. I

couldn't really hear what he was saying because mostly
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he had his TV up really loud.

Q. But you heard something going on in there?

A, Uh-huh.

Q. At any point in time did you mom come home
that day?

A, She come home at night.

Q. Nighttime?

A. Yeah.

Q. When your mom came home what did she do?

A. She wént Lo go prepare, get, like prepare
food.

Q. Do you remember what you were going to eat
that day?

A, I remember I think it was steak or

scmething. I don't know.

Q. Sounds delicicus.

What were vou doing when your mom came
home .

A, I was, cause my mom, she bought us like
this dirty clothes basket, but we didn't use it yet but
it was all clean, and we opened it, we were downstairs
hitting it like a beach ball and we were calling it,
like we were playing, we were hitting it, me and ny
sister, and then my dad, he joined in, and my mom said

stop but my dad said keep going and I was like oh and I
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just listened to my dad because he started to yell at me

so I just started hitting it again.

Q. Who is we, who was hitting 1t?

A. Me and my sister.

0. And your dad?

A, Yeah.

Q. So your mom said stop, your dad savs go, SO

you went?
A, Uh-huh.
Q. At any point in time does your mom, did

your mom leave or did she stay there when she said stop?

A. She stayed there.
Q. wWhat did she do when this happened?
A, She just like, she kept, we both, I looked

at her, my dad looked at me and my mom looked at me and
I was like I don't know so I just started hitting it
again.

Q. Did your mom leave then or did she stay
there?

A. She stayed there and then, until the food
was done and then we went to go take the food upstalrs

and we were eating in their room.

Q. In your mom's room?
A, Yeah.
Q. Why did you go eat in your mom's room?
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A.
Play Station
Q.

A,

eating?

room?

A,

Because our cable was turned off. We had a
was in their room.

Can you watch anything on the Play Station?
Uh-huh.

What can you watch?

Movies.

Were you going to watch a movie then?
Uh-huh. We were watching movies and stuff.
And you're eating?

Uh-huh.

Who was in your mom's room then when you're

Me, my sister, my dad and mom.

Where were you guys located in your mom's

My sister was at the edge, me and my sister

was at the edge of the bed. My mom and dad was like

their spots on the bed.

Q.

A,

In the other part?

Yeah, the top.

Is everybody eating?

Yes.

And was evervbody watching the movie?
Yes.

Did anything else happen when you're all
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watching the movie?

A. Yes.
Q. What happened?
A. My dad said, we didn't start eating yel, we

started to, like we got our food and my dad said, he
said that he think that my mom was trying to peison him
so my dad gave his food to Ashley and my dad ate my
sister's food.

Q. and did Ashley eat the other food then?

A, No, Ashley wasn't, Ashley eats slow so she
wasn't done yet.

Q. Go ahead though.

A. Aand then like my dad start getting mad and
stuff and then he told me and my sister to get off the
bed and go in our room and then he walked around to the
edge of the bed where we were and then he jumped onto
the bed, and my mom had another phone, she called 911
already but my dad slapped it out her hand, and I got
scratched on my face like right here and then, and I got
scratched from the desk because it was pointing and it
scratched me on my arm but it was just a bruise, but my
dad, he jumped off the bed and on my mom and choked her
and beat her up.

0. Now you said your dad came down to the bed

where you two were. Were you down there at the time he
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came down there?

A,

Q.

A

took her

Q.
A,

Q.

waere you

A.

Q.

Q.
in your room?

A,

He went right there and he told us to move.
Did you move?

Yes, I was trying.

Where did you go when you moved?

I fell off, I rolled off the bed.

What about Ashley, did she stay there?

No, she actually did get off the bed and

food into our room and started to eat it.

You said you rolled off the bed?
Uh-huh.

When your dad went down to where you were,

still in the room at the time?

Yeah, I was.

Did you stay in your mom's room?

No, I went into my room.

And why did yvou go in your room?

Because I was afraid.

Did your dad tell you to get out?
Yes,

When you went to your room, where were you

I was on the big bed and then I was like,

and I was like, I couldn't watch this no more sc I was

going to get my mom's purse to try to find her phone to
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call 911 but I couldn't find it cause she has sc many
pockets and she has a lot of stuff in every pocket sc I
couldn't find it. And then I just took her purse right
next to me and I hid myself behind the door because I

just couldn't watch it nc more.

Q. There was a part that you did see?

A, Uh~huh,

Q. What exactly did you see?

A, I saw when he 1like, he got off the bed, he

started, he went by the door, started call her bad words
again and then he went to go, he got the vacuum. First
he said where's my bat, where's my bat. He went
downstairs to go find his bat in the garage but I guess
he forgot, cause we always keep it con our couch, so I
fook the bat and I hid it in a hole in like this little
hole by the couch cause we have another couch in our

living room.

Q. What kind of bat was 1t?

A, A metal bat.

Q. You ran downstairs and you hid that bat?
A. Uh-huh.

Q. When you hid the bat what did you do?

A, T took the bat and I put it in the, it was

like a long deep hole, so I put it in the hole between

the couch and the wall. So I put it in the hole, then I
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ran upstairs

and went in the room and then my dad just

picked up the vacuum and took it in the room, took it in

their room,
Q.

yvour dad was

hitting your
Ap

Q.

bhed?
A,

Q.

Did you see anvthing, you said before that
hitting —— did you say that your dad was
mom tToo?

Uh-huh.

Did you see this actually happening?

Yes.

And you said your dad also jumped on the

Uh-huh.

Can we go back to when your dad jumped on

the bed and what you saw then?

A,
Q.

you?

Q.

A.

Okay.

When your dad jumped on the bed, where were

I was in my room on my bed,

And could you see into your mom's room?
Yes,

Could you see your mom and your dad?
Yes.

And where was your mom at the time?

My mom was on, like laying down on the bed

and my dad was just on top of her, punching her, choking
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her.
Q. Now you say punching her. Did you sece

where your dad was punching her?

A, Like in the eye, the cheek right here.

Q. Did you see him punching her in the eye?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you see him punching her in the check?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you see him punching her anywhere else?

A, Yes, he was just punching her all over her
face.

Q. You sald he was choking her too. What do

you mean by that?

A, Like choking, actually choking her.
Pushing her down on the bed, like pushing her down, and
she couldn't even breath. She was like help me. She
was calling my name to help her. I wanted to help her
so bad but I just couldn't.

Q. Now you said that he was pushing her down
into the bed but she was saying help me. When he would

push her intoc the bed was she still pretty loud?

A, Yes.

Q. At any point in time does she gel softer?
A Yes.

Q. When did that happen?
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A, Like right when my dad, right when my dac
went out the room, went out the room by the decor and
started like calling her bad words again and said
where's my bat and stuff.

Q. Was she quieter at all when he was pushing

her down intoc the bed?

A, No.

Q. How do you know then that she couldn't
breath?

A, Cause I heard it in her voice. She was

like, she couldn't like, she was screaming and then she

kept stopping. She'd stop and scream and stuff.

Q. So your dad goes downstairs‘to look for the
bat .

Al Uh-huh.

Q. Does he bring the bat up with him?

A, No.

Q. Do you see him come back up stairs?

A, Yes, cause he went into the garage to go

see where the bat is. Then I got the bat and I put it

in this hole, in the hole. Then I ran upstairs because
he was closing the garage so I ran right upstairs and T
went in my room. And then he came by the door, got the
vacuum and he shut the door, then it got all quiet. My

mom was screaming stop, please don't do that, and then
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my dad, 1t started to get quiet then I heard a bang and
then my mom was all the way at my dad's side of the bed.
Q. Was that the last place you saw her before
the door closed?
A, Uh-huh. She was on her side of the bed
first sitting saying stop. And the door wasn't even all

the way closed. Tt was shut like, 1t was cracked,

Q. So could yvou still see inside?

A, A little.

Q. And what could you see if anvthing inside?
A, I saw my dad's dresser and my mom, I think

T saw somebody flipped over off the bed on my dad's side
and then I saw, and then all of a sudden when the door
opened, it was my mom that cpened the door, she came ocut
the room, the vacuum was broken and my mom had dirt in
her hair, dirt on the floor. All on my dad's side, none
cn my mom's side at all.

Q. So when your dad came back up stairs, were

yvou able to see what he looked like at the time?

A. Uh—-huh.

Q. What did he look like at the time?

A, He had dreads.

Q. Resides the dreads, besides what he looked

like physically, were you able to see what else he was

doing at the time?
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A. He was just walking up the stairs balling
his fists and that was mostly it. And he went back in
the roem and tocok the vacuum and stuff.

Q. You said he was saying things to your-mem.

Was he saying them nice like we're talking now?

A. No.

Q. How was he saying them?

A, He was like yelling it at her, like
yelling.

Q. And I'm asking you very specific, so this

is a yes or no question. Have you seen your dad yell
before?

A. Yes,

0. And when he yells does he lock like, what
does his face look like at the time?

A, Like mad.

Q. Did he look the same on that day or did he

look different?

A. Different.
Q. How did he look cn this day?
A. Like his eyes was popping out of his heead.

Every time when he get mad his like fcorehead get this,
like I guess it's his vein popping out of his head and

it's jiggling. So I guess when he's really mad that

happens.
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Q. Did he look like that on this day when he
hit your mom?

A, Yes.

Q. Now you also said that your dad pulled a
vacuum into the room?

A, Uh-huh.

Q. I'm going to show you something and let me
know 1f you recognize it. Ckay?

A, Qkay.

Q. I'm approaching the witness with Grand Jury
Exhibit Number 10.

I'm showing you Grand Jury Exhibit 10. Do

you know what this is?

A, The wvacuum.

Q. Is that the wvacuum thét you saw your dad
grab?

A.  Yes.

Q. T see that there's a little part on here.

Is that what it locked like before vour dad went in the

room?
A. Where?
Q. Here.
A Yes,
c. Okay. This part's open here?
A, No, it was closed,
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Q. But this is what that vacuum looked like in

your house?

A. Yes.

Q. And this is the vacuum he took in the room?
A, Uh-huh.

Q. And you said earlier that there was a part

that was closed?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you want to get up here and point and
tell me which one?

A, It was this part that was c¢losed. So it's
broken. So one time when T was trying to use it to
vacuum cne time, to vacuum uprour room, it didn't work,
it closed. I guess there was a plece missing.

Q. Sc was it always like this?

A, No. It was closed and then right after
that day it was open the whole time.

Q. You said you used this wvacuum?

A, ‘Uh~huh.

Q. Have you ever seen your dad use the vacuum?
A, No.

Q. You wvacuum?

A Uh-huh.

Q. Does Ashley wvacuum?

A, No. Well ﬁow she does.
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Q. She's four so now she gets to vacuum?

A, Yeah.

Q. Does she like fo vacuum?

A. Not really. She's afraid of it though.
Q. Tt's kind of loud? |

A, Yes.

Q. Does your mom vacuum?

A. Yeah, me and my mom mostly.

Q. You said that your dad took that vacuum

into your mom's rocm?

A, Yes.

a. Aﬁd he closed the door sort of?

A, Yes.

Q. And then what did you hear when he went in
there?

A, I heard my mom screaming please don't do

that, and then after it got a little quiet, then T heard
a bang and then I heard like something fell on the floor
too. T heard a bang and something fall on the flocor.

Q. And that little part that you pointed out
before, is that where all the dirt goes?

A, Yes,

C. Now you also said that your mom was able to
open the door.

A. Uh-huh.
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Q. When your mom opened the door, what did she

look like to you at the time?

A, She locked hurt.
Q. And why do vou say that?
A, Because mostly when she gets in a fight she

don't actually look like that, she looks her normal
self, because my dad don't actually beat her --
Q. Let's talk about only this time
specifically.
And ladies and gentlemen, you are
instructed to disregard that.
This time specificaliy when she went in the

room, did she look the same when you saw her again?

A. Huh-uh,

Q. No? How did she look different this time?
A, Cause she had like scratches on her face.
0. And you also mentioned earlier there was

dirt scmewhere. Where was the dirt?

A, On my dad's side and my mom had dirt all in
her hair, like right all in her hair.

Q. And you sald there was a scratch on your
mom's face?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you say anything to your mom ét this

point?
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A, 1l said are you ckay and then she, I

couldn't hear what she was saying. It was hard for her

to talk.

Q. 50 she was talking more softly then?

A, Uh-huh,

Q. How about did she try to walk out of her
room?r

A, She was limping while she was walking,

Like she kept walking and I guess one leg was dragging
or something,

Q. Did you follow your mom when she came out

of the room?

A, Huh-uh.
c. Do vou know where she went?
A, She went, she came into my bathroom because

her bathroom was messed up, got messed up then.

Q. And when she was in your bathroom what was
she doing?

A. She used the bathroom, turned on the water
to go bathe and then when she was done bathing she came
and laid in my bed, in our bed, and my dad said go in
his room, go in that room. But my dad said don't make

me get up. So I helped my mom into her foom and she

~asked us can we sleep in their room but I was

uncomfortable because Ashley was like at the edge of the
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bed and I was like in the middle next to my mom and then
my dad's feet was all up in my face so I was like no, so
me and my sister went back in our room.

Q. Now earlier you alsoc said that your mom had

& phone with her on that bed.

A, Uh~huh.
Q. Did you try to use that phone?.m:‘
A, No, cause my dad slapped it and it was

like, he had his fridge and it was a little corner‘next
to the, it was next to the wall and I couldn't get
through there. T was like, when T fell off the bed I
saw it but I couldn't get my hand through.

Q. Did your dad say anything to you when were

you trying to get the phone?

A, Huh-uh.

Q. Did you try to call the police that day?
A, Yes.

Q. Did your dad know you were trying to call

the police?

A. Yes.

Q. How did he kncw that?

A. Because I got my mom's purse,

Q.‘ Once you got your mom's purse did your dad

say anything to you?

A. He said go ahead cor, go ahead -- wait. No,
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your mom.

a.

So he told you if you call the police he's

going to knock out your mom?

A,
Q.
that day?
A.
Q.

A,

Q.

Yeah.

Did he threaten you at any point in time

Yes, he said that he's going to whoop me.
Was that earlier in the day?
Yes.

What about when this was all going on with

your mom, did he say anything to you at that point?

A.

Q.

A,

Q.
still open?

A,

Q.

No.

So you got your mom back in her room?
Un—hut.

And vou went back to your bedroom?
Uh-huh.

Did you go to sleep?

Yes.

Was your dad, was your mom and dad’'s door

Uh-huh.
Was your door still open?
Yep.

I'm going to talk to you now about the next
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day, that next day, the 11lth, Thursday. I'm sorry, the
9th. Were you able to —-- did you wake up that morning

at some point?

A, Yes.
Q. And when you woke up what did you do?
A. I heard my -— wait. I woke up and I, I

woke up, I just woke up my normal self, then my dad, my
dad was talking to her, you shduld have just told me the
truth from the first get go and stuff and then he said
I'm sorry and then that wéé it. And then my mom didn't
wake up at all. That was the merning she woke up and
then she wcke up at night.

a. Did your mem usually sleep during the day?

A. No. She take naps sometimes but she don't

sleep like that long.

Q. Did your mom usually go to work during the
week?

A, Yes.

Q. Does she ever take days off like Monday,

Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday?

A, Her day off is on Sunday and Saturday.

Q. Was this a Sunday or a Saturday when vour
mom was in the bed all day?

A. Huh—-uh, it was on Thursday.

Q. Did vou hear your mom say anything back to
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yvour dad?
A.

Q.

No.

And

vou said your mom woke up again

sometime later that night?

A,

Q.

A,

Q.

Yes.

Did

Yes.

And

Not

Was

vou talk to your mom later that night?

was she able to talk to you?
really. She was whispering.

it the same kind of whispering that she

did the day before?

A,

Q.

A,

Yes.

Did

Yes.

yvou bring your mom anything?

Cause I was coocking burgers. I was

ceoking burgers and stuff so I tock it upstairs, T

cooked me one, I

Q.

A.

made cone for myself, one for my sis —-

‘wait, one for my dad and one for my mom,.

You didn't make one for Ashley?

Euh-uh.

Why not?

Cause she was still young. She —- I don't
no, I didn't make her one.

Does she like burgers?

Huh-

Did

uh. I made her something else,.

you bring that up to your mom yourself?
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A, Yes.
Q. What did vour mom look like tc you when you

saw her that day?

A, She loocked sick. She just looked very
sick. |

Q. Why do you say that?

A. Because her eyes was all red, cause mostly

when she's sick her eyes turn red, and she, and I guess,

and then she said that her head was hurting so bad.

Q. She was saying that to you?
A. Uh-huh.
Q. When you found out that your mom said that

to you did you do anything in response to that?

A, I said where's the Vicks and she said she
don't know.

Q. What's the Vicks?

A. The Vicks is like, it's something for when
you're sick. It helps for you to feel bhetter. It's
like, I don't know what it's called but it's something
that you rub on your head and you just sleep for a

little, relax, and it makes your head feel better.

Q. Did you try to find that for your mom?
A, Yes.

Q. Were you able to find it?

A, No.
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Q. After you had a conversation with -your mom,
did you stay in there with her?

A, Huh-uh. I went back downstairs because I
had burgers on the grill so I went to go get it off the
grill.

Q. And aside from sick, did you see any other
injuries to your mom?

A. She had a lot of black stuff on her. I
don't know what side but it was on the side of her face.
It was black and white, like her skin was peeled off
then.

Q. Did she have any —— do you know what

bruises are?

A. Yes.
Q. What are bruises?
A, Rruises are when you get hit or hurt and

like it turns your skin another color.

Q. Did you see anything like that on your mom?

A, I don't remember. I think so. T don't
remember,

Q. It's okay if you don't remember. But you

did say that there was something, vou thought some skin
was missing from her face?
A. Uh-huh.

Q. I'm going to approach the witness with
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Grand Jury Exhibit 3.
We're almost done, T promise.
A, Okay.
Q. I'm showing you Grand Jury Exhibit 3. Do

you know who this is?

A. Yeah.

Q. Who 1is that?

i, My mom.

Q. And that thing you were talking about

earlier with the thing on her face, do you see that in

Grand Jury Exhibit 37

A, Yes.

Q. Where is it?

A. Right there.

Q. Is that what you were talking aboﬁt?
A, Yes.

Q. I'm showing Grand Jury Exhibit 2 now.

This is your mom?
A. Yeah.
Q. And this is what you were talking about
right here?
A, Yes.
Q. Now Ashanti, at some point that day did you
go to sleep again that Thursday?

A I went to sleep at night.
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Q. And the next day you said you wcke up and
your dad was screaming?

A, Yes.

Q. Once vour dad left, how long after your dad
left did your mom call the police?

A. T think it was maybe five minutes.

Q.. Okay. And then do you know about how long

after that they showed up?

A. It was I guess a minute.

Q. It was real fast?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. Hold on. Grand Jury's indulgence.

Now Ashanti, you said that Anthony is your

dad®?

A. Uh-huh,

Q. Beverly's your mom?

A, Yes.

Q. Have they always lived together that you
know?

A. Since I know. I guess. I don't know.

Q. You're 117

A, ‘Yeah. Since —— yeah.

Q. Has your dad always been at the place where

you wake up in the morning?

A, Yes.
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Q.

merning?

A,

Q.

for me.

us,

But

Is he usually there when you wake up in the

Not really.

Where is he sometimes?

He mostly be out. My mom mostly be there
like, yeah, she mostly be there for me.
But does he live there do you know?

Yeah, my dad, he used to live there with

Are all of his clothes there?
Uh—huh.

And you said his PS3 was there too?
Uh-huh.

Does he have TVs and stuff there?
Uh-huh,

All right. Thank you, Ashanti.
Okay.

MS, BROWN: Hcld on one second. The ladies

and gentlemen of the Grand Jury may have questions for

you.

THE FCOREPERSON: Any questions?
Ne questions,

Ashanti, normally I would read this vary

long thing to you for the adults. But basically what it

says is that this is a secret, you being here today. So
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when you leave you can't tell anybody that you were here
and what we discussed. Do you understand that?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. STEPHENS: You just kind of keep it to
vourself and with the district attorneys. Okay?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE FOREPERSON: Do you prefer that I read
her the actual statement?

MR. STEPHENS: I appreciate that, but if
vou would also read that to her also.

THE FOREPERSON: OQOkay. By law, these
proceedings are secret and you are préhibited'from
disclosing to anyone anything that has transpired before
us, including evidence and statements presented to the
Grand Jury, any event occurring or statement made in the
presence of the Grand Jury, and information obtained by
the Grand Jury.

Failure to comply with this admonition is a
gross misdemeanor punishable by a year in the Clark
County Detentioﬁ Center and a $2,000 fine, In addition,
you may be held in contempt cf court punishable by an
additional $500 fine and 25 days in the Clark County
Detenticn Center.

Do you understand this admonition?

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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THE FCOREPERSON: Thank you. You are
excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you,

M5. BROWN: And Mr. Stephens is going to
walk you out. Okay? So just hold on a minute.

I just have twc instructions for you before
you take a breék if that's okay.

Ladies and gentlemen, you might have heard
some testimony regarding other instances of anger about
the defendant. That information is not to be considered
by you in making your determination here today. The
only thing you are to consider is the evidence from the
event 1n question.

Also there was socme testimony regarding
Beverly McFarlane saying she had a headache. That
information 1s not offered for the truth of ﬁhe matter
asserted. That merely means it was offered for the
effect on Ashanti and what Ashanti did with that
information.

And with that those are my only twq
instructicons for you at this point.

Do vou need a break?

THE FOREPERSON: Any questions?

A JUROR: I need.a break.

MS. BROWN: I think she wanted a break.
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THE FOREPERSON: A break? Okay. We'll
take a ten minute break. Thank you.

(Recess.)

MS. BROWN: The State's next witness is
Officer Manuel Vital.

THE FOREPERSON: Please raise your right
hand.

You do soiemnly swear the testimony you are
about to give ﬁpon the investigation now pending before
this Grand Jury shall be the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, sc help you God?

THE WITNESS: I do.

THE FOREPERSON: Please be seated.

You are advised that you are here today to
give testimony in the investigation pertaining to the
offenses of murder, battery constituting domestic
violence - strangulation, coercion, and preventing or
dissuading victim or witness from reporting crime or
commenting prosecution, involving Anthony Mayo.

Do you understand this advisement?

THE WITNESS: I do.

THE FOREPERSON: Please state your first
and last name and spell both for the record.

THE WITNESS: First name is Manuel, last

name is Vital. M-A-N-U-E-L, last name is V-I-T-&-I,.
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THE FOREPERSON: Thank you.
MS. BROWN: May I proceed?
THE FOREPERSON: Yes.

MANUEL VITAL,

having been first duly sworn by the Foreperson of the
Grand Jury to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

and nothing but the truth, testified as follows:

EXAMINATION
BY MS. RBRROWN:
Q. Sir, what do you do for a living?
A. I'm a police officer with the City of North
Las Vegas.
Q. How long have you worked as a police

officer for the City of North Las Vegas?
A, With the City of North T.as Vegas for seven

and a half vears.

Q. And were you an officer before then?
A, Alaska State trooper.

Q. Cold there?

A, A little bit.

Q. How long did you work in Alaska?

A, Nine years.

Q. Nine years. In North Las Vegas what are
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your responsibilities?

A.

Q.

into crimes?

A.

Enforce criminal and traffic laws.

Do you conduct any other investigations

Conduct domestic battery investigations,

robberies, burglaries, home invasions.

Q.

Are you involved in any of the cases that

you just gebt assigned to respond to?

A,

0.

Yes, ma'am.

Were you assigned to respond to 4333

Matinee in North Las Vegas?

A,

Q.
A.
incident.

Q.

up”?

A,

I was.

and that was on August 10, 20127

Yes, ma'am.

and that is here in Clark County, Nevada®?
Correct.

Why did you respond to that location?

We were sent there for a domestic battery

That was your understanding when you showed

That was the information that was given by

dispatéh, yves, ma'am.

Q.

And when you arrived at that location did

you come into contact with anybody?
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A,

Q.

A,

Yes.
Who did you come into contact with?

We were first met at the door by Ashanti

Mayc and Miss Beverly McFarlane then came to the door.

Q.

A,

time,

A.

Q.
into contact

A,
remember.

Q.

A,

Q.

You said Ashanti Mayo?
Yes, ma'am,
How old was Ashanti at the time?

She was nine years old I helieve at the

You said Beverly McFarlane?

Yes, ma'am.

Where was Beverly located when you came
with her?

She was in the kitchen I believe. TIf T can

Was she standing or sitting?
She was standing.

And was she, without telling me what she

said, was she able to communicate with you?

A,
Q.
A.
Q.

A,

She was.

You kind of hesitated there.
She was to a point.

What do vyou méan by that?

When I first introduced myself to Beverly,

she greeted me, I identified myself to her, asked her a
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couple questions about our reason for us being there.
We kind of started talking about the incident that had
occurred and during my questioning I noticed that she
seemed a little lethargic, discriented, kind of
displaying sort of intoxicated type of person clues but
I could not smell any odor of alcohol coming from her,

C. You said intoxicated type of person élues.
wWhat do you mean by that?

A Person that's drunk, Very lethargic with
her words, slurred speech, muffled sentences, kind of
losing track of where she was at in the conversation.

Q. And did you try and see if she had any
alcohol that day?

A. I did. I asked her, I could not smell ——
she said no, I could not smell any alcohol on her., T
did not see her swaying or anything like that on her soa

I did not believe she was under the influence of any

alcohol.

Q. So what did you do as a result of that
interaction?

Al Wnat T did was ask some basic questions to

determine her level of coherence. I asked her for her
date of birth, I asked her who was the president at the
time and I also asked her, I forgot what was the third

question that I asked her. Oh, what was the day of the
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week.
Q. Was she able to answer those questions?
A. Nc.
Q. And since she was not able to answer those

questions what did you deo, if anything?
A. What T did at that time, based on the
injuries that T saw on her face and the fact that she

could not answer those questions, I reguested for an

ambulance.
Q. Why did you do that?
A, T was concerned that it was something else

going on based on the statements that she made to me,
her injuries and my observations.

Q. Just so we're all clear, 4333 Matinee,
Noerth Las Vegas, is that in Clark County; Nevada®?

. Yes, ma'am.

Q. And the statements that were made to you,

was it your belief that the crime occurred at that

address?
A. Correct, ma'am.
Q. And again that's in Clark County?
A, Yes, ma'am.
Q. That's three times.

T Just want to talk to you about one

photograph. Exhibit 3. Do you recognize what's
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depicted in Exhibit 37

A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. What is that?
A. ILt's Beverly McFarlane, the abrasions that

T noticed on that day.

Q. Ch, okay. Did you notice any other
injuries on Miss McFarlane?

A, I noticed the abrasions on the left side
and the swelling on the left side of her face.

Q. Was there any other injuries to her body
That you could tell?

A. She had some bruising on the left side of

her ribs also.

Q. Did you see all of that?
A, Yes.
Q. Any other injuries besides the mark on her

face and the bruising?

A. From what T could remember she had a little
bit of petechia and kind of scratches arcund her neck
area. |

Q. Okay. So she had scratches on her neck
area as well?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. When you say petechia, do you know what

those are?
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A, That's rupture of the blood cells usually
caused by strangulation.

Q. How do you know that?

A, Based on my training and experience in my
vears as a police officer.

Q. Based on the fact that she had a hard time
communicating with you, you contacted the paramedics?

A, That's correct.

Q. At any point in time did you contact
anybody else?

A, I contacted Officer Aker as well as the

crime scene investigaticn bureau.

Q. And did they both respond?
A. Yes, ma'anm.
Q. And at some point in time was a decision

made regarding what you would do with Miss McFarlane?

A, Yes. The paramedics decided to transport
Miss McFarlane to UMC and I requested Officer Aker to
follow the ambulance.

Q. Why did you request that?

A, S0 he could ascertain as to the extent of
the injuries with the medical perscnnel.

M5. BROWN: Okay. Thank you. No further

questions.

THE WITNESS: You're welcome,
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MR. STEPHENS: Do the grand jurors have any
guestions?

THE FOREPERSCN: No further questions from
the grand jurors.

By law, these proceedings are secret and
you are prchibited from disclosing to anyone anything
that has transpired before us, including evidence and
statements presented to the Grand Jury, any event
occurring or statement made in the preseﬁce cf the Grand
Jury, and information obtained by the Grand Jury.

Failure to comply with this admonition is a
gross misdemeancor punishable by a year in the Clark
County Detention Center and a 52,000 fine. 1In additicn,
you may be held in contempt of court punishable by an
additional $500 fine and 25 days in the Clark County
Detention Center.

Do you understand this admonition?

THE WITNESS: I do, ma'am.

THE FOREPERSCN: Thank vyou. You're

excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank vou.

MS., BROWN: The State calls Officer Robert
Aker,

THE FOREPERSON: Please raise your right
hand.
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You do sclemnly swear the testimony vou are
about to give upon the investigation now pending before
this Grand Jury shall be the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, so help you God?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE FOREPERSCON: Please be seated.

You are advised that you are here today to
give testiﬁony in the investigation pertaining to the
cffenses of murder, battery constituting domestic
violence - strangulation, coercicn, preventing or
dissuading witness or victim from reporting crime or
commencing prosecution, involving Anthony Mayo.

Do you understand this advisement?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am, I do.

[HE FOREPERSON: Please state your first
and last name and speil both for the record.

THE WIINESS: Robert Aker. A-K-E-R.

THE FOREPERSON: Thank vyou,

MS. BROWN: May I proceed?

THE FOREPERSON: Yes.

ROBERT AKER,

having been first duly sworn by the Foreperscon of the
Grand Jury to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

and ncthing but the truth, testified as follows:
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EXAMINATION
BY MS. BROWN:
Q. Officer Aker, what do you do for a living?
A. I'm a police officer.
Q. Where are you a police officer?
A. In the City of North Las Vegas.
Q. How long have you worked as a police

officer in the City of North Las Vegas?

A, Almost 18 years.

Q. Is that the only place you've ever been a
police officer?

A, Yes, ma'am.

Q. What are your job responsibilities with the
City of North Las Vegas Police Department?

A. Answer calls for service, investigate

crimes, complete police reports, assist citizens.

Q. Do you operate in a supervisory capacity at
all?

A, Just as a senior police officer.

. Do you operate in a teaching capacity at
ali?

A, I do.

Q. How do you operate in a teaching capacity?

A, I have almost 240 hours in domestic
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battery/domestic violence type training and
investigations and I'm authorized to teach other police
officers in the police academy for domestic

battery/domestic violence as well as strangulation.

Q. You said you had over 240 hours in that
field?

A, Yeg, ma'am,

Q. Did any of that training relate to

strangulaticn at all?

A, It did.

Q. And what kind of training did you have in
that area particularly?

A, I went to a specialized instructor scheol
put on by Nevada Attorney General's Office and the
Nevada POST commission. It was to instruct other
officers under the domestic battery/domestic violence as

well as strangulation.

Q. Do you recall when you went through that
training?

A, Five or six years ago maybe, ma'am.

Q. Did you receive a certificate from that
training?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Arid is that on file with anybody?

a. It is.
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Q. Who is it on file with?

A, Nevada POST as well as Nevada Attorney
General's Office.

Q. Have you used the training that vou learned
in that c¢lass, that certification, to assist any other

officers?

A. I have, multiple times.
Q. About how many times would you say?
A, Approzimately 12.

Q. And as a result of your experience in that
area have you ever been called out to respond to any

sorts of strangulation type situations?

A, I have.

Q. About how many times would you say”?

A. Quite a few. Maybe two dozen.

Q. Okay. And you said you also trained the

other officers to look for those signs or symptoms of

strangulation?
A, Correct.
Q. What are the signs and symptoms of
strangulation?
| A, Initially it would come from the victim,

that the victim is having problems indicating that
there's pain around the neck or movement in the neck,

the throat, difficulty swallowing, hoarseness or
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rashness in the language, the speaking. Then there's
very distinct, strong physical indicatcrs like what's
called petechial hemorrhaging, petechia. Normally it's
small little red or purple dots often times in the white
whites of the eyes, the eye lids. Normally petechia is
centered around like mucus membranes.

Q. Were you called out to investigate a
potential strangulation at 4333 Matinee in North Las

Vegas on August 10, 20127

A, Yes, T was.

Q. And did you respond to that location?

A, T did.

Q. And that's here in Clark County, Nevada?
A, It is.

Q. Okay. Fourth time.

Now when you went to that location did you

come into contact with anybody?

A. I did.
Q. Who did you come into contact with?
A, Several of my partners being Officer Vital,

officer Hollings and then the victim Beverly McFarlane.
Q. Did you have a chance to observe

Miss McFarlane's demeanor at that time?
A, I did.

Q. And what did she appear tc, how was her

161



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

97

demeanor to you?

Let me ask that a different way.

Can you describe what her demeanor was like
on August 10, 2012 when you saw her?

A. She came across very scared, very upset,
she was crying and she had several indicators that she
had been battered.

Q. What do you mean by that; several
indicators that she had been battered?

A, She had a klack eye. She had bruising
around her face, her left eye, her left cheeck bone., 5he
had like abrasion type burns on her face, on her eibows.
She had some disccloring around her neck. You know, it
was opbvious that she had been batterad.

Q. Did you see any signs or symptoms that she

had been strangled?

A, I did.
Q. What were those symptoms that you observed?
A. Mcre the classic ones, you know, the

hesitation with the neck movement, the consistently
caressing her own neck, the self soothing of the neck,
the hoarssness in her veice., IiL's just a whele
uncomfortableness of her speaking and moving her head or

neck,

Q. Were there any issues with petechia?
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A Yes.

Q. What did you observe specifically with
regard tc that?

A, Later T went to the hospital and that's
when we did a more thorough examination and that's when
I found on the inside, on the underside of her eyelids
the petechial hemorrhage, the petachia,

Q. Okay. So when you responded to her home at
4333 Matinee, was there a determination made that
Miss McFarlane needed to go to the hospital?

A, Yes.

Q. And after she went to the hospital did you

respond to the hospital?

A. I did.

Q. Once you responded to the hospital what did
vou do?

A, I was assigned to go to the hospital to try

to get further information from Miss McFarlane as well
as to document her injuries a little more specifically.
And with that I was told that there was a possible
strangulation and to look for those signs and the
evidence of that strangulation.

Q. And ladies and gentlemen, that statement
was not offered for the truth of the matter asserted, it

was only offered for the effect on the listener being
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Officer Aker,
Given that information that you were given,

did you respond to look for signs and symptoms of

strangulation?
A, I did.
Q. Were you present when photographs were

taken of Miss McFarlane?

A, I was. But at times I had to leave toc go
try to contact the doctor or call my sergeant or what
have you, but yes.

Q. Would you be able to recognize her if you
saw her again?

A, Oh yes, ma'am.

Q. I'm approaching you with Grand Jury
Exhibits 3 through 2. Take a look at these and let me
know when ycu're finished.

A, Yes, ma'am,

Q. Okay. Do you recognize what's depicted in

Grand Jury Exhibits 3 through 97

A, Yes, I do.

Q. What's depicted in Grand Jury Exhibits 3
through 9°?

A. That's Miss McFarlane and it's

representative of when I was at the hospital with her,

with the exception of the last photo, and her injuries.

14
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1 Q. You said the exception of the last photo?
f 2 A, Yes, ma'am, that one right there.

3 Q. You were not present with this photc?

4 A, I don't believe T was. There is a change

5 | of clothes, she has a neck brace on and she's actually

6 | in a2 room.

7 These were when T initially responded to

8 | the emergency room.

f 9 Q. Do you recognize Grand Jury Exhibit & then?
10 A, There again the neck brace is what T don't_
11 | recognize and the change of clothing. I don't know if

12 | this is after I left or another day.

! 13 0. Same with Grand Jury Exhibit 77
% 14 A, " Yes, ma'am.
15 Q. And Grand Jury Exhibit 67
| 16 A. Correct.
17 Q. 5o Grand Jury Exhibits 3 through 5, are

18 | these accurate depictions of Beverly McFarlane as you
: 19 | saw her at the hospital on August 10th?

20 A, Yes, ma'am.

21 Q: And Grand Jury Exhibits 6, 7, 8, and 9,

22 | they still depict Beverly McFarlane; correct?

23 A. They do.
24 a. But you don't know when they were taken?
25 A, Correct,
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Q. Ckay. 5Sc let's focus then on Grand Jur§
Exhibit 3. I'm putting it up here so you cén see. Is
this Beverly McFarlane?

A, It is.

Q. Is there any particular injuries depicted

in Grand Jury Exhibit 3 that you noticed?

A, Yes, ma'am.
Q. What are they? ‘ L
A, The abrasion type bruise red mark on her

left cheek, to the left part of her eye. She has a
swollen bruising black eye if you will, left evye, and
you can see some of the cther marks around her,
particularly the left side of her mouth underneath
towards her bottom lip, arocund the side of her left
cheek, and although the photo is a little poor quality
or being displayed pcorly, there is some discoloring
around the base of her neck there, her collar bone and
the top of her trapezius muscle.

Q. Is that injury that you're talking akout
now depicted in Grand Jury Exhibit Number 77

A, Yes.

Q. The swelling to the eye and also the
scratch mark to her face?

A. Correct,

Q. Now in Grand Jury Exhibit 3, vou're not
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able to see the petechia; correct?

A, No, ma'am. The petechia would be, that I
saw and attributed to her strangulation is underneath
the eye lids. You have to pull the eyelid down, out a
little bit to be able to see and photograph that.

Q. So can you describe to us then what it
actually locked like cn that day, the petechia?

A, Again it's very distinct. It locks like
someone took maybe a ball pcint pen, either dark red or
purple color, and did just a bunch of dots on the
underside. Where it should be pink you might see some
blood vessels and capillaries but the petechia are those
distinct dots. And it's not a pattern but it kind of

looks like a pattern, like a rash almost.

Q. Did she have that that day?

A, She did.

Q. On August 10th?

A, She did.

Q. When you were talking to her did it appear

she was having trouble speaking with you?

A. She did, as well as the self soothing
around her neck.

Q. You also responded to University Medical
Center. Did‘you observe any injuries to her mouth?

Al Just to the exterior,

1687



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

103

Q. Not the interior?
A, No, ma'am.
Q. Were you able to communicate with Beverly

McFarlane at the hospital?

A, Very limited,

Q. And was part of that because she was
actuaily being treated at the time?

A. Yeah. More sco because of her cognitive,
her inability to communicate.

Q. Let's talk about that. You said she was
having an inability to communicate. Why did you think
that?

A. I didn't smell any alcohol, I didn't see
any strong indicators or indicators at all of narcotics
use or abuse, and when someone's not abkle to tell ybu
basic information like where they are or the date or,
you know, just basic information as toc awareness of
where they are, it kind of leads maybe this is more
cognitive brain issues than it is a drug/alcohol type

thing and then coupled that with the injuries.

Q. The injuries that you noticed to her throat
specifically?
A, The throat as well as to her head, that

could lead to brain issues.

Q. Okay. Grand Jury's indulgence.
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Was Miss McFarlane calm when she was in the
hospital?
A, There was bouts of calmness but her
emotions were pretty diverse in range depending on what

was occurring, how alert she was or what was being

asked.

Q. You already talked about the redness and
the -— did she have bruising around her neck too?

Al Yes, some slight bruiéing.

Q. You talked about some injuries to her

mouth. Do you remember what they were?

A, Some bruising or redness meore towards the
bottom part of her lip, iike above her chin and a little
bit to her bottom lip.

Q. When you talk about scratches to her chest,
did she have scratches anywhere else?

A, The scratches I referred to were like the
abrasion marks, like you know when you rub or, rub your
hand on the carpet too much too fast and it gives you
that abrasion type burn, and she did have those on at
least one elbow. I'd have to refer to my report if it's
both elbows.

Q. Okay. Would that aid in your testimony
today”?

A. Yes, ma'am.
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Q. I'm approaching you with your report.
Do you recognize this?
A. Yes, ma'am. This is a report I authored.
Q. Is it a fair and accurate copy of the
report you authored?
A, Tt appears to be, ves.
Q. Take a look at that and let me know when

you're finished.

A, Qkay.

Q. Has your memory been refreshed, sir?

A. Yes, ma'am, it has.

Q. What else did you see then that we were
just —-

A, Some of the abrasion marks were on her

side. She had scratches, marks on chest, her left side,
left arm, left elbow. Pretty much the left side of her

upper torsao.

Q. Showing you Grand Jury Exhibit Number 4
now. Do you know what's depicted in Grand Jury
Exhibit 47

A, Yes, ma'am. That's obviously her left
elbow with the abrasion type mark I was trying to
describe.

Q. Is that the abrasion type mark you saw on

August 10, 20127
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A, Yes, it is.

C. Is this a fair and accurate depiction of
what that injury looked like to you on August 10th,
20127

A, It is,

Q. Just so we're clear, we're not sure when
that picture was taken?

A, That's correct, T don't know.

Q. But that injury that is depicted in Grand
Jury Exhibit 4 is one that you recall seeing personally?

A. Yes, ma'am.

Q. Grand Ju:y's induigence. Sorry,

After August 10, 2012, did you go back to
the hospital?

A. Yes, ma'am, T did.

0. And when was the next time that you went
back to the hospital?

A. The following day, August 1ith.

0. Were you able to interact with
Miss McFarlane on that date?

A. T did visit her. The interaction there
again was prohibited by whatever was going on medically
with her cognitive issues and inability to effectively
communicate.

Q. Was her ability to communicate with you the
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same or had it changed?

A It had changed for the worse. It increased
to very little to no effective communication.

Q. Were you able to get any, were you able to

ask her any questions at all?

A. I was but the answers were what they were,
Q. Not very helpful?

A. Correct.

Q. Was she able to give you full sentences?
A, No. No. And the sentences would change

from topics to gibberish to incomplete thoughts.
There's just no way to follow or communicate.
Q. Was she able to stay coherent with you the

whole time in terms of awake?

A. Nc, neither day.

Q. What did she do when you tried to talk to
her?

A. She constantly fell asleep. I don't know

if that was lack of consciousness or not but she would

censtantly fall asleep.

. When is the next time you saw Beverly
McFarlane?
A, I think that was the final time I had seen

her.

MS., BROWN: All right. Thank you. No

112



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

108

further questicns.

THE FOREPERSON: Any questions from the
Grand Jury?

By law, these proceedings are secret and
you are prohibited from disclosing to anyone anything
that has transpired before us, including evidence and
statements presented to the Grand Jury, any event
occurring or statement made in the presence of the Grand
Jury, and information obtained by the Grand Jury.

Failure to comply with this admonition is a
gross misdemeanor punishable by a year in the Clark
County Detention Center and é 52,000 fine. 1In additioen,
you may be held in contempt of court punishable by an
additional $500 fine and 25 days in the Clark County
Detention Center.

Do vou understand this admonition?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am, I do.

THE FOREPERSCN: Thank yvou. You're
excused.

M5. BROWN: Thank you.

MR. STEPHENS: The S5State calls Detective
Benjamin Owens.

MS., BROWN: For vour information, Detective
Owens will be our final witness this morning. Our

doctor should be available at 1 o'clock this afternoon.
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THE FCREPERSON: Please raise your right
happened.

You de solemnly swear the Lfestimony you are
about to give upon the investigation now pending before
this Grand Jury shall be the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, so help you God?

THE WITNESS: T do.

THE FOREPERSON: Please be seated.

THE WITNESS: Thank vyou.

THE FOREPERSON: You are advised that you
are here today to give testimony in the investigation
pertaining to the offenses of murder, battery
constituting domestic violence - strangulation,
ccercion, and preventing or dissuading witness or victim
from reporting crime or commencing prosecution,
involving Anthony Mayo.

Do you understand this advisement?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do.

THE FOREPERSON: Please State‘your'first
and last name and spell both for the record.

THE WITNESS: My first name is Benjamin,
B-E-N-J-A-M-1I-N, my last name is OCwens, O-W-E-N-5.

THE FOREPERSON: Thank you,

ME. STEPHENS: May I proceed?

THE FOREPERSON: Yes,
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MR. STEPHENS: Thank vou.

BENJAMIN OWENS,

having been first duly sworn by the Foreperson of the
Grand Jury to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

and nothing but the truth, testified as follows:

EXAMINATION
BY MR. STEPHENS:
Q. Detective Owens, how are you employed?
A, I'm a police detective for the City of

North Las Vegas Police Department.

Q. And how long have vyou been a detective?

A. I've been a detective for seven and a half
years.

Q. Do you have any prior law enforcement

experience prior to becoming a detective?

A, Yes. I've been with the department a total
of 16 and a half years. Prior to that T served in
patrol and other details.

Q. Do you currently have a partner that you

work cases up with?

A Yes, I do.
G. Who is that?
A, Detective Michael Bodnar. Spelling
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B-0~-D-N-A-R.
Q. Thank you, Detective., Were you and
Detective Bodnar asked to investigate a strangulation

that occurred in August of 20127

Al Yes, we were.

Q. And sorry, I think I might have said
strangulation. I meant a crime.

A, Yes.

Q. and based upon your investigation of the

crime, what efforts did you and Detective Bodnar doc in
order to investigate it?

A, We, after determining that the victim died
as the result of a homicide, we sought an arrest warrant
for murder and other wvarious charges. The warrant was
granted and the suspect Anthony Mayo was apprehended
ocut-of-state.

Q. Did you attempt to make contact.with

Anthony Mayo out-of-state?

A. Yes, we did.

Q. Where did you, what city did you locate him
in? "

A, Los Angeles, California.

Q. Do you recall what date and time, or date

it was that you contacted him?

A, I believe it was in March of 2012.
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Q. Of 2012 or 20137
A. I'm sorry. 2013, ves.
Q. So that would have keen about seven months

from the August incident date?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q. Did you personally go out and meet him in
LA?

A. Yes, we did. I did.

Q. We being?

A. Myself and Detective Bodnar, my partner.

Q. At that time did you attempt to speak with

the defendant?

A, Yes, we conducted a taped interview with
him.

Q. And during that interview did you read him
his Miranda rights?

A. Yes, he was advised of his rights and he
waived them and agreed to speak with us.

Q. In speaking with him did vou talk to him
about the incidents that occurred in August of 20127

A, Yes, we did.

Q. And T want to focus specifically on those
dates specifically. What did the defendant, I'm sorry,
Anthony Mayo, tell you about the events of August of

20127
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